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Silver Grant International Industries Limited $REZBIFREXARE AR

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bt &=

2007
—ZETLF Changes
HK$’'m s
H&EET %
Profit Attributable to Equity RATIRAFEE A& A

Holders of the Company 87 323 (73%)
Total Assets BEMRE 6,410 6,381 0.5%
Equity Attributable to Equity RNABIREAFEH A LR

Holders of the Company 4,870 5,006 (83%)
Cash & Bank Balances Re RIRTTHER 792 1,335 (41%)

Changes
Key Performance and FTEEERER HK$ kD)

Liquidity Indicators: BRI ISR BT %
Earnings Per Share SR EF 0.048 0177 (73%)
Net Assets Per Share (Note 1) SIREEFE (K1) 2.70 2.70 Nil
P/E Ratio (Note 1) m&EE (ffit1) 14.8x 9.6x 54%
Return on Capital Employed EARETRE (Fat2)

(Note 2) 1.8% 6.4% (72%)
Return on Total Assets REERRE (#573)

(Note 3) 1.4% 51% (73%)
Gearing Ratio (Note 4) BELLE (K1iF4) 16% 12% 33%
Current Ratio (Note 5) TMEBNLE (H1525) 2.1x 3.1x (32%)
Interest Coverage (Note 6) FEEREE (f1iF6) 4.6x 8.4x (45%)
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Notes:

Based on 1,820,709,611 shares issued and fully paid as at
31 December, 2008 (2007: 1,820,709,611 shares) and the
market closing price of HK$0.71 (2007: HK$1.70) per share.

Calculated as profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company over equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company.

Calculated as profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company over total assets.

Calculated as total borrowings over equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company.

Calculated as current assets over current liabilities.
Calculated as profit before finance costs and taxation over

finance costs (excluding the notional interest portion in
respect of convertible note).

HR_ZZEN\F+-_/A=+—HBETME
B2 B 19 1,820,709,611 R ( — T T L4
1,820,709,611 3% ) R M E &R 0.71 %8 T
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A B & %}
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Silver Grant International Industries Limited $REZBIFREXARE AR

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKHERE

REVIEW OF RESULTS

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2008 has decreased by
HK$235.8 million to HK$87.1 million (2007: HK$322.9
million), representing a decrease of approximately 73%.
Basic earnings per share has decreased by HK$0.129 to
HK$0.048 (2007: HK$0.177), also representing a decrease
of approximately 73%.

The decrease was mainly due to the diminution in the fair
values of investment properties and leasehold properties,
the diminution in the fair values of trading securities and
the significant decrease in net foreign exchange gain.
Such diminution in the fair values was due to the outbreak
of the financial tsunami in September 2008, which has led
to severe deterioration in the investment environment. The
fair values of investment properties, leasehold properties
and trading securities have further decreased by HK$20.1
million, HK$19.1 million and HK$35.4 million respectively.
The significant decrease in net foreign exchange gain is
due to the decrease in the Group’s average balance of
RMB deposits and the reason that RMB to HKD exchange
rate did not appreciate further during the year. Such
decrease amounted to approximately HK$71.4 million.

Other reasons leading to the decrease in profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company were that there were
one-off disposal gains recognised in 2007 in the amount
of HK$38.6 million and HK$48.5 million in respect of the
partial disposal of the Tongjitang ADSs and the disposal of
the Shenyang subsidiaries respectively.

On a net basis, profit contribution from the distressed
assets business in 2008 was HK$33.9 million (2007:
HK$38.2 million) and was mainly derived from the Orient
Portfolio.

e e

BHE-_ZENF+_A=Z=+—HILEE K
NARIR A B A FEG & F R 4 235,800,000
7 JL £87,100,0008 (= T T £ F:
322,900,000 7T) * MIEA A 73% - FIRE
REFRAD0.129B TE0.048 B T(ZFZE
+F 0177 87L)  BIEREKL A73% °

BWANFEREZHRAEBZREMER
HEMENRTFERD  BHRENQTFE
WA REH WS FEABRDAN - %%
AFERLTIEEARZZEZNFENAEES
BEE SBURBRBSBIZEMN KA
M HEMERBFREQAFEDRI#—
R 420,100,000 JT + 19,100,000/ JT
%.35,400,00078 7T © [&E H 42 % % B2 A 18R
DTRARAEERE 2 ARE RN TS
HEHRBRIDURAREEBTEEZREARR
EE—SLERAB - ARRBLHEEOR
71,400,000/8 7T °
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKHERE

REVIEW OF RESULTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group
recognised a one-off impairment loss in the amount of
HK$25.4 million in respect of its investment in Tongjitang
due to the unrealised holding loss, which was resulted
from the marking to market price of the Tongjitang ADSs.
The Group also recognised another one-off impairment
loss in the amount of HK$21.1 million in respect of its
investment in the “Si He Yuan” project due to the written
off of a deposit upon abortion of the project.

The revenue from sale of properties in 2007 was derived
from the Shenyang Tiexi district project under the
Shenyang subsidiaries, following the disposal of the
same in the last quarter of 2007 and due to the fact that
there was no completed development project available
for sales in 2008, no revenue from sale of properties
was recorded in 2008. Due to the same reason, cost of
sales in 2008 was significantly reduced. In 2008, a new
source of revenue was recorded in respect of the sales
of petrochemical products, which was derived from the
petrochemical projects acquired in the last quarter of
2008 from an associate of the Group, CIlI Limited (“ClI”).
As the new revenue from sales of petrochemical products
has more than compensated the decrease in the revenue
generated from rental income and covered the direct
expenses incurred in respect of property development,
which was mainly attributable to the “Si He Yuan” project.
As a result, there was no material change in the operating
income for both years. Operating income for 2008 was
HK$99.2 million (2007: HK$101.0 million).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.09 per share for the year ended 31 December
2008 (2007: HK$0.08 per share). The final dividend, is
subject to approval by shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, will be payable on
10 June 2009 to shareholders on the register of members
of the Company on 3 June 2009. The total amount of
dividend payable is approximately HK$163.9 million.

KD (E)

REBEE-_ZTENF+_A=+—HIEF
B AEERERRAEENRERR —EHE
# /525,400,000 T H) — R EREEE - R
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BAEE - AEEREEENTEAR)ER
KR E R B IN—IEESEA21,100,000 % 7T
m—XMREEE REARZEARILZIER
i #8152 & Mk

T L FYEHERARKEBSH B R
RAIETHEGHARER  ARZEEER
ZETLFENFELE  MRZTSNF
NIVEBEEENMEHEEE JHEE B
HRZZTENFUEZFYEHERA - &
RAERIEE - HEXNARZZEZN\FIIKNIE
B BRZEEN\FELEERAEEN
—HEE AR FEEZRBVEBRAF([H
EDWBEAEHMETIEEGR  —TT/\FF
—HERAEABICIERHEENFTBARIR
BRI A A E 1 TE g & WA KRR I
$H 7 S WA 5 E AR B UA K S A B )
BEEAENMESEMELENEEZER &
b MEFEZEEFMBLEERNEE - =
T )\ FEEFEA99,200,0008 (= F
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RER B

ARREZEFE([EFE)ERBRE &4
KNEE_TZENF+_A=+—RHILFE
KEKE  BRO09BT(ZEELF: &
f20.0877L) - RIBRBBREFTLART Z
BRERENEBFANBRRBFTEASHER @ 1
RZZEZNFNA+THEIARZZZAFEAS
A=ZBRIARATRREM /R - BAKR
B BEE#) 5 163,900,000 T °
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EE#KEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS

Property Investments, Development and
Management

For the year ended 31 December 2008, profit contribution
from leasing of investment properties increased slightly by
9% to HK$26.4 million (2007: HK$24.3 million) and was
pretty stable for both years. The Group’s main source of
rental income is from the East Gate Plaza. During the year,
the gross rental income in respect of the East Gate Plaza
recorded a slight decrease to approximately HK$54.1
million (2007: HK$62.6 million).

The operations of Beijing Yinda Property Management
Limited (“Yinda”) were stable for both of the current year
under review and the last year. At the balance sheet
date, there were 21 projects (2007: 21 projects) under
the management of Yinda. The total floor area under the
management of Yinda exceeds 3.0 million square meters.
The revenue of Yinda for the year was HK$147.1 million
(2007: HK$105.2 million). Net profit for the year was
HK$11.6 million (2007: net loss of HK$1.8 million). The
increase in revenue and profit was mainly attributable to
the short-term appointment of Yinda for the management
of three properties during the period of the 2008 Beijing
Olympic Game. In the coming years, Yinda will concentrate
its effort in soliciting new projects with high profit margin
in order to enhance shareholders’ return.

Re-development project

The Group invested in the re-development of the Tong
Zhou District in Beijing through its 22.62% owned
associate namely It REGAFEMWERZEEGRAR ([EE4H
F]).

The re-development project was named “Zi You Xiao
Zhen”, which has a site area and gross development area
of 320,000 square metres and 830,000 square metres
respectively. According to the development plan, the “Zi
You Xiao Zhen” project will be developed by four phases
in four years’ time.

EBEOERRE

MERE BRREHE

HE-_ZZN\F+_A=+—HBIFE  #
HHEREMEMSHR ARG MO%ZE
26,400,0007% J7L(= & F £ 4 : 24,300,000
BT)URMFHRFTLE - AEENHAE
WAETEREARRES  FARRESNHE
iuﬂzi\%%ﬁﬁ’* SEOR A & 54,100,000 5 7T
—TT 1 1 62,600,000587T)

IRRENEEBBERETARARED
REBEFAREFHLE  RAKREBE
Te-REER ABREEEMBEBEAS
HBEANEACZEZTLF:21) TR
BEO-B&8FFX - RERXFEZHK
A %) B147,100,000% (= T F + F -
105,200,000 7L ) AFEE 2 FRHN A
11,600,000 B T (ZEZLF : FEENA
1,800,000 7T) « WAEEFIE M EER
APA20081t REESRITHIR - REEBEH
ZAER=—AMERR - RRFE - REH
BAFRAMNERNEE  #migaRERm
$&o

EZRF

REBFEBEFR22.62% 2B & 27 > 4t
REAAFFEHEREARARAIERA
F]) REZEIERTEMNRNERE -

EREBEAETERA(BEHNE) EMER
F&%ﬁé)?e%ﬁ%*”m%szoooo%ﬁ#&
830,000 F K kRREZEREIRE (B H/N)
SEVIE B e NFREAD MEIEE -
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EE#KEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Property Investments, Development and
Management (Continued)

Re-development project (Continued)

As at 31 December 2008, the Group has invested
approximately HK$582.4 million (2007: HK$484.0 million)
in aggregate in the “Zi You Xiao Zhen” project.

However, due to the outbreak of the financial tsunami in
September 2008, the progress of the “Zi You Xiao Zhen”
project was delayed for the purpose of awaiting for more
market data and economic indicators before entering into
the next stage of development. Moreover, the directors
have recently learnt that the controlling shareholder of &
&HAF is considering the disposal of its entire interest
in ZAB% due to its own funding needs. The act of the
controlling shareholder will inevitably affect the next stage
of development of the “Zi You Xiao Zhen” to a certain
extent. In this regard, the Group may also dispose of its
interests in EAHBSF at the same time or may acquire
additional interests in & B4, depending on the disposal
price of the controlling shareholder. However, the Group
has not yet arrived at any decision for the time being.

Cinda Jianrun

Cinda Jianrun has made no significant investment since
its incorporation in January 2008. Despite this, the
Group had further paid RMB200.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$222.2 million) funds into Cinda Jianrun
as previously agreed. Cinda Jianrun is currently negotiating
for a potential investment opportunity for the purpose of
commencing its business.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKHERE

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Property Investments, Development and
Management (Continued)

BB

In 2008, the Group made investment in a newly
incorporated company named BIEEISREEER AR ([R5
% ] ) in Beijing. The Group contributed RMB50.0 million
(equivalent to HK$55.6 million) to RBISEIS as registered
capital for an equity interest of 50%. The Group accounted
for its interest in F&IEEHI% as a jointly controlled entity. The
principal business of BIEHI% is the production of branded
Italian style bathroom suite and related products such as
bathtubs, showers, toilets, sinks and bathroom tiles.

Infrastructure Investments

The shareholders of Cll have decided not to utilize Cll as
a platform to co-operate and to invest in infrastructure
projects. In this regard, Cll focus on liquidating all its
investments and projects during the year and in the
coming year. The funds realized will be distributed to
the shareholders of Cll as soon as practicable. As a
consequence of the above strategic change, profit
contribution from CIlI has decreased significantly to
HK$23.5 million (2007: HK$54.8 million).

In the last quarter of 2008, the Group has acquired the
entire investments in the petrochemical project and a
shareholder’s loan from CllI at a total consideration of
approximately HK$184.8 million so as to invest in the
petrochemical industry directly.

EBEOERRE(#E)

MERE  BRRREE(E)

BB IR

RZZZNF  AEERIEREEKL
BRMEHNREEBRAR(RENR]) -
AEERBSEHREE AR 50,000,0007T
(48 & # 55,600,000 7T ) 1 & 50% 1 25 &
AMEASEA - REBE LRSI R
SHEERSANBEERBEHRNEE - #
SONEMEEERRLEEEAFRENRE
ERFERAREENERIAL - 108
KGR - ARBRAERE -
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FEAORRERAETHEBFIAREERH
FRREEMRERBEENFR - Bt - RFER
ET—FEF PEBSUEREMENRE
REBEBRE ERFMBHNES  KEEER
ATHHEREBADRFHREZESRE - &
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EE#KEHE

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Petrochemical Products

During the year, the Group invested in a new core-
business, which is the production and trading of
petrochemical products. The new core-business is
conducted through Tai Zhou United East Petrochemical
Company Limited (“United East Petrochemical”), Tai
Zhou Dong Tai Petrochemical Company Limited (“Dong
Tai Petrochemical”) and Zhong Hai You Qi (Tai Zhou)
Petrochemical Company Limited (“Zhong Hai You Qi”).
United East Petrochemical and Dong Tai Petrochemical
were indirectly held subsidiaries in which the Group is
interested in 50% and 69.78% respectively. Zhong Hai You
Qi is an indirectly held associate in which the Group is
interested in 23.03%.

The principal activities of these companies include the
operation of crude oil storage tanks, crude oil loading and
unloading terminal, crude oil refinery and the production
of an organic solvent methyl ethyl ketone and bitumen as
major oil refinery by-products.

The operation results of the new core-business was barely
breakeven in 2008 due to high crude oil price during the
majority times of 2008 and the fact that the new core-
business has contributed operation results of less than a
quarter since acquisition.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKHERE

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)
Financial Investments

Distressed Assets Business

The Huarong Portfolio

The progress of the disposal of the Huarong Portfolio
was unsatisfactory. China Huarong Asset Management
Corporation (“China Huarong”) failed to complete the
disposal within the time limit of its servicing contract.
Despite the fact that the servicing contract had been
extended to 31 December 2008, the disposal of the
Huarong Portfolio has not been completed. After serious
negotiations with China Huarong, the Group agreed to
further extend the servicing contract to 31 December
2009 in light of the recent financial crisis, which affected
all economies over the world. The Group believes that the
PRC economy will start to recover in the second half year
of 2009, which will benefit the disposal of the Huarong
Portfolio. Moreover, the Group has removed the target
cash recovery rate so as to give China Huarong more
flexibility in disposing the Huarong Portfolio.

The Group will push for the completion of the disposal of
the Huarong Portfolio within the extended period and will
try its best effort to ensure the disposal of the Huarong
Portfolio will not lead to any loss to the Group as a whole.

Up to 31 December 2008, the cumulative principal amount
of distressed assets in the Huarong Portfolio that has been
disposed was approximately HK$27.6 billion, representing
approximately 68% of the total principal amount of the
Huarong Portfolio. The cumulative cash recovered was
approximately HK$540.6 million. The effective cash
recovery rate was approximately 2.0%. As at 31 December
2008, the carrying value of the outstanding debts in the
Huarong Portfolio was approximately HK$12.8 billion in
aggregate.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKHERE

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

Distressed Assets Business (Continued)

The Huarong Portfolio (Continued)

After deducting operating expenses and management fee
payable to China Huarong, loss attributable to the Huarong
Portfolio for the period was less than HK$1.0 million and
was included in the share of results of jointly controlled
entities.

The Orient Portfolio

Profit contribution from the Orient Portfolio for the year
ended 31 December 2008 was HK$33.9 million (2007:
HK$100.2 million). The decrease was due to and was
in line with the decrease in the amount of outstanding
distressed assets pending disposal. The cumulative cash
recovery of the Orient Portfolio was RMB633.4 million
(equivalent to HK$703.8 million), representing a recovery
rate of 2.97%.

During the year, the Group together with certain investors
had agreed to make investment in a second portfolio
of distressed assets owned by China Orient Asset
Management Corporation. The investment is conditional
upon approval being obtained from the relevant PRC
authorities. After netting off the cash recovered and
included in the second portfolio of distressed assets,
the acquisition cost of the second portfolio of distressed
assets will be RMB227.3 million (equivalent to HK$252.6
million). The Group’s participating interest in the second
portfolio of distressed assets is approximately 46%, or
equivalent to approximately HK$115.9 million.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKHERE

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

Other Financial Investments

Tongjitang

The Group has an investment in Tongjitang China
Medicines Company (“Tongjitang”) with a historical
cost of approximately HK$74.2 million. The investment
representing 2,086,000 Tongjitang’s ADSs which are listed
on the New York Stock Exchange. The market value of the
investment as at 31 December 2008 was approximately
US$6.3 million (equivalent to approximately HK$48.8
million) with an unrealized loss of HK$25.4 million,
which has been recognized as an impairment loss in the
consolidated income statement (2007: Unrealized gain of
HK$86.1 million).

On 9 March 2008, two senior executives of Tongjitang
have made an offer to acquire all the outstanding ADSs
of Tongjitang at a consideration of USD10.20 each for
the purpose of privatizing Tongjitang. However, the
privatization offer was withdrawn on 27 June 2008.

For the year ended 31 December 2008, Tongjitang
incurred a net loss of approximately HK$58.1 million, which
was mainly due to the impairment related to intangible
assets and goodwill and share base compensation
expense in the amount of HK$112.2 million and HK$22.7
million respectively. The directors believe that the current
under performance of Tongjitang’s ADS price is due to the
current bad market sentiment and the aforesaid one-off
impairments. In the long run, the ADS price of Tongjitang
will improve and reflect the actual value of Tongjitang.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)
Financial Investments (Continued)

Other Financial Investments (Continued)

Cinda International

During the year, the Group acquired 40,022,000 shares,
representing an equity interest of approximately 9.58%, in
Cinda International Holdings Limited (“Cinda International”)
(formerly known as Hantec Investment Holdings Limited).
Cinda International is an indirectly owned subsidiary of
China Cinda Asset Management Corporation (“China
Cinda”). Cinda International is a company listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) which is engaged in the businesses of
leveraged foreign exchange trading services and securities
broking, commodities and future broking, corporate
financial advisory, asset management and individual
financial planning in Hong Kong.

In light of the strong background of China Cinda and with
its support, the Board believes that this would attract
investors and other financial institutions from both the PRC
and Hong Kong requiring financial services to subscribe
the services of Cinda International. For this reason, the
Board has confidence in the prospect and profitability of
Cinda International and also believes that the investment
will be capable of generating capital gain to the Group in
the future.

Closed-end Fund

During the year, the Group invested RMB56.0 million
(equivalent to HK$62.2 million) in bR EFEH AR EH
[y (“Bai Nian De Cheng”), which is a newly established
closed-end fund and is discretionary operated by a
professional fund manager, for the purpose of leveraging
the expertise of the fund manager. The fund will invest
principally in equity interests, loan capital and convertible
notes of target investees which have great potential for
separate listing.

EBEOERRE(#E)
ERIRE(E)

At £MRE (&)
1ZZ BT

F R A% EE A40,022,0008 45
9.58% RN m 2 FEBBRZERARA A
([MEEBRD(AETEBlRERERAF)
B FEBRBEATREEEEETE QA
(FREEE)DEAERBEORBRG - 52
B A—RRNEBBMERXZBRA B ([ H
ZET]) ETHARWAR BB FEEXINE
RGBT - BHELEL  HREBPELL
EUGERN -  EEERENMEAETREINE
%’g °

ARFEEEEENTESRLESE &
EFeREEHAARSITEANLREEH S
BRFBAEFTENREEREMBEREERE
EEERORYE EREERE EFeY
FEBEENR R RAMENTREL LA
MEZERENRRESAEE G RE AW

Sz
=S o
T

REED

FAN - AEEKRE ARS56,000,0007T (18
E 062,200,000 7T) R It R B FEH A
BERL(EFERH]D  HAE—EAHFEE
CERBEUER  FEANLEES B
EXRECKBENEERERR - ZESHK
FTEREREABILMBNNEERES
MR - ERERTIRRER -



Silver Grant International Industries Limited $REZBIFREXARE AR

MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKHERE

BUSINESS REVIEW & PROSPECTS (Continued)

Financial Investments (Continued)

Other Financial Investments (Continued)

Others

During the year, the Group made certain strategic
investments directly and indirectly by investing, in certain
PRC enterprises, which have the potential for separate
listing. The business of these enterprises include, but
not limited to, power, banking, financial services and
information technology. The carrying value of these
investments amounted to approximately HK$435.3 million
in aggregate and comprises the following projects:
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GROWTH STRATEGIES

Following the decision of not to invest in infrastructure
projects through CIl as a platform, the Group has
fine-tuned its three core-businesses to be property
investments, industrial investments and financial
investments. The directors will allocate resources efficiently
to each individual core-business.

The global economic outlook will remain negative in 2009
and Hong Kong’s economy will be further impacted. The
Group will inevitably be affected by the overall investment
environment. Fortunately, the China’s economy is the least
affected by this recent financial crisis and is expected to
be one of the countries amongst the first few to recover
very soon.

The Board has confidence in the Group’s sustainability
during the anticipated depressed economy in year ahead.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Exchange Exposure

At the balance sheet date, the Group had a USD
denominated convertible note in the amount of USD52.5
million (equivalent to HK$409.5 million). This convertible
note has been early redeemed in full after the balance
sheet date at a 5% discounted price. The Group does not
have material USD denominated assets and liabilities as at
the date of this report. In this regard, exchange exposure
in respect of USD is limited.

Except for the above, the Group’s principal assets,
liabilities, revenue and payments are denominated in HKD
and RMB. The RMB exchange rate has been appreciating
continuously in the past few years and became stabilized
in 2008. The directors expect that the RMB exchange rate
will fluctuate slightly at the current level and the exchange
exposure in respect of RMB will not have material adverse
effect on the Group’s results. In addition, the directors do
not anticipate that there is any material exchange exposure
in respect of other currencies.
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S STATEMENTS EEAKHERE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Working Capital & Borrowings

The Group’s total borrowings excluding the convertible
note at the balance sheet date amounted to HK$385.1
million of which HK$336.8 million was short-term bank
loan. The remaining was long-term bank loan. Over 90% of
the short-term bank loan was represented by the working
capital loan utilized by Beijing East Gate and United East
Petrochemical and the remaining were the current portion
of long-term mortgage loan and bank loan.

Interest rate for the bank loans was charged at fixed rate
ranging from 6.2% to 7.47% per annum and floating rate
with reference to the interest rate quoted by the People’s
Bank of China. The interest rate for the mortgage loan
was charged at floating rate and the prevailing applicable
interest rate was ranging from 2.3% to 2.625% per
annum. After the balance sheet date, the Group has early
redeemed the convertible note in March 2009.

The cash and bank balances at the balance sheet date
was HK$792.4 million in aggregate. In addition, the Group
has net current assets in the amount of HK$1,342.4 million
at the balance sheet date. Moreover, the Group has
unutilized banking facilities in the amount of HK$855.6
million. In this regard, the directors are confident that
the working capital of the Group is adequate for daily
operations and the Group has a sound and good financial
position.

During the year, the Group acquired an additional office
premises at a total consideration of HK$50.0 million for the
purpose of expanding its existing office premises. The new
office premises was partially financed by a mortgage loan
in the amount of HK$25.9 million with interest charged
at a floating rate on the basis of prime rate less 2.7% per
annum.

At the balance sheet date, the Gearing Ratio and Current
Ratio of the Group were 16% (2007: 12%) and 2.1x (2007:
3.1x) respectively.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Working Capital & Borrowings (Continued)

Cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2008
decreased significantly. It was mainly attributable to
the payment of dividend as to HK$145.7 million and the
payment of HK$222.2 million funding to Cinda Jianrun
during the year.

As at the balance sheet date, short-term liabilities
increased significantly but long-term liabilities also
decreased significantly. Both were mainly attributable
to the same reason that at the balance sheet date, the
Group had an outstanding convertible note in the amount
of HK$389.0 million will be repayable in November 2009.
Therefore, the convertible note was reclassified from non-
current liability as at 31 December 2007 to current liability
as at 31 December 2008. However, the convertible note
has been early redeemed in full amount after the balance
sheet date in March 2009.

The acquisition of the petrochemical products business in
the fourth quarter of 2008 has caused significant increase
in certain balance sheet items, as compared to 2007, such
as property, plant and equipment, inventories, accrued
charges, rental deposits and other payables, trade
payables and borrowings.

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2008, the shareholders’ fund of the
Group was HK$4,869.6 million representing a decrease
of HK$136.4 million or 3% decrease from that as at 31
December 2007.

During the year, the Company paid HK$145.7 million to
shareholders of the Company as final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2007, which has an effect of reducing
the overall capital.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Human Resources

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed
approximately 1,620 (2007: 1,400) employees in Hong
Kong and in the PRC. The Group offers its employees
competitive remuneration packages, which are consistent
with the prevailing market practice. The Group’s
remuneration policies remain unchanged during the current
year. Total staff costs for the current year increased by
20% to HK$87.0 million (2007: HK$72.2 million). The
increase in both the number of employees and the staff
costs was due to the acquisition of the petrochemical
projects during the year.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to our shareholders for their
supports and all the Group’s employees for their hard
working and dedication in carrying out their duties and in
achieving the Group’s business goal.

By order of the Board of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited

Gao Jian Min
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 22 April, 2009
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Executive Directors
Gao Jian Min Managing Director

Mr. Gao, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director
and served as the Managing Director of the Company on
22 June 1998. He is also appointed as directors of various
companies of the Group. Mr. Gao is also an executive
director of Jiangxi Copper Co., Ltd (Stock Code: 358) and
Qingling Motors. Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 1122), the H shares
of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Gao graduated from the Qing Hua University with a
Bachelor Degree in engineering. He has over 20 years of
experience in finance, industrial investment and property
investment and development.

Liu Tianni Deputy Managing Director

Mr. Liu, aged 45, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 26 May 2001. Mr. Liu is the Deputy
Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Liu is also a
director of various companies of the Group. He graduated
from the Beijing Normal University with a Master Degree in
Science. He has over 15 years of experience in corporate
administration and trading businesses.

Gu Jianguo

Mr. Gu, aged 46, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 25 May 1999. Mr. Gu is currently a
director and general manager of Well Kent International
Holdings Company Limited (“Well Kent”). He is also an
executive director of Cinda International Holdings Limited
(“Cinda International”) (Stock code: 111), whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Gu obtained a Master
Degree in 1991 and a Ph. D Degree in 1994. He has over
20 years of experience in commercial and investment
banking, business management and financial accounting
and management.
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Executive Directors (Continued)
Tang Baoqi

Mr. Tang, aged 49, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 14 March 2008. Mr. Tang is a Senior
Economist. He obtained his Bachelor Degree in Economics
from the Hubei School of Finance and Economics in
1983. From 1983 to 1999, he worked in the head quarter
of China Construction Bank and was responsible for
credit administration. From 1999 to 2000, he worked
in China Cinda Asset Management Corporation (“China
Cinda”), a substantial shareholder of the Company and
was responsible for the management of debt assets. At
present, Mr. Tang is the Financial Controller of Well Kent
which is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Cinda and is
in charge of the management of debt assets and financial
management. Mr. Tang has over 13 years of experience in
banking and finance.

Chow Kwok Wai

Mr. Chow, aged 42, is one of the Deputy General
Managers and is the Qualified Accountant of the
Company. He is responsible for the finance and
accounting matters of the Group. Mr. Chow joined the
Company in October 1993 and was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 20 April 2004. Mr.
Chow has worked in Price Waterhouse, which is now
known as PriceWaterhouseCoopers and has accumulated
valuable audit experience there. Mr. Chow received his
Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences from the University
of Hong Kong in 1990. Mr. Chow is a Fellow Member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chow has over 15 years of experience in
accounting, financial management and corporate finance.
Mr. Chow is also an independent non-executive director
of Lijun International Pharmaceutical (Holding) Co., Ltd.
(Stock Code: 2005) which H shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He is also a non-executive director of Cinda
International (Stock code: 111), whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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Non-executive Directors
Chen Xiaozhou Chairman

Mr. Chen, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
director and was elected the Chairman of the Board on 13
February 2006. He was redesignated as a non-executive
director on 1 September 2006. Mr. Chen is currently
the Chairman of Well Kent. He is also the Chairman and
executive director of Cinda International (Stock Code: 111),
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange and a non-
executive director of China National Materials Company
Limited (Stock Code: 1893), the H-shares of which are
listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chen obtained a Master
Degree in Economics from the Research Institute of the
People’s Bank of China in 1988 and obtained a Master
Degree in Commerce from the University of New South
Wales, Australia in 2003. Mr. Chen has over 18 years of
experience in the banking and finance industry.

Hui Xiao Bing Vice-chairman

Mr. Hui, aged 55, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company and Vice-chairman of the Board on 22
June 1993. He was redesignated as a non-executive
director of the Company on 1 September, 2006. Mr.
Hui was the ex-Deputy Managing Director of China
Everbright Financial Holdings Limited. Mr. Hui was also
the ex-president of China Construction Bank, Shenzhen
Branch. He previously worked for the Research Centre for
Economic Development of the State Council of the PRC
and China Investment Consultancy Company. He has over
20 years of experience in banking and finance. Mr. Hui
graduated from the Inner Mongolia Industrial University
with a Bachelor Degree in Engineering.

Yuen Wing Shing

Mr. Yuen, aged 62, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 22 June 1993 and was redesignated as
a non-executive director of the Company on 1 September,
2006. Mr. Yuen holds a diploma in management studies
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to
joining Yugang International Limited (“Yugang”) in 1992, he
had held senior management positions with a major bank
in Hong Kong for over 20 years. Mr. Yuen is the managing
director of Yugang (Stock Code: 613), which shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also an executive
director of Y. T. Realty Group Limited (Stock Code: 75)
and Cross-Harbour (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 32),
the shares of both companies are listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Kang Dian

Mr. Kang, aged 60, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 8 May 1998. He is
presently a director of Springridge Investment Management
Limited, which is principally engaged in the provision of
consulting and management services and is the Chairman
of the Supervisory Board of Shenzhen Development Bank
Company Limited. Mr. Kang graduated from the University
of Science & Technology Beijing in the PRC, with a
Bachelor Degree majoring in Engineering in 1982. In 1984,
he graduated from the Graduate School of The Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences in the PRC and obtained a
Master Degree in Economics. Mr. Kang was the director
and Vice President of Guangdong Enterprises (Holdings)
Limited, a holding company of a conglomerate group, from
1994 to 2000. From 1990 to 1994, Mr. Kang was the Vice
President of China National Packaging Company. From
1987 to 1990, Mr. Kang was the Vice President of China
Agribusiness Trust & Investment Corporation.

Zhang Lu

Mr. Zhang, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 4 May 2000. Mr.
Zhang was the ex-executive Vice President and Treasurer
of Citic Ka Wah Bank Limited and was responsible for both
the Treasury and International Business. He previously
worked for Bank of China, Beijing and Citic Industrial
Bank, Beiing. Mr. Zhang graduated from the Szechuan
Institute of Foreign Languages. He has engaged in the
banking business for over 30 years.

Hung Muk Ming

Mr. Hung, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 23 December
2004. Mr. Hung is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing) and is a Fellow CPA of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also a
Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and an associate of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Hung received his
Bachelor Degree in Social Sciences from the University
of Hong Kong in 1990 and received a Master Degree in
Corporate Governance from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 2008. Mr. Hung is also an independent non-
executive director of Cinda International (Stock code: 111),
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Hung
has over 15 years of experience in the accounting and
audit sector.
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Kwok Chung Lun

Mr. Kwok, aged 54, joined the Company in July 1995.
Mr Kwok is the Managing Director of Beijing East Gate
Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing East Gate”), which is
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Kwok
pursued study in the People’s University. Mr. Kwok has
over 20 years of experience in property investment and
development.

Zhang Shuhua

Miss Zhang, aged 55, is the Deputy Managing Director of
Beijing East Gate. Miss Zhang pursued study in the Beijing
Radio and Television University. Miss Zhang has over 20
years of experience in finance and accounting.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to maintaining and ensuring a
standard of corporate governance that is consistent with
market practices. The Company has applied the principles
and complied with all the applicable code provisions of
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on Stock Exchange for the
year ended 31 December 2008 except for Code provision
E.1.2. Code provision E.1.2 stipulates that the Chairman
of the board should attend the annual general meeting.
The Chairman of the board was out of town and did not
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 23 May 2008. The Chairman will endeavor to attend
all future annual general meetings of the Company unless
unexpected or special circumstances preventing him from
doing so.

The Company will continuously review and improve its
corporate governance practices to ensure that business
activities and decision-making processes are regulated in
a proper and prudent manner.

The following summarizes the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.

Board of Directors

The Board, led by the Chairman, steers the Group’s
business direction. The management, led by the Managing
Director, which is also the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, is responsible for the Group’s management
and operations. The division of responsibilities between
the Chairman and the Managing Director are clearly
established and set out in writing. The role of the
Chairman and the Managing Director are separated and
are performed by different persons to avoid concentration
of authorities to one single person.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The Board is responsible for formulating the Group’s long-
term strategies, setting business development goals,
assessing the results of management policies, monitoring
management’s performance and ensuring the existence
of an effective internal control system. The independent
non-executive directors serve the important function
of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework.

The current Board of the Company comprises five
executive directors, three non-executive directors
and three independent non-executive directors which
composition is set out in the section headed Corporation
Information on page 4 and the biographies of the directors
are set out on page 21 to 24.

Members of the Board possess the appropriate expertise
and skills to discharge their duties. Save for the fact that
Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou, Gu Jianguo and Tang Baogi are
also directors and/or senior officers within the group of
China Cinda Asset Management Corporation, which is
a substantial shareholder of the Company, there is no
relationship between members of the Board, in terms of
financial, business, family or other significant relationship.

To assist the Board in discharging its duties and to
fulfil the requirements of the Code, two standing board
committees are set up under the Board: the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. When it
become necessary, the Board will set up ad hoc board
committee to handle specific issues and report back to
the Board.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

The Board considers that each independent non-executive
director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the specific independence criteria as
required by the Listing Rules. The Company has received
from each independent non-executive director an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. In addition, the independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all corporate
communications.

All directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There is an established procedure
for directors to obtain independent professional advice,
which expenditure will be borne by the Company, in the
furtherance of their duties.

The full board will meet regularly and at least four times
throughout a year to review the overall strategy and to
monitor the operation as well as the financial performance
of the Group. Notice of at least 14 days will be given to all
directors for all full board meetings and the directors can
include matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary.
Agenda and the accompanying board papers in respect
of full board meetings are sent out in full to all directors
no less than three days before the meeting. Minutes of
full board meetings and meetings of board committee
are properly kept and all directors have access to board
papers and the related materials.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

During 2008, four full board meetings were held and the

attendance of each director is set out below:

Name of director

Number of meetings attended

BExg@)

RZBEZENFEARBHAOREBES
& BUEFNHFEXRHEINOT

23

Attendance rate

EEnE HESRAH HE=
Chen Xiaozhou 3 out of 4 75%
FESS R E =R
Hui Xiao Bing 3 out of 4 75%
B R PR HE =X
Gao Jian Min 4 out of 4 100%
=ER QR A PR
Liu Tianni 3 out of 4 75%
BIRIR PR HE =R
Gu Jianguo 4 out of 4 100%
AR QR A PR
Tang Baoqi 4 out of 4 100%
ERHE QR AR R PR
Chen Yongcun (Note) N/A N/A
R TF (A7) @R @A
Yuen Wing Shing 3 out of 4 75%
FOKH PR =X
Chow Kwok Wai 4 out of 4 100%
5] QR A PR
Kang Dian 3 out of 4 75%
i £t PR HE =X
Zhang Lu 4 out of 4 100%
o 3k QR A R
Hung Muk Ming 4 out of 4 100%
HEREA QR AR R PR

Note: Mr. Chen Yongcun was resigned on 27 February 2008.
There was no full board meeting held up to Mr. Chen’s

date of resignation.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

According to the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board has the power to appoint any person as a
director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board. All directors, including the Chairman, Vice
Chairman and Managing Director, shall retire by rotation at
least once every three years at annual general meetings
and be eligible for re-election.

All independent non-executive directors have been
appointed for a specific term of service. They are also
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

Securities Dealing by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code
of conducts for securities transactions by directors of the
Company. All the members of the Board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2008.

The Company has also adopted codes of conduct
regarding securities transactions by relevant employees (as
defined in the Code) on terms no less exacting than the
required standards set out in the Model Code.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in 1999. The composition and professional
qualifications of the members of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under Rules 3.21 of the
Listing Rules. The Audit Committee has a written terms of
reference that conform to the provisions of the Code.

BExg@)

BEARBER BEFARZEEMAL
EEESERBAEAEZRIENESTER
cBER(BRREEIR BXEREFAK
B)AELB=F—RBARBKREFAEE
R BREEEE -

I

El/

PRBEBYFNTES R ERAREEMES -
FMBEREARRRERE 101 HFRRER A
RAAF RS RES R EREE -

EXETRSERS

ARABERARREFETESFXHEM L
MARAER T PrE A EMBRTAEFETE
HFRGMRETAD([RETR DIERERE
TEAFRSHNTR - EFS2HKEOER
NEAMBFREARCDHR REEBE-T
ENF+-_A=T—BLFERA-ERBE
STREST RIS 2 SRR -

ATRAMIER (R EATAETHE
525 DRATBER BB TR
SEETLIR

BEREES

ARBER—NAANERIERZER([F
BEEE])  BERZEGZEKREKEDN
EXEROTALMHRAEI21HRZERK -
BERZBENRERRRTEEMRTAZ
3



Annual Report 2008 43R

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT A REBMRE

Audit Committee (Continued)

The current Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Kang Dian (committee
chairman), Mr. Zhang Lu and Mr. Hung Muk Ming. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee includes the review
and supervision of the Group’s financial reporting system
and internal control procedures, review of the Group’s
financial information and review of the relationship with the
external auditors and the Company.

The Audit Committee meets at least two times each year
to review the reporting of financial and other information
to shareholders, the system of internal controls, risk
management and the effectiveness and objectivity of the
audit process. The Audit Committee also provides an
important link between the Board and the Company’s
external auditors in matters coming within the scope
of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors.

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31
December, 2008 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

The Audit Committee together with the Board has reviewed
the internal control system of the Group and were satisfied
that it is operating effectively and is appropriate for the
Group for the time being.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the attendance of each member is set out below:

Name of director

Number of meetings attended
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in 2005 and adopted a written
terms of reference which conform to the provisions of the
Code. The current Remuneration Committee comprises
two independent non-executive directors namely, Mr. Kang
Dian (committee chairman) and Mr. Zhang Lu.

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to ensure that there is no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration and that the
Company has an equitable and competitive remuneration
policy to attract and retain talent persons to serve the
Company.

The remuneration package for each employee is structured
according to his quality and professional qualification.
The remuneration package will contain a combination
or modification of some or all of the following four main
components:

1. Basic salary

Basic salary ranges for each position are established
with reference to the responsibilities and the duties
attached to the position. The actual salary for the
person filling the position is determined based on the
experience and ability of the individual selected for
the position.

The basic salary ranges are reviewed periodically by
reference to the general market and by comparison
to comparable positions at competitors in the
relevant industry. The actual salaries of employees
are reviewed annually and may be adjusted from
time to time based on the cost of living and financial
performance of the Company.

Salaries are base compensation and not intended
to reward performance, either individually or
corporately. Performance is rewarded through the
other components of the remuneration plan.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

2. Incentive bonus

Incentive bonus is linked to individual and corporate
performance. The incentive bonus for each employee
is determined with reference to his position and his
performance during the year.

3 Share option

Share options to purchase shares in the Company
are granted to employees from time to time at the
discretion of the Board, in order to retain valuable
employees and to motivate future performance of the
employees.

Share options granted to individual employee
are determined with reference to his position, his
performance and his ability to contribute to the
overall success of the Group.

4. Other benefits

The Group offers other customary and/or mandatory
benefits to employees, such as statutory retirement
scheme, employee compensation and medical
insurance, paid annual leaves and child education
allowance, with reference to the prevailing practices
in relevant jurisdictions.

The remuneration committee meets regularly to review the
Company’s human resources matters and remuneration
policies. During the year, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held and the attendance of each member
is set out below:

Name of director

Number of meetings attended
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved
the annual salary adjustments for the year 2009 and
the payment of discretional performance bonus and
director fees for the year ended 31 December 2008 after
taking into consideration the results of the Group, the
performance of the directors, the senior management and
the employees and the prevailing market practices.

No director has ever forfeited any director fee during the
year.

Details of the emoluments paid to all directors are set out
in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination of directors

Currently, the Company does not set up any nomination
committee. The Company will consider establishing a
nomination committee at appropriate time.

The Board shall have the collective responsibility to
consider and assess the candidates for directorships
based on their characters, qualifications and experience
appropriate for the Group’s businesses, and nominate
candidates for directorships accordingly.

On 27 February 2008, Mr. Chen Yongcun resigned as
director of the Company due to personal commitments.
Mr. Tang Baoqi was nominated and appointed by the
Board as an executive director of the Company on 14
March 2008.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008 were audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) at a total fees of approximately
HK$2.2 million. The said audit fee was approved by the
Audit Committee and endorsed by the Board. In addition,
the Group also paid fees of not more than HK$0.2 million
in aggregate to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the provision
of taxation services during the year 2008.
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Auditors’ Remuneration (Continued)

The Audit Committee considers that the taxation services
did not (in terms of the nature of the services and the
amount of fees paid in relation to the audit fees) affect the
independence of Deloitte.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements for each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2008, the directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
made adjustments and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable; and have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on the going concern basis. Up to the date
of this report, the directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties that will seriously affect the going concern
assumption of the Group.

The directors are also responsible for keeping proper
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company.
The directors also have general responsibilities for setting
up an appropriate internal control system, which is mainly
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and
detect fraud and other irregularities. The directors have
reviewed the internal control system of the Group and are
satisfied that the internal control system of the Group is
functioning properly.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
investors at large. In order to enhance the transparency
of shareholders’ voting in general meeting, separate
resolutions are proposed at general meeting on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual director and those resolutions were voted on by
poll. The Company will engage external scrutineer to count
the vote. The poll voting results will be published on the
Stock Exchange’s website and on the Company’s website
on the next following business day. In addition, procedures
for demanding a voting by poll are laid down in the circular
or annual report to be despatched to shareholders.
Moreover, at general meeting but before voting, the
chairman of the meeting will explain to shareholders their
right to demand a voting by poll and how to exercise such
right.

The Company has maintained a website at http://www.
silvergrant.com.hk which enable shareholders, investors
and the general public to have an open access to the
information of the Company. Financial information and
all corporate communications of the Company are made
available on the Company’s website and are updated
regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the Board
may write to the Company Secretary at Suite 4901, 49/F,
Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong.
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The Board present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2008.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and
engaged in property investment and securities trading.
The Company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in property investment, other investments,
distressed assets business and production and trading of
petrochemical products. Details of the principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries and the Group’s associates,
jointly controlled entities are set out in note 60 and details
of principal activities of the special purpose vehicle which
hold the Group’s investment in distressed assets are set
out in note 61 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 50.

The Board recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.09 per share to the shareholders on the register of
members on 3 June 2009, amounting to approximately
HK$163,864,000.

Fixed Assets

The Group’s leasehold land and buildings were revalued
at 31 December 2008. Net deficit on revaluation of the
leasehold land and buildings amounted to approximately
HK$12,134,000 of which an amount of approximately
HK$19,141,000 has been charged to the consolidated
income statement as revaluation deficit and an amount
of approximately HK$7,007,000 has been credited to the
asset revaluation reserve.
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Fixed Assets (Continued)

During the year, the Group and the Company revalued all
of its investment properties at 31 December 2008. The
net decrease in fair value of investment properties, which
has been debited directly to the consolidated income
statement, amounted to approximately HK$20,130,000 .

Details of the valuation and movements of the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the
Group and of the Company during the year are set out in
notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Details of the major investment properties of the Group
at 31 December 2008 are set out in the section under
“Summary of Investment Properties” of this Annual Report.

Share Capital

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2008 comprised the
retained profits of approximately HK$350,429,000 .

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Gao Jian Min (Managing Director)

Liu Tianni (Deputy Managing Director)
Gu Jianguo
Chen Yongcun (resigned on 27 February 2008)
Tang Baoqi (appointed on 14 March 2008)

Chow Kwok Wai
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Directors (Continued)
Non-executive directors

Chen Xiaozhou (Chairman)
Hui Xiao Bing (Vice Chairman)
Yuen Wing Shing

Independent non-executive directors

Kang Dian
Zhang Lu
Hung Muk Ming

The term of office of each director, including the non-
executive directors and independent non-executive
directors, is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Messrs. Chen Xiaozhou, Liu Tianni,
Chow Kwok Wai and Zhang Lu retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, and they, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election. The remaining directors shall
remain in office.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transaction” below, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract, which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interest in Shares

As at 31 December 2008, none of the directors and the
chief executive of the Company nor any of its associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)
as recorded in the register as required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers. None of the directors or their spouses
or children under the age of 18, had been granted any
right to subscribe for the equity or debt securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporation, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

Share Options

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the
Company on 27 May 2002 (the “Option Scheme”) are set
out in note 56 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year, no share options were granted to the
directors and other employees under the Option Scheme.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debenture of, the Company
or any other body corporate, and neither the directors
nor the chief executive nor any of their spouse or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
right.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

Other than as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transaction” below, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2008, persons other than a director
or chief executive of the Company having interest in
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 December 2008 are set out below:

BEERERGNER

BRTXIBEEXZ IMBOMBEEEI K
NEHEE QR R EF 4 B R FRERE
B BEAT N~ H DRI EAARRE
ENETHE(THREEEREEN)EXH
HEAVEREH

FERR
RZZZENE+_A=+—H REARER

BEFLHEGIIEI6HREATHFEN
BLMEHMBET  BRARREFTHRSTT

BABASN  BEREMEARFEETRA%
FIA LS ALINT

RZZZENE+_A=+—H8 REARERKR
i RARRR M B TR EINAT ¢

Percentage
Name of Number of of the issued
substantial ordinary Underlying share capital
shareholder Capacity shares shares Total interests {H2HEBRTR
IERRER 54 ERRROBE HER G Bz VNP
Silver Grant Beneficial owner 153,586,022 - 153,586,022 8.44%
Group Limited  E&mHEBA (note i)
REEERRAF (i)
China Cinda Interest of controlled corporation 402,064,000 — 402,064,000 22.08%
Asset REH AR (note i)
Management Wizt
Corporation
HEEEBREER
N
Citigroup Inc. 6,068,000 shares as interest of 42,102,230 138,813,559 180,915,789 9.94%
controlled corporation, 36,034,230 (note iii)
shares as approved lending agent Wizt i)

and 138,813,559 underlying shares as
interest of controlled corporation
6,068,000/ BX & = E
36,034,230/ Bz AEILARAR
138,813 5601 B X HIEEER
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Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Messrs. Gao Jian Min and Liu Tianni, both of whom are
directors of the Company, each has a 30% interest in Silver
Grant Group Limited as at 31 December 2008.

The following is a breakdown of the interests in shares
of the Company held by China Cinda Asset Management
Corporation:

FERR#E)

SRRAEERBIRELELE  REJR/ARE
B RETN\FFT-_A=+—RHEEH

BIREEEBRAF30%E °

NTRPBEEEEEEEATMFEBEART

Z R s A -

Total interest in shares

ROEREH
Name of Name of Percentage Direct Indirect
controlled corporation controlling shareholder of control interest interest
SEEBER EERRER ZHBES =R HiEfEs s
Well Kent International China Cinda Asset 100% — 402,064,000
Investment Company Management Corporation
Limited HEEEEEEREAR
FERBRRERRAR
Catic Limited Well Kent International 100% 2,064,000 —
Investment Company
Limited
ERBEBREERRAT
Regent Star International Well Kent International 100% 400,000,000 —

Limited Investment Company
ERBEERATR Limited

FERARKRERRAT

This represents the interest in convertible note in the
principal amount of USD52,500,000 pursuant to which a
total number of 138,813,559 new shares will be issued
upon full exercise of the conversion rights attaching thereto
at the initial conversion price of HK$2.95 per share.

Other than as disclosed above, the register required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or

short position in the shares and underlying shares of the

Company as at 31 December 2008.

(i)

B E XTI ERE SN

It A 7K & #8 %8 52,500,000 € JT 2 7] 2 A% =
BIETRER @ BIIRER2.95 8T 2 ¥4
B E R MEITE A R =AM S 2 Rk
% - o174 ££138,813,559 IR FTAE () ©

RIEE 7 R E GRS

BHMERTFENELMABETR - AR
AV ERERERN _—_TEN\F+_A=1+—
BAEARRR RN RABBBR D P EEEA A
EEERER -



Annual Report 2008 43R

DIRECTORS' REPORT EEE€H 4%

Appointment of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on
the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors are independent.

Connected Transaction

A service agreement dated 28 December 2004 was
entered into between Mr. Gao Jian Min (“Mr. Gao”) and
the Company. Pursuant to the terms and conditions set
out therein, the Company agreed to employ and Mr. Gao
agreed to serve the Company as a Managing Director by
providing the Company with the services as described in
the service agreement for a term of three years from 28
December 2004 to 27 December 2007, which term shall
continue thereafter until determined by either party giving
to the other not less than 3-months prior written notice.

Purchase, Sales or Redemption of the Company’s
Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee and is based on
their merit, qualifications and compentence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market practices.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 56 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Annual General Meeting

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held
at Concord Room lll, 8th Floor, Renaissance Harbour View
Hotel Hong Kong, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
on Wednesday, 3 June 2009 at 10:00 a.m..

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of its directors,
during the year and up to the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float, as not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing
Rules.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group’s revenue comprises rental income from leasing
of properties, dividend income from listed securities,
net gain on disposal of held-for-trading investments,
income from property management, income from sales
of properties, interest income from interest in distressed
assets and income from production and trading of
petrochemical products.

The aggregate amount of purchases and revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and
customers were less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases and revenue for the year.
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Closure of Register of Members

The register of members will be closed from Friday, 29 May
2009 to Wednesday, 3 June 2009, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfers of shares of the company
will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend and to determine the identity of the shareholders
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, all duly completed transfer form
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the share registrar of the Company, Tricor
Secretaries Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 27 May 2009.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Details of significant events occurring after the balance
sheet date are set out in note 59 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Financial Assistance Given to Affiliated Companies
Amounting to More Than 8% of the Assets Ratio

As at 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of
advances made by the Group to its affiliated companies
exceeded 8% of the Assets Ratio. The advances are as
follows:
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Financial Assistance Given to Affiliated Companies
Amounting to More Than 8% of the Assets Ratio
(Continued)

The combined balance sheet of the affiliated companies
as at 31 December 2008 which includes the assets and
liabilities of ItREEAFHEMEMEAFMRALF and Beijing
East Bay Investment Consultants Limited is as follows:

BFEBAANYBEDRAEEAEE
Le28% (#&)

ZEEBMLARN_TEN\F+_A=1+—H
ZEHEERBR BRIRESAFER
ERZEBERAFARIERREREBHAERA
AMBEENMAENFBOT:

HK$’000

FET

Non-current assets EMEBEE 1,356
Current assets mBNEE 1,341,994
Current liabilities mEIARE (1,216,416)
Shareholder’s fund fEEREES 126,934
Equity attributable to equity holders of the associates Bt N EIIRAN B A (G IR 126,934

Details of the above affiliated companies are set out in
note 60 to the consolidated financial statements.

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board
Chen Xiao Zhou
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 April 2009
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Deloitte.
=2)

To the members of
Silver Grant International Industries Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Silver Grant International Industries Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 176, which
comprise the consolidated and the Company’s balance
sheets as at 31 December 2008, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility toward or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued
by the HKICPA. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors of the Company, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 December 2008 and of the
Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22, April 2009
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=+—HIFFE

2007
ZETLF
Notes HK$’000
Kzt FET
Sales of properties e Xk 6 - 148,600
Property management fee income MEEIRE A 6 147,068 105,226
Rental income HE WA 6 54,431 67,387
Sales of petrochemical products ARt TEREE 6 45,662 =
247,161 321,213
Cost of sales SHE KA (147,938) (220,251)
99,223 100,962
Interest income from interest in TREERZNEHBA
distressed assets 6 - 18,307
Income from investment in distressed @@ IR B R EIRE
assets through establishment of a TREEZBA
special purpose vehicle 6 39,993 100,220
Dividend income from listed EmEHEREBA
securities 6 1,132 —
Other income, gains and losses EmgA - e R EE 7 195,545 249,502
Change in fair value of held-for- FHEEEREQATEEZS
trading investments (35,351) (4,401)
Administrative expenses 1TEUE A (117,776) (119,729)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HE& R #HEREW S
investments - 38,643
(Revaluation deficit) reversal of HEMZE(EHEE) &M
revaluation deficit of leasehold 518 [B it
properties 16 (19,141) 8,121
Change in fair value of investment KEMFERNTEED
properties 15 (20,130) (44,254)
(Loss) gain on convertible note RBRFIEA T ERIERHE
classified as liabilities at fair value %E%\E’J‘Hﬁﬂxﬂf
through profit or loss (fEs18) e 42 (6,289) 19,376
Change in fair value of structured wEEESRFES 2 A ATE
finance securities = 1,715 (10,294)
Impairment loss on interest in TREEEDRBEREE
distressed assets 29 - (80,248)
Impairment loss on goodwill AR EEE 18 - (26,524)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale A4 H &% & 5 (& &8
investments (25,390) =
Impairment loss on deposits, Ze  BARREAERK
prepayments and other receivables  JE{EEE 34 (21,115) —
Finance costs 7% & 8 (25,520) (39,121)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & B B A B Ay e 51 — 48,499
Share of results of associates /NI 22,472 48,786
Share of results of jointly controlled  #E{h fE[RIFE 41 A B 24
entities (2,426) (19,073)
Profit before taxation BR A AT A 86,942 288,772
Taxation (charge) credit FRIE (S ) WA 11 (5,190) 35,059
Profit for the year F AR F 12 81,752 323,831
Attributable to: FEAE -
Equity holders of the Company RRARRAFFR A 87,057 322,869
Minority interests DY R R (5,305) 962
81,752 323,831
Earnings per share (in HK dollar) AR (AFHETHIR) 13
— Basic — B 0.048 0177
— Diluted — #58 - 0.158
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND BALANCE SHEET 4 EEEBRREEEER

As at 31 December 2008
R-FEF+=A=+—H

The Group The Company
N YN
2008 2007 2008 2007
L IC —TTF Bl iGN —TTF
Notes BGLEXN) HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ik FET FET FET FET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties BEME 15 2,188,262 2,126,216 16,798 16,745
Property, plant and equipment ME BENEE 16 462,444 156,346 65,674 69,483
Land use rights b f5E 17 26,842 = - =
Goodwill S 18 11,392 7,001 - —
Interest in subsidiaries HIB ARl 19 - - 965,930 56,011
Interest in associates kNG 20 783,991 1,110,780 20,000 20,000
Interest in jointly controlled entities HEEDARER 21 66,717 13,587 12,973 13,587
Structured finance securities LEESRES 24 12,216 12,046 12,216 12,046
Available-for-sale investments AfEHERE 25 314,019 167,755 2,140 2,140
Investment in distressed assets through B 745 % B H &5
establishment of a special purpose RETREE
vehicle 30 - 9,745 - —
Deposit paid for establishment of an BB —REL AT ZEE
associate 26 - 64,171 - —
Other asset HinEzE 28 - 1,371 - =
3,865,883 3,669,018 1,095,731 190,012
Current assets RBEE
Inventories, at cost FE — BA 31 66,597 183 - =
Investment in distressed assets through B 745 % B H &5
establishment of a special purpose RENREE
vehicle 30 148,247 97,446 - —
Held-for-trading investments HEEBERE 32 70,027 63,130 15,368 61,918
Trade receivables U BR X 33 11,794 4,897 - =
Deposits, prepayments and other e BAR R ARG
receivables 34 207,323 302,262 166,963 167,066
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 19 - — 2,300,536 2,958,547
Amounts due from associates iGN 22 982,626 781,802 - 87,000
Amount due from a jointly JEY—FR LRSI R AR
controlled entity 23 63,074 122,630 63,074 122,630
Loan receivables W ER 27 79,790 = - =
Available-for-sale investments AELERE 25 121,277 - 63,500 -
Tax recoverable e E 1,128 = - =
Restricted bank balance EEROL&R 35 - 163,677 - —
Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR 36 792,376 1,171,064 40,503 356,733
2,544,259 2,707,091 2,649,944 3,753,894
Assets classified as held-for-sale FIERERECBE 37 - 5,000 - —
2,544,259 2,712,091 2,649,944 3,753,894
TOTAL ASSETS BEMAE 6,410,142 6,381,109 3,745,675 3,943,906
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND BALANCE SHEET 4 EEEBRREEEER

As at 31 December 2008
R-EZENNF=A="+—H

The Group
A58

The Company
QT

2008 2007 2008 2007
L IC —TTF Bl iGN —TTF
WGIC HK$°000 HK$'000  BEIEHI) HK$'000
Kz FET FETL FET FETL
EQUITY %N
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Share capital e 39 364,142 364,142 364,142 364,142
Reserves [ 4,505,489 4,641,885 2,575,355 2,642,423
Equity attributable to equity holders of ANARIRRARA A FEGRRA
the Company 4,869,631  5006,027 2,939,497 3,006,565
Minority interests DR EER 202,420 12,658 - -
Total equity JRA 5,072,051 5,018,685 2,939,497 3,006,565
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings e 41 48,260 4,600 3,450 4,600
Convertible note EEES 42 - 382,736 - 382,736
Deferred tax liabilities EETIRARE 43 87,954 91,928 3,951 4,737
136,214 479,264 7,401 392,073
Current liabilities naaE
Trade payables FEfTBR TR 44 113,833 76,725 - =
Accrued charges, rental deposits and Bt &R BHEE R
other payables HERAT 45 207,741 177,850 9,279 19,399
Amounts due to associates N ANETE 46 13,500 162,002 13,500 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries Rl ENGE 48 - = 385,823 524,719
Amount due to holding company of a  FERN—R&REAERARR
shareholder 47 - 96,676 - —
Borrowings e 41 336,839 233,278 1,150 1,150
Convertible note ARREE 42 389,025 = 389,025 —
Taxation payable eI HIR 140,939 136,629 - =
1,201,877 883,160 798,777 545,268
Total liabilities SEME 1,338,091 1,362,424 806,178 937,341
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BRARAELE 6,410,142 6,381,109 3,745,675 3,943,906
Net current assets BFREBEE 1,342,382 1,828,931 1,851,167 3,208,626
Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRBHERE 5,208,265 5497949 2,946,898 3,398,638

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 176
were approved and authorized for issue by the board of
directors on 22 April 2009 and are signed on its behalf by:

Chen Xiaozhou RZF
Director &%

FE0BEEF 176 EZGAYHRACEES
eN-_ETHENA -+ —HRA REER
17 W THIRERRBRBER

Gao Jian Min 2R
Director %
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #HREfER

For the year ended 31 December 2008

AR —FZNFEf —A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANARABEAELRE
Asset Capital
Share Share  revaluation  redemption Other  Translation Retained Minority Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
& ROEE EEEREE EAEEEE Afpfif EifR REEA At JHRRER RxE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A7 AT AT 7T AT AT AT FET AT A7
At 1 January 2007 R2007E1A1A 364,142 2,111,281 24,854 13,992 605 142,560 1,867,201 4,590,641 16,261 4,606,902
Exchange difference arising on BEBNETEL
translation of foreign operations ] = = = = = 86,133 = 86,133 162 86,285
Fair valug change of avallable-for-sale ~ ARHEREATE
investments 23 = = = = 112,583 = = 112,583 = 112,583
Gain on revaluation of leasehold EffEENEE
properties - - 22,007 - - - - 22,007 - 22,007
Deferred tax liabilty arising on EfifiEhF B
revaluation of leasehold properties REAE - - (3,356) - - - - (3,356) - 3,356)
Share of reserve of associates BUEBENIRE - - - - - 38,249 - 38,249 = 38,049
Share of reserve of a jointly controlled  EfE—EAFEHAR
entity ﬁﬁ = = = = - 512 - 572 - 512
Net income recognised directly in ERNRARIHAA
equity it - - 18,651 - 112,583 124,954 - 256,188 152 266,340
Profit for the year Lyl - = = = = = 322,869 322,869 962 323,831
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of  HETfHHERER
avalable-for-sale investments BETIT - - - - (26,518) - - (26,518) - (26,518)
Transfer to profit or loss on disposal of  HEHBAREZE
subsidiaries Bak - - — - - (9,703) - 9,703) - (9,703)
Total recognised income and expenses  EREZMMAREE
for the year ag = = 18,651 = 86,065 115,261 322,869 542,836 1,114 543,950
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries BEKENEAR
(note 50) () = = = = = = = - 10,328 10328
Disposal of subsidaries (note 57) LENBATHZ51) - - - - - - - - (15,045) (15,045)
Dividend RE = = = = = = (127,450) (127,450) - (127,450)
At 31 December 2007 2007124318 364,142 2,111,281 43,505 13,992 86,670 257,811 2,062,620 5,006,027 12,668 5,018,685
At 1 January 2008 R2008%1 818 364,142 2,177,287 43,505 13,992 86,670 267,811 2,062,620 5,006,027 12,668 5,018,685
Exchange difference rising on BEBNETES
translation of foreign operations = = = = = = 58,815 - 58,816 (6,13) 52,702
Fair valug change of avallable-for-sale  FIEHERE
investments 25 = = = = (11,455) = = (111,455) - (111,455)
(Gain on revaluation of leasehold BRERENE NG
properties - - 7,007 - - - - 7,007 - 7,007
Deferred tax liabilty arising on BffEENEZETH
revaluation of leasehold properties IE’EF = = (1,301) - - - - (1,301) - (1,301)
Share of reserve of associates BEBENARE - - - - - (56,252) - (56,259) - (56,252)
Net income recognised directly in ERNRARTHMA
equity 58 = - 5,706 - (111455 2563 - (103,186) 6113 (109299)
Profit for the year s = = = = = = 87,057 87,057 (5,305) 81,752
Impairment loss on avallable-forsale  ARHERARE
investments - - - - 26,390 - - 26,390 - 25,390
Transfer on disposal of leasehold HERENERE
properties - - (2154) - - - 2,154 - - -
Total recognised income and expenses  EREZMMAREE
forthe year 45 - = 3552 - (86,065) 2563 89,211 9261 (1141g) (2:157)
Dividend ke S = = 5 - — (e (15650 (s8]
Acquisition of subsidiarigs (note 49) WEREAR Ht49) - - - - - - - - 198,958 198,958
Incorporation of a non-wholly owned R %2 AEE
subsidery KB - = = = = - - - 2222 202
At 31 December 2008 R2008%12A318 364,142 2,111,281 47,057 13,992 605 260,374 2,006,174 4,869,631 202,420 5,072,051
Note: Bt -
Fair value change of available-for-sale investment measured at fair BATENEAHREEREZ ATEEZHEERE

value is recognised directly in other reserve, until the available-
for-sale investment is derecognised and impaired, at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other reserve

shall be recognised in profit or loss.

foHERER E:@%Tﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁm\JJ:EEW&/ME
B - Z AR MR RER N Rt R EE R R
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT &4 B RERE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-—FTENF+-A=+—HFE

Change in fair value of structured
finance securities

GRS RMESZ ATES
)

2008
—Z2ENF
Notes HK$’000
HiaE FHETT
Operating activities FE S
Profit before taxation BR B A a7 86,942
Adjustments for: FEE -
Share of results of associates b N (22,472)
Share of results of jointly controlled £ {5 £ [E =4I A 72 4E
entities 2,426
Amortisation of other asset B & N 1,371
Depreciation of property, plant and VI - BB REETE
equipment 11,614
Amortisation of land use rights o Hb {5 R A 5 46
Finance costs Bi5 8 R 25,520
Dividend income from listed EmBEHRERA
securities (1,132)
Interest income from interest in TREEEZTEWA
distressed assets -
Income from investment in BB FIR B S BRI E
distressed assets through TREEZWA
establishment of a specia
purpose vehicle (39,993)
Interest income FLEUA (113,150)
Gain on disposal of available-for- HETHEERE WS
sale investments -
Impairment loss on interest in TREEEZMBERE
distressed assets -
Impairment loss on available-for- AN EREREEE
sale investments 25,390
Impairment loss on goodwill B REEE -
Impairment loss on deposits, B4 - AN E A e Yk
prepayments and other VEREN R
receivables 21,115
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A R R e 51 -
Net loss (gain) on disposal of HEWE - B REHEFTE
property, plant and equipment A2 e (e ) 5 163
Revaluation deficit (reversal of HEYESHEER(EME
revaluation deficit) of leasehold 18 [0 % )
properties 19,141
Change in fair value of investment BEYENFEZ
properties 20,130
Loss (gain) on convertible note RIEZREAFEERERE
classified as liabilities at fair BAENARRER
value through profit or loss fEtE (as) 6,289

(1,715)

2007
—ERF
HK$’000
FET

288,772
(48,786)

19,073
1,371

7,809

39,121

(18,307)

(100,220)
(99,253)

(38,643)

80,248

26,524

(8,121)

44,254

(19,376)

10,294
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT &4 B RERE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
R ET\Ff—A=+—HFE

2008 2007
—Z2ENF —TELEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
i3 FHET FAT
Operating cash flows before LEECEIAMNLEERER
movements in working capital & 41,685 136,191
Decrease in interest in distressed TREEES D
assets - 95,209
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERADGEM) 7,611 (11)
Decrease in stock of properties MEFE R - 108,104
Increase in held-for-trading HEETIREEN
investments (6,897) (47,948)
Decrease (increase) in trade JE W BR SR > (3 )
receivables 1,454 (1,469)
Decrease (increase) in deposits, & - BRI E M BB
prepayments and other receivables A (3Ehn) 17,910 (44,824)
Decrease in restricted bank balance E&F O&&RED 163,677 369,194
Increase (decrease) in trade payables JEfTBRFRIE HN(RA) 2,798 (11,170)
(Decrease) increase in amount due to  JEfT — & AR R KRR A AlFK
holding company of a shareholder (R )18 (96,676) 81,385
Increase (decrease) in accrued EErER ke REAMmE
charges, rental deposits and other RGN OR )
payables 919 (59,700)
Cash generated from operations REXBEER® 132,481 624,961
Interest paid BFE (25,520) (39,121)
Tax paid [EERE LS (9,319) (22,449)
Net cash from operating activities RERETEEE 2 FH® 97,642 563,391
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT &4 B RERE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
B _EL )\ FF A=+ —HFE

2008 2007
—EEBN\F —ZETLF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
Kzt FET FET
Investing activities REER
Purchase of distressed assets BB FIR B S EERE A
through establishment of a special TREE
purpose vehicle - (321,701)
Receipt of income and principal W B 38 3@ SR B SRR AR
repayment from recovery of AR B E B E A/
distressed assets purchased WA R A& B
through establishment of a special
purpose vehicle - 314,730
Proceeds on disposal of investment  HEREMEFRSIIE
properties 1,061 167,917
Receipt of consideration receivable  WERH &R & W%
from disposal of investment FriS kI8
properties 89,519 =
Purchase of property, plant and BAME - BEM&E
equipment (61,979) (4,773)
Purchase of investment properties BAREYZE (1,202) (3,928)
Purchase of land use rights BB b fF A (797) =
Dividend received from associates B U & A R AR B 318,600 2,000
Dividend received from listed EmEHFRBEA
securities 1,132 —
Interest received B U F 8 113,150 91,764
Deposit paid for establishment of an B —REH#4 AT Z1ke
associate - (64,171)
Advance to associates B4 = WNCIE/ S (198,804) (159,788)
Repayment from a jointly controlled U HY— & £ [F3% &I A 7
entity ER 59,556 135,781
Proceeds on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREES
plant and equipment FRIE 667 253
Proceeds on disposal of assets HESERFELE CEE
classified as held-for-sale 5,000 —
Proceeds on disposal of available- &SR EEHRIE
for-sale investments 13,333 212,980
Purchase of available-for-sale BARHEERE
investments (392,122) (5,348)
Receipt of principal repayment of WA CRIEBESFASER
structured finance securities 1,545 2,083
Proceeds on deregistration of an FEEH — B A R PSSR IR
associate 44,445 =
Acquisition of investment in a jointly Uk — R HEEIEH A FTIRE
controlled entity (565,556) (42,781)
Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries REUREEH B A 7] 50 - 5,989
Acquisition of subsidiaries g hyEE NG 49 50,680 —
Increase in loan receivables N FEBE R (79,790) —
Disposal of subsidiaries & M B A R 51 - (2,321)
Net cash (used in) from investing BEXB(FTA)MSFRE

activities (91,562) 328,686
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT 48 & REHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE-—FTENF+-A=+—HFE

2008 2007
—Z2ENF —TELEF
Notes HK$°000 HK$°000
i3 FET FEIT
Financing activities il & T
Capital injection from minority DEIRERE ARG A
shareholder 2,222 —
Repayment of loan from a BE—ZRREZERK
shareholder - (220,000)
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (228,926) (642,861)
Dividend paid B AR 2. (145,657) (127,450)
Bank loans raised fﬁﬁféfﬁraﬂ‘lﬁ 248,122 213,904
Repayment of (advance) from 2 (WO B & A R EK
associates (264,630) 302,229
Net cash used in financing activities BIE XA FIRS (388,869) (474,178)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and R& &L ZHECHD)
cash equivalents AT ER (382,789) 417,899
Cash and cash equivalents at the RERBREFEFVEE
beginning of the year 1,152,840 724,995
Effect of foreign currency rate ERESFH L
changes 22,325 9,946
Cash and cash equivalents at the RERREEBFREEE
end of the year 792,376 1,152,840
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF RERBSEBEEHRIN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash fETT ERNIRE 792,376 1,171,064
Bank overdrafts RITHE S - (18,224)
792,376 1,152,840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=+—HIFFE

1.

General

The Company is a public limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered
office and principal place of business of the Company
are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company
and is engaged in property investment and securities
trading. The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
are principally engaged in property investment, other
investments, distressed assets business and production
and trading of petrochemical products. Details of the
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries and
the Group’s associates, jointly controlled entities are
set out in note 60, and details of principal activities of
of the special purpose vehicle which holds the Group’s
investment in distressed assets are set out in note 61.

—REE

ARAR/—HRERBEMAILNARE
Ram - ERORELEMEXZMER
RANBERFT ) £ o 2N 2 B RE M 3
FRREEEEME AU A F RN
[RBER RN E -

RFEMBHRRIABTES - REAR
RERZEAE 2 EEE

ARAB/—RREERAR - THEY
ERENRBELEE - ARARENBER
AAEBDIEREYERE  H
fRE - TREEXRGRABELIEM
EENMHEE - ARAIZWERR - A&
EEBE QR KRAEHABFEET
RHIFE60 - ANEE BB B RO H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE—FFNF+-—A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments and interpretations (“New
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are
or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of financial assets
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — INT 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and treasury share

transactions

HK(IFRIC) — INT 12 Service concession arrangements

HK(IFRIC) — INT 14 HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit
asset, minimum funding requirements
and their interaction

The adoption of the New HKFRSs had no material
effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting years have been
prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior year
adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

R REBINEBYHRE
2= A

RAEE > AEBERAT N HBE
AEHAE((REGHMAE® )R
eI R2B(MEEMBRSE
A1) EFERBEHEDER -

BERBIEAERRE BN EMKEE
BRBREERE TR
(B3])
EH(BERMBREREEZ  ARMBREER
BEg) —RBE1R £25 — 5B
REGERHR
2
EE(ERNBRERBE RBLSETH

Bg) —2EF12%
BE(ERYHRERER
Bg) —REBE14%

BEEETREAE
19% — RER
FEERS
BEESHTE
RERTHEE

RN BARVBRELED - HASFH
BB e i 2 XE kP BN R
L2 WEBERNTE - At - HAR
BEFEEHRAE

AEE W R FEATIICEMER R
ERMEFTR] R ERTER - EFT Sk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE—FFNF+-—A=+—HILFE

2.

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
HKFRS 8
HK(IFRIC) — INT
9 & HKAS 39
(Amendments)
HK(IFRIC) — INT 13
HK(IFRIC) — INT 15
HK(IFRIC) — INT 16

HK(IFRIC) — INT 17

HK(IFRIC) — INT 18

Improvements to HKFRSS'
Presentation of financial statements®
Borrowing costs

Consolidated and separate financial
statements’

Puttable financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation®

Eligible hedged items®
Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or associate?

Vesting conditions and cancellations”
Business combinations®

Improving disclosures about financial
instruments”

Operating segments®

Embedded derivatives’

Customer loyalty programmes’

Agreements for the construction of real
estate’

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation®

Distribution of non-cash assets to
owners®

Transfer of assets from customers’
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2008

2.

B ELT\FH A=+ —HIFE

Application of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5,
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

July 2009.

¢ Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30
June 2009.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2008.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
October 2008.
Effective for transfers on or after 1 July 2009.

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect
the Group’s accounting for business combination for
which the acquisition date is on or after 1 January
2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary. HKAS 23 (Revised) will affect
the accounting treatment for borrowing costs, which
eliminates the option to expense borrowing costs
in relation to acquisition of qualifying assets when
incurred. The directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the other new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations will have
no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
properties and certain financial instruments, which
are measured at revalued amounts or fair values. The
principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including special purpose entities) controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests in the net
assets consist of the amount of those interests at
the date of the original business combination and the
minority’s share of changes in equity since the date
of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority
in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

For business combination that involves more than
one exchange transaction through successive share
purchases, each exchange transaction is treated
separately, using the cost of the transaction and
fair value information at the date of each exchange
transaction, to determine the amount of any goodwill
associated with that transaction. The acquiree’s
net assets are stated at fair value at the date of
acquisition when control is achieved. Any adjustment
to those fair values relating to previously held
interests of the Group is a revaluation and is credited
to other reserve.

Acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries
is recorded at the book value of the net assets
attributable to the interests. The excess of the
carrying amounts of net assets attributable to the
interests over the cost of acquisition is recognised as
discount on acquisition.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
can be determined only provisionally by the end
of the period in which the combination is effected
because either the fair values to be assigned to the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities or contingent
liabilities or the cost of the combination can be
determined only provisionally, the Group shall
account for the combination using those provisional
values. The Group shall recognise any adjustments
to those provisional values as a result of completing
the initial accounting within twelve months of the
acquisition date.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1
January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity or a jointly controlled
entity for which the agreement date is before
1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant
acquiree at the date of acquisition.

For previously capitalised goodwill arising on
acquisition of net assets and operations of another
entity or a jointly controlled entity after 1 January
2001, the Group has discontinued amortisation from
1 January 2005 onwards, and such goodwill is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the cash generating unit to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired (see the accounting
policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business for
which the agreement date is on or after 1 January
2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the relevant business at the date of acquisition.
Such goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a
business is presented separately in the consolidated
balance sheet.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1
January 2005 (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in the consolidated income
statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-
generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investments in subsidiaries/associates/jointly
controlled entities

Investments in subsidiaries/associates/jointly
controlled entities are stated in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Income from investments in subsidiaries/
associates/jointly controlled entities is accounted for
by the Company when the Company’s right to receive
the dividend payment has been established.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates
are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of net assets of the associate, less
any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
associate.

Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the
establishment of a separate entity in which venturers

have joint control over the economic activity of the
entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Joint ventures (Continued)

Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly
controlled entities are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are carried in
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of
net assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds
its interest in that jointly controlled entity (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of
losses is provided for and a liability is recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition after
reassessment is recognised, immediately in profit or
loss.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled
entity of the Group, unrealised profits or losses are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
jointly controlled entity.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for use in production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than construction in progress)
are stated at cost or fair value less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss.

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for
production or for its own use purposes. Construction
in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land and building originally classified
as investment properties carried at fair value is
transferred to property, plant and equipment at a
deemed cost equal to its fair value at the date of
change in use as evidence by commencement of
owner occupation.

Leasehold land and buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
consolidated balance sheet at their revalued amount,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses and
subsequent accumulated depreciation. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the
balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of
leasehold land and buildings is credited to the asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised as an expense, in which case
this increase is credited to the consolidated income
statement to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of an asset is charged to the
consolidated income statement to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, on the asset revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that
asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of a
revalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplus is
transferred to retained profits.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or fair
value of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line method
on the following basis:

Leasehold land and buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equipment 5 years
Plant and machinery 10-15 years
Motor vehicles 6-10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will
be recovered principally through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition
is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the assets (or disposal groups) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’
(or disposal groups’) previous carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related tax.

The interest income from interest in distressed
assets and income from investment in distressed
assets through establishment of a special purpose
vehicle are recognised on a time basis by reference
to the estimated future cash flows and at the original
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash inflows arising from recoveries or collection,
net of the estimated future cash outflows arising
from directly attributable costs such as management
fee and incentive bonus through the expected life
of the distressed assets, to the assets’ net carrying
amounts.

Other interest income is accrued on a time basis
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.

Commission income is recognised when services are
provided.

Sales of petrochemical products are recognised
when goods are delivered and title have passed.

Property management fee income is recognised
when management service is rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
on a straight line basis over the term of the leases.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive the payment
have been established.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business (including revenue from pre-
completion contracts for the sale of development
properties) is recognised when all of the following
criteria are met:

o the significant risks and rewards of ownership
of the properties are transferred to buyers;

o neither continuing managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the properties are
retained;

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to the
Group; and

. the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

The above criteria are met when the construction of
relevant properties has been completed, the title of
the properties has been transferred or the properties
have been delivered to the purchasers pursuant to
the sales agreement whichever is earlier and the
collectibility of related receivables is reasonably
assumed. Deposits received on properties sold prior
to the date of revenue recognition are included in the
consolidated balance sheets under current liabilities.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one
of three categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss; loans and receivables; and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of
the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
has two subcategories: financial assets held-for-
trading; and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held-for-
trading may be designated as at fair value through
profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

° it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade receivables and
other receivables, amounts due from associates/
a jointly controlled entity/subsidiaries, restricted
bank balance, bank balances and cash and loan
receivables) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition. Such impairment losses will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

Loans and recivables — investment in distressed
assets through establishment of a special
purpose vehicle

Investment in distressed assets through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle is stated
at amortised cost using effective interest method less
impairment allowance. The impairment allowances
are made on the interest in distressed assets when
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of the occurrence of certain loss events that will
impact on the estimated future cash flows, and are
measured as the difference between the carrying
amount of the investment in distressed assets
through establishment of a special purpose vehicle
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The adjustment is recognised as impairment loss in
the consolidated income statement. Where the actual
future net cash flows are more than expected, the
revised cash flow will be discounted using the original
effective interest rate. The difference between the
carrying amount will be adjusted and credited to the
consolidated income statement to reflect the revised
cash flows discounted using the original effective
rate.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
that investment below its cost is considered to be
objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, other
receivables, amounts due from associates/jointly
controlled entity/subsidiaries, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When other receivables, trade receivables, amounts
due from associates/a jointly controlled entity/
subsidiaries are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if,
in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in profit or loss
in subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in equity. For available-for-sale debt investments,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial
liabilities are generally classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities designated
as at fair value through profit or loss, for which the
interest expense is excluded in net gains or losses.

Convertible note at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
represent convertible note designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial liability may be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about
the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Convertible note at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

The convertible note with embedded derivatives
whose economic risks and characteristics are not
closely related to those of the host contract (the
liability component) as a whole is designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the convertible notes designated as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, the entire convertible note with
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, bank
overdrafts, trade payables and other payables,
amount due to holding company of a shareholder,
loan from a shareholder, amounts due to subsidiaries
and amounts due to associates are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

R M

TESHEEE)
ERMBERRA(E)
HERFIEE ()

B8 55 2 1 2 F 1B B2 FE 7Y A 22 IR R 15
(%)

SOTET A AR ERELERER
&ﬁé%%tﬁﬁ%% #e (B EE
B EIBRIEEE  ROTHE
REARAESNBEREAFERENS
BMEfE-

BT BREEREREBH IR HKAE
ERRBaEREATERENEREA
& - AR E SR AR

*ﬁ?%l*%% W hi
PN

AL @A 1"

HbemAR(BEENR  RITEX
RN EAtER - AR REM
ENSRE BN —R2RERZERAF
R BN—BERRZER  BAHRER
AR R A E RER)  REKRKA
BRI RRIZ BN E -

AT A

HANR R ET 2 RARTATHRE BT
SRERERETERRLE



Silver Grant International Industries Limited $R 2B &2 5 R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=+—HIFFE

3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and include in

finance costs in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which they are incurred.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under another standard, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease
under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the assets is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit
as reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes items of income or expense that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or
recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries, associates and a jointly controlled
entity, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to the consolidated income
statement, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred
tax is also dealt with in equity.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in equity, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in equity.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
as a separate component of equity (the translation
reserve). Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. Land use rights
represent the prepaid lease payments of leasehold
interests in land under operating lease arrangements
which is classified as medium-term lease, except
for those held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation purpose and classified as investment
properties is carried at fair value.
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3.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose
of lease classification, leasehold land which title is
not expected to pass to the lessee by the end of the
lease term is classified as an operating lease unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire contract is classified as a finance
lease. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold interests
in land are accounted for as land use rights except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit
schemes for staff in the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong and Macau, (the “PRC”)
and to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
staff in Hong Kong are charged as expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet dates, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are discussed below.
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4.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Determination of fair value of structured finance
securities

The Group’s investment in structured finance
securities represent a security with interest
payments based on United States Treasury
Bond and distribution from preference shares in
a private company which invests in a portfolio
of asset-backed securities. The fair value of the
structured finance securities is determined by the
directors with reference to the valuation provided
by the counterparty financial institution. Details
of assumptions used to determine the fair value
provided by the counterparty financial institution are
set out in note 24.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group had gain of HK$1,715,000 (2007: loss of
HK$10,294,000) from the change in fair value of this
structured finance securities.
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the borrowings, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account
the cost of capital and the risk associated with the
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital
structure through new share issues and the issue of
new debt or the redemption of the existing debt.

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and
methods adopted, including criteria for recognition,
the basis of measurement and the basis on which
income and expenses are recognised, in respect of
each class of financial asset, financial liability and
equity instrument are disclosed in note 3.
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5. Financial instruments and capital disclosures 5. SRIAREXREEE)
(Continued)
Categories of financial instruments SRMIAZER
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
LY — T T eI — T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT FET FEIT
Financial assets SRMEE
Fair value through profit or A8z FRIZAT(E
loss FR IR
— Held-for-trading — ’HAEER 70,027 63,130 15,368 61,918
— Designated as fair — EBERRERE
value through profit BATERE
or loss 12,216 12,046 12,216 12,046
Loans and receivables B & EIGRIA 2,283,802 2,652,376 3,366,916 3,691,613
Available-for-sale financial A[{tHESFEE
assets 435,296 167,755 65,640 2,140
Financial liabilities tHas
Fair value through profit or A8z RIZ AT (E
loss o
— Designated as fair — BERRERE
value through profit BATRE
or loss 389,025 382,736 389,025 382,736
Amortised cost bS] DN 704,596 701,909 405,131 531,626
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s and the Company’s major financial
instruments include structured finance securities,
available-for-sale investments, interests in distressed
assets, investment in distressed asset through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle, held-
for-trading investments, amounts due from
associates and a jointly controlled entity, amounts
due from/to subsidiaries, trade receivables and
other receivables, loan receivables, restricted bank
balance, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, amounts due to associates, amount due
to holding company of a shareholder, loan from a
shareholder, borrowings, convertible note at fair
value through profit or loss. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure to market risks or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risk from prior
year.
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures
(Continued)

Market risks
Interest rate risk management

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its fixed-rate PRC government bond,
fixed-rate amounts due from associates and a
jointly controlled entity, fixed-rate loan receivables,
fixed-rate borrowings and convertible note as at
31 December 2008. The Group’s fair value interest
rate risk related primarily to its fixed-rate amounts
due from associates and a jointly controlled entity,
fixed-rate borrowings, convertible note and loan
from a shareholder as at 31 December 2007. The
Company's fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its amounts due from subsidiaries and a
jointly controlled entity and convertible note as at 31
December 2007 and 2008.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk primarily
relates to its bank balances carried at prevailing
market rate, floating-rate borrowings and other
payable to minority shareholder of a subsidiary as at
31 December 2008. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk primarily related to its bank balances and
restricted bank balance carried at prevailing market
rate and floating-rate borrowings as at 31 December
2007. The Company’s cash flow interest rate risk
primarily relates to its bank balances, amounts due
from subsidiaries and floating-rate borrowings as
at 31 December 2008 and 2007. The Group and
the Company has not used any interest rate swaps
in order to mitigate its exposure associated with
fluctuations relating to interest cash flows. However,
the management monitors interest rate exposure and
will consider other necessary actions when significant
interest rate exposure is anticipated. In addition, the
Group has concentration of interest rate risk on its
floating rate bank balances and borrowings which
expose the Group significantly towards the change in
the People's Bank of China interest rate.

The Group and the Company has not used any
derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk, however, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider other necessary
actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

TMIAERERKEE)

miS AR
FIE R EHE

AEEZ AFEFERRBREAR LRER
ZETN\FF+ZA=+—HZHEKRFEH
BEEHFEEME - BIE MR EERE
Y Bt & 2 ) Ko — R HL R A B O
REEMERTENRKERRENEZ
BERABERE - AEENXERQ
FEEAXRBER_FTTLF+ A
=+ —BRBEEFN R MR SR
Al e — A EHE S R R~ B E A &R
fEE -~ ATRER R —RBRRAOER -
ARAR_ZBBLFR_TBN\F+ =
A=t+—BNEERAFEEARRE
IR M5 Bt B8 2 B R Ko — PRl A RI4%E 6 2 AR
SRR ES

AEEZRERARRAREAR ERZER
HERMSHRANRITER - FEF
KA ENEBEREMEN TR T
FHt_A=THHBRARLEER - K
KEZRERNEXABRERN ERERR
—EREF T A=+ BEEAH
MHEHEGSF BNRITERREER D
BHBRIZFBNERGFENEE - A5H
ZERERMERABRERN EER-_FTN
FR-_ETHFRITHER - BUHBL
ARRFBNEFENER - AEE
R AN B3 5 R AR M R P RS 400
LEREBENBRSRBBIKE - A
o EEESNRERETERLER
HIE R A R E R R E B2 A R R
Hp M BEOHEITE - R AREE
SHMERBRNEIRF BN EET B R
THRHERMEER  ERARBITH R E
HAKEEEATE -

oA 82 8 A A B30 3 P AT 167 4 T
SRR RER - AT EEEHF
2 [ i 17 B 52 3 7 TR T B S AR R
BB 8 5 T SRR L .04 T B
78 -



Annual Report 2008 4F i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2008
B FEEF A =+—HIFE

5. Financial instruments and capital disclosures 5.
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to the floating-rate
borrowings and other payable to minority shareholder
of a subsidiary, floating-rate amounts due from
subsidiaries and variable-rate bank balances at the
balance sheet date and the reasonably possible
change taking place at the beginning of each year
and held constant throughout the year. The sensitivity
rate represents the director’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rate. The
directors adjusted the sensitivity rate from 50 basis
points to 150 basis points for assessing interest
rate risk on the above balances (except for bank
balances) after considering the impact of the volatile
financial market conditions after the third quarter of
2008. The directors continued to use 50 basis points
for assessing interest rate risk on bank balances
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because they considered that the fluctuations on HERNRMNEEZZ20OT ¢
the interest rate on bank balances would be less
significant. If interest rates had been 150 basis points
(2007: 50 basis points) higher/lower for the above
balances (except for bank balances) and 50 basis
points (2007: 50 basis points) higher/lower for bank
balances and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on post-tax profit for the year is
as follows:
The Group The Company
rEE AN
2008 2007 2008 2007
SEE\F kel —TT/\F [Ekdees
HK$°000 HK$'000 WIEX0l0] HK$°000
FET TFET TFET T
Increase (decrease) in 0 Ok ) FERRER
post-tax profit for the il
year 613 8,162 2,689 3,008

In the director’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management

The directors considered that the Group’s and
the Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk
is significant primarily arisen from the amounts
due from subsidiaries of HK$1,980,307,000 (2007:
HK$1,752,906,000) which were not denominated in
the functional currency of the Company.

Other than the amounts due from subsidiaries, the
directors considered that the Group’s exposure to
foreign currency exchange risk is insignificant as the
majority of the Group’s transactions are denominated
in the functional currency of each individual group
entity.

As at the balance sheet date, the major financial
assets and liabilities of the Group denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of
the respective group entities are amount due from
a jointly controlled entity, bank balances and cash
and convertible note. The major financial assets and
liabilities of the Company denominated in currencies
other than the Company’s functional currency are
amounts due from subsidiaries, a jointly controlled
entity, bank balances and cash and convertible note.
The equivalent amount of Hong Kong dollars are set
out below:
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures 5. SRIAREXREEE)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) mERE(E)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) P B (4 )
The Group The Company
ZREE AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
CEE)N\F il — T )\F ek
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Amounts due from )= YNEIE O
subsidiaries
— Renminbi (“RMB”) — AR — — 1,980,307 1,752,906
Amount due a from jointly — fEUS—FE HERIHZE HI AT
controlled entity KIE
— United States Dollars — =0t 59,250 120,206 59,250 120,206
— RMB — ARK 3,824 = 3,824 —
63,074 120,206 63,074 120,206
Bank balances and cash  R{T&#B KRS
— Hong Kong Dollars — BT 1,754 1,640 - -
— United States Dollars — ETT 2,708 6,770 449 3,628
— RMB — AR 13,535 346,477 13,535 346,477
17,997 354,887 13,984 350,105
Convertible note AR
— United States Dollars — ETT 389,025 382,736 389,025 382,736
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures 5. SRIAREXREEE)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) mERE(E)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued) P B f R (4 )
The directors considered that, as Hong Kong dollars EERBHARBITHEETES - FUET
is pegged to United States dollars, the Group is HETHEXRZEESM S - NEEWEE
not subject to significant foreign currency risk from Fa B KRN S E ke - Bt R8T
change in foreign exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars HERETTINN B A INE H) IE R F B
against United States dollars and hence only consider TEERMEDT - R EAMRB AR
the sensitivity of the change in foreign exchange SEAB TTAERE BB B B TTIRITAE A
rate of Hong Kong dollars against currencies other R BURE DT IR ER SN - BB BEEENL
than United States dollars. The sensitivity analysis PEE AR (ZZEZTEF : 5%) B
for relevant subsidiaries with functional currencies KBTS RINE H AT 5 HIR A
not denominated in Hong Kong dollars but having BB  c AR T NFERTIHK
bank balances deposited in Hong Kong Dollars are 5 EEFEBUREHES% E 10% A=
also excluded as the amount is insignificant. 10% ZEFHhINE R B B o NIEBURE 5
(2007: 5%) sensitivity rate represents the directors’ B RINEE BT E RN E10% © B&
assessment of the reasonably possible change in Efb ] S E=ERFE - HIE L USR]
foreign exchange rate. As a result of the volatile SIBZFE - N T ZIEHERTE BB
financial market in 2008, the directors adjusted the HEMEB(BRETLIN 5510% R i &
sensitivity rate from 5% to 10% for the purpose Az - EEEIEER10% 3
of assessing foreign currency risk. The sensitivity BEARFRBMAERERRR A RN
analysis below demonstrated the effect of the foreign & o
exchange differences by 10% (2007: 5%) change
in exchange rate of Hong Kong dollars against the
relevant foreign currencies other than United States
dollars, assuming all other variables were held
constant. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit where Hong Kong dollars
weaken 10% (2007: 5%) against the relevant foreign
currencies other than United States dollars. For a
10% (2007: 5%) strengthening of Hong Kong dollars,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
post-tax profit for the year.
The Group The Company
AEH AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
LY — T T eI — T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET

Profit or loss iR 199,978 105,110 199,767 104,969
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures
(Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

In the directors’ opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Price risk management

Equity securities

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
through its available-for-sale equity investments and
held-for-trading investments. For convertible note
at fair value through profit or loss, in addition to fair
value interest rate risk, the Group is also exposed to
security price risk in respect of the conversion option
embedded in the convertible note which allows the
note holder to convert to the Company’s ordinary
shares. However, sensitivity analysis in relation to the
impact on fair value of the embedded option due to
change in Company’s share price and share price
volatility is not presented as the entire convertible
note was redeemed subsequent to balance sheet
date. For available-for-sale investments measured at
cost less impairment as the fair value could not be
measured reliably, they have not been included in the
sensitivity analysis.

TMIEARERKEE)

mEER(E)

S EmEE EE ()

EEERRREBRES ML EHEB D

BRENFTRRR ©

Esm b EE

R EN L

AEEREA R ERERERFER
BERENEAEERAZFEBRR -
AR BHRRIZAFERE 2 T RERRE
mE @ RRFEMEREBRIN - NEE TR
iR B ER R - YRR ERA R
BREBNBBENTARBRBAER
ARV EBBRED - AMABARFRK
0 B% & 8 K A 40 #O R B 1% T 4 R ALY
Bz X HENBRESTREME A
BEREENGEEBREZHBEEM R
T2 - ARAHERESIBRA A T
ERE  HRNEAFETRANFELE
B B TERERBRESNET -



Silver Grant International Industries Limited R 2B &

IXARA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS &

For the year ended 31 December 2008

BE_FZ

o

ENFLA=1—HILFE

B BRI

Financial instruments and capital disclosures 5. SRIAREXREEE)
(Continued)
Market risks (Continued) SRR (E)
Price risk management (Continued) EBEEREE(E)
Equity securities (Continued) RAGEZ (&)
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined TR BRES N IHREER 2EH
based on the exposure to equity price risks at ERRRMETE - WEHEMNESTA
the reporting date. If the prices of the respective Z BRGSO 10% @ & “Eﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
available-for-sale investments in listed equity A EREZERFTE  HAREERARD
securities and held-for-trading investments had been HRERE R :
10% higher/lower, assuming all other variables were
held constant, the impact to the Group and the
Company would be:
The Group The Company
TEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
TET)/\F il — T T)\F ke
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT FET FEr
Held-for-trading FIEEERE
investments:
Increase/decrease in post- FEERRBF
tax profit for the year #h0,/w 7,003 6,313 1,537 6,191
Available-for-sale AIEHERE -
investments:
Increase/decrease in FERRT R,
post-tax profit for the B (ZETLF:
year (2007: increase/ HitvE &GN,
decrease in other )
reserve) 4,881 16,027 - —

10% change in equity price represents the directors’
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
equity price.

As at 31 December 2007 and 2008, the Group is
exposed to concentration risk on the available-for-
sale investment in listed equity securities and held-
for-trading investments as they comprise equity
shares issued by several companies listed on the
New York Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange.

m%@ﬂrfﬁ§$ﬂ%%%ﬁﬁ%7
BRI EEE -

R-_ZEZT+FR_ZTZETNF+ A
=+—H AEBRAHELERER L
TRABLERFEEEREMS * FE
BEETHRR - BAZFREARH
WX SRR T EMAE T QAT
MR inHEas o
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalent to
fulfill the normal liquidity needs and to keep banking
facilities available to the Group to prevent temporary
liquidity shortfall. The directors monitor the utilisation
of borrowings and ensure compliance with loan
covenants.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s and the
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group and the Company can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures 5. SRIAREXREEE)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRR(E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) TEEZFZE(E)
The Group AEE
Total
contractual
undiscounted
Less than 6 months More than cashflow Carrying
6 months to 1 year 1-2years  2-5 years 5years RANKFTEZ value
SRMER MERE-F -EWE Y 12 BATE  RERER BERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT AT AT AT
As at 31 December RZZBNFTZR
2008 =Tt
Trade payables JERTHRAL 113,833 - - - - 113,833 113,833
Other payebles EftifE(T3 192,164 - - - - 192,164 192,164
Amount due to an FEf—ERE A
associate 13,500 - - - - 13,500 13,500
Borrowings A8 36,049 318,356 28,088 11,337 13,430 407,260 385,099
Convertible note (note) ~ TRRFE (#i2) 389,025 - - - - 389,025 389,025
744,571 318,356 28,088 11,337 18,430 1,116,782 1,093,621
As at 31 December R=Z2EtE+2R
2007 =t+-8
Trade payables BRI 76,725 - - - - 76,725 76,725
Other payebles HA R 130,999 - - - - 130,999 128,628
Amounts due to ERBE AR
associates 162,002 = = = = 162,002 162,002
Amount due to holding ~ ER—BRE 2121k
company of a AR
shareholder 96,676 - - - - 96,676 96,676
Borrowings [#E 26,144 217,031 1397 4,006 - 248,578 237,878
Convertible note (note) ~ ATAREE (f7) 3,071 3,071 415,643 - - 421,785 382,736
495,617 220,102 47,040 4,006 - 1,136,765 1,084,645
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5. Financial instruments and capital disclosures 5. SRIAREXREEE)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRR(E)
Liquidity tables (Continued) TEELIZ (E)
The Company /N
Total
undiscounted
Less than 6 6 months cashflow Carrying
months to 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years AEZE value
HRMER ~ERZ-§ -EfE ZERE it HEfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
AT FET AT FET AT AT
As at 31 December 2008  R=BEZNE+Zf
=t-8
Other payables EfbER 1,208 - - - 1,208 1,208
Amounts due to an EfBE AR
associate 13,500 - - - 13,500 13,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries  ERHEBAT: 385,823 - - - 385,823 385,823
Borrowings [EE 699 699 1,335 2,547 5,280 4,600
Convertible note (note) AERRE (Wit 389,025 = = = 389,025 389,025
790,255 699 1,335 2,547 794,836 794,156
As at 31 December 2007 R-EEtE{=R
=t-R
Other payebles EAbfERF 1,157 - - - 1157 1,167
Amounts due to subsidiaries  ERFIEARI 524,719 - - - 524,719 524,719
Borrowings g 730 730 1,397 4,006 6,863 5,750
Convertible note (note) AERRE W) 3,071 3,071 415,643 - 491,785 382,736
529,677 3,801 47,040 4,006 954,524 914,362
Note: Hiat -

As at 31 December 2008, the undiscounted cash flow of
convertible note is based on the actual redemption amount
as it has been fully redeemed subsequent to the balance
sheet date. As at 31 December 2007, the undiscounted
cash flow of convertible note is based on the interest
payments and contractual redemption amount.

RZZTZNF+_A=+—H  TRRER
MARBBRSRRERZEBEREE B RK
EHER 2 ERERNSREAEN - R -TF
tFET-A=1+—H  ABREREEREZ KRR
REeMAERMEH RE KBRS AT
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures
(Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s and Company’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to
perform their obligations as at the balance sheet date
in relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated
in the consolidated balance sheet and Company’s
balance sheet respectively. The Group has significant
concentration of credit risk in respect to other
receivables, especially for amount due from buyer of
the disposed subsidiaries of HK$165,620,000 (2007:
HK$165,620,000), amounts due from two associates
of HK$982,626,000 (2007: HK$781,802,000), amount
due from a jointly controlled entity of HK$63,074,000
(2007: HK$122,630,000), loan receivables from an
independent third party of total HK$79,790,000
(2007: nil) and the cash collected from distressed
asset but not yet distributed (as detailed in note
30) of HK$144,299,000 (2007: HK$27,327,000).
The Company has concentration of credit risk with
respect to its amounts due from subsidiaries of
HK$3,096,753,000 (2007: HK$2,958,547,000) which
are mainly due from ten subsidiaries.
minimise the credit risk, the Group and the Company

In order to

review the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt and each major counterparty noted in
other receivables, associates and jointly controlled
entity loan receivables and the cash collected from
distressed asset but not yet distributed throughout
the year to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts as at the
balance sheet date. In this regard, the Group and
the Company consider that the Group’s and the
Company’s credit risk are significantly reduced.
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5. Financial instruments and capital disclosures

(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has a concentration of credit risk on
liquid funds deposited with a few major banks, the
credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings

assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has exposure to credit risk in respect
to its investment in distressed assets through
establishment of a special purpose vehicle. The
underlying assets of the distressed assets are debts
that are either already in default, under bankruptcy
protection, or in distress and heading toward such
a condition. The collectivity of these debts might
affect the amount recoverable from the investment in
distressed assets through establishment of a special

purpose vehicle.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities are determined as follows:

° the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to

quoted market bid prices;

° the fair value of structured finance securities
is determined with reference to the valuation
provided by the counterparty financial
institution. Major assumptions are stated in note

24;

° the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from

observable current market transactions; and
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Financial instruments and capital disclosures 5. SRIAREXREEE)
(Continued)

Fair value (Continued) AFEEE)

e the fair value of option-based derivative e DHRAEMMVTAETIAEERZ

instruments (as included in convertible note),
is estimated using option pricing model (the

binomial model).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the financial statements

approximate their fair values.

RPE(BERATEEREEAR) A
HIREHEEA A E -

R B AR AR R
MERAERSRE &2 BEEREM
2 DTERF -

Revenue and Segment Information 6. WARZTEEHR
2008 2007
—EEN\F i
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Revenue is analysed as follows: WADHIT :
Sales of properties YIS HE — 148,600
Sales of petrochemical products Al TEMREE 45,662 —
Property management fee income PEEEEIA 147,068 105,226
Interest income from interest in distressed TR &ERE N SWA
assets - 18,307
Income from investment in distressed BIBK T FRENFHEBIRETR
assets through establishment of a special ~ BEZUA
purpose vehicle 39,993 100,220
Rental income HE WA 54,431 67,387
Dividend income from listed securities SR B A 1,132 —
288,286 439,740
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Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(A)

Business segments

The Group is organised into six operating
divisions: distressed assets business,
investments, sales of properties, property
leasing, property management and production
and trading of petrochemical products. These
operating divisions are the basis on which the
Group reports its primary segment information.

Production and trading of petrochemical
products is a new business segment of the
Group upon the acquisition of subsidiaries in
2008 (note 49).

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by business segments is as follows:

6.

B BHRME

WAR D BEER (&)

(A)

ES Pk

AEBHNEEEILFIENK : T
REEX® RE WEHE -

MEMRE WEEERABLET
EmEEREE - hFLERM
EAREBEEREELDBEERD
i -

Am{tIERMEENBEERAE
BT NFUWEH B R RE
B —IEFT 10 8 (FiaE 49) ©

KEIH&A&%F&%‘%A@Z
DT ¢

Year ended 31 December 2008

BE-EE/\Et-A=t-AL
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing management  EHEIER Others  Consolidated
TREERH k& NEHE NERE NEER LERHE At B4
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
77 7T FE7 77 71 77 FAL 71
Revenue WA 39,093 1,132 54431 147,068 45,662 - 288,266
Results F1
Segment results DEES 33902 (58,010) (24,342) 6,262 11,597 (6,328) - (36,899)
Other unallocated income, ~~ EHAAERA-
gains and losses YaRER 189,857
Revaluation deficit fEnzER
of leasehold properties B (19,141)
Loss on convertible note NERRRAT
classified as liabilities at E%W-}
fair value through profitor  &fE#TAH
loss REEER (6,289)
Unallocated corporate ATFARAA
expenses £R (35,12)
Finance costs EBER (25,520)
Share of results of EiBEDT
associates 2 24N
Shars of results of ointly BIERRE)
controlled entities INES (613) - - - - (1813 (2426)
Profit before taxation BHaai 86,942
Taxation charge b (5,190)
Profit for the year ERgH 81,752
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued)

(A)

Business segments (Continued)

6. WARZEERE)

(A) EBHE(E)

Year ended 31 December 2007
HE_SRLET-A=T-AL

Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing  management AL IER Others  Consolidated
AREERR 3 VS VS nEER FERHE A s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAT TAT TR TAT TR 7T
Revenue WA 118,527 — 148,600 67,387 105,226 - - 439,740
Results £
Segment results LS 38,211 22,805 4,604 (19,926) (28,360 - - 17,384
Other unallocated income, ~ EfASEMA
gains and losses haRER 244877
Reversal of revaluation defict  ENEE(
of leasehold properties EERE 8121
Gain on convertible note NERRE
classified as liabites at ATBRESE
fair value through profitor ~ ABEZAERK
loss B e 19,376
Unallocated corporate ATARAE
expenses £R (40,077)
Finance costs BIkER (39,121)
Gain on disposal of HEWBAR
subsidiaries Wi 48,499
Share of results of EBENT
associates F 48,786
Share of result of a jointly Bl AAR
controlled entity 1HIAF
- (19073 - - - - - - (19073
Profit before taxation BARRR 288,772
Taxation credit FEBA 3,059
Profit for the year ERgH| 323,831
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6. WARDSEERE)
(A) Business segments (Continued) (A) ¥EBHEE)
(i)  Other information iy Hm&ER
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemical
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing  management FalIER Corporate  Consolidated
TREERH R& ES WxEgE NXER 4ERKE i &

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T fér fir i3 T fé#r T T

Year ended 31 December HECZRNE

2008 ToAST-ALEE
Capital additions BRRE

— property, plant and - % BERRE

equipment - - - 55,657 4,500 1,910 12 61,979

— Investment properties - REN% = - - 1,202 - - - 1,202

— land use rights - LifERE - - - - - 797 - 797
Depreciation il = = 325 4,588 1,868 1,987 2,906 11,614
Impairment loss on deposits, ke BERREMERR

prepayments, and other REEE

receivables - - 21,115 - - - - 21,115
Impairment loss on available-for-  AItHERBEERE

sale investments - 25,390 - - - - - 25,390
Amortisation of land use rights 3t FiE& - - - - - 46 - 46
Change in fair value of structured ~ &BMSRESZ

finance securities LTEEE - (1,715) - - - - = (1,715)
Net loss on disposal of property,  HEWE BERRE

plant and equipment EEX/BETE - - 129 (16) 50 = = 163

Year ended 31 December 2007 HE-FTtE

TASt-BIEER

Capital additions BARE

— property, plant and - % BERRE

equipment - - - 1,579 2,512 - 682 4773

— investment properties - RENE = - - 3,928 - - = 3,928
Depreciation il = = 147 3,502 1,543 = 2,617 7,809
Impairment loss on intersst in TRAERRREER

distressed assets 80,248 - - - - - - 80,248
Impairment loss on goodwil HEAESE - - - - 26,524 - - 26,524
Change in fair value of structured ~ &BHSRESZ

finance seourities ATEEY - 10,204 - - - - - 10,204

Gain on disposal of available-for-  HEAMHER B
sale investments

Net gain on disposal of property, ~ HE%ZE BERRE
plant and equipment EEhEFE - = = (70) = - - (70)

(38,649) = = = = = (38,643)
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6. WARDSEERE)
(A) Business segments (Continued) (A) EBHEE)

(i) An analysis of the Group’s consolidated (i) AEBEGEEEBEBERIZR
balance sheet by principal activities is as FELEFEHE DB DT
follows: T

Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemcial
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing  management R IER Others  Consolidated
TREERR RE kS NEER hEER LERHE it 58
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT AT FAT AT FAT AT FAT
As at 31 December 2008 R=BRNFT2A
=t-A
Assels HE
Segment assets NBEE 161,861 597,374 659 2,212,483 34,873 380,978 = 3,378,228
Interest in associates BENTER 783,991
Interest in jointly controlled LEEHARRS
entities 12,973 - - - = - 53,744 66,717
Amount due from associates  FEMBEAF 982,626
Amount dus from a jointly RU-BRREHA
controlled entity GES 63,074 - - - - - - 63,074
Unallocated corporate assets A PARAREE 1,135,506
Consolidated tofel assets GREELE 6,410,142
Liabilties f
Segment liabiltes REEE - f0g21) (694 (104256 (179,20 (28,838 - (323,920
Amounts due to assoclates ERBELTH (13,500)
Taxation payable EfiHE (140,939)
Deferred tax liabilties EEHEAE (87.954)
Unallocated corporate AFARAARE
liabilties (T71,778)
Consolidated total liablities GRgakEE (1,338,091)
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6. WARDSEERE)
(A) Business segments (Continued) (A) ¥EBHEE)
(i) (Continued) (i) (%)
Production
and trading of
Distressed petrochemcial
assets Sales of Property Property products
business  Investments properties leasing  management  FRIIER Others  Consolidated
TREEER RE NEHE NEHE NEER LERHE Af Er
HK8'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TAT T AT AT AT AT AT

As at 31 December 2007 R-2BtEZR

=t-A
Assets AE
Segment assets HEEE 270,868 242917 21971 2,242,841 26,007 - - 2,803,664
Interest in associates N 1,110,780
Interest in a jointly controlled ~ ~FEFRSIAT
entity s 13,587 = = = = = = 13,587
Amount due from associates  EXBARTH 781,802

Amount due from a jointly FU-RERE]

controlled entity AR 122,630 - - - - - - 102,630
Unallocated corporate assets ~ ATARATEE 1,548,646
Consolidated total assets GREELE 6,381,109
Liabiles ff
Segment liabiltes SEERE (96,676 (19,409) (663) (89.997) (145,557) - - (352,496
Amount due to associates ERBEATH (162,002)
Taxation payable EftHR (136,629)
Deferred tax liabilties FithEaE (91,928)
Unallocated corporate AFARLTEE

liabilities (619,369)

Consoldated total liabliies GrakEE (1,362.424)
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6. Revenue and segment information (Continued) 6. WARDSEERE)
(B) Geographical segments (B) g5 3
()  An analysis of the Group’s revenue by i) AEBWAZRBEF /S
geographical location of customers is as UEEDHDTAT :
follows:
Revenue

WA

2008 2007
= US —TT
CLCH  HK$'000
FET TETT

Hong Kong a5 1,508 306
The PRC AR 286,778 439,434

288,286 439,740

(i) An analysis of the carrying amount of (iy TEEMENBEAE SIS
segment assets analysed by geographical MO BEERBEDTE
location in which the assets are located is N
as follows:

Segment assets Capital additions
PEEE BXRE

2008 2007 2008 2007

A UL TT T I — T
LLCH I HK$'000 EGLENM HK$000
FET FET FET SR

Hong Kong & 133,240 242,977 51,756 681
The PRC HE 3,244,988 2,560,687 12,222 8,020

3,378,228 2,803,664 63,978 8,701
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B BRI

7. Other income, gains and losses 7. HMWA - WERERE
2008 2007
—ET)\F g
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Interest income FLEMA
— bank deposits — RITER 9,951 10,788
— structured finance securities — BB ERE 1,320 2,158
— jointly controlled entity — HEFEHI AR 2,717 7,489
— associates = Haﬁé.-f’AT 90,708 76,732
— loan receivables — EER 7,567 -
— others — Hfth 887 2,086
Commission income HeBA 4,368 2,467
Net foreign exchange gain M 5 Uk 2 )RR 75,962 147,380
Net (loss) gain on disposal of property, HEYWE BENZEZ (Bi8)
plant and equipment W5 e (163) 70
Others Hih 2,228 332
195,545 249,502
8. Finance costs 8. HMKEA
2008 2007
—ET)\F g
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on bank borrowings IRITEEFR B
— wholly repayable within five years — ARTFERNEBEE 15,246 18,968
— not wholly repayable within five years ,\\\/,\Fﬂiw%%ﬂﬁi% 348 —
Interest on other loans wholly repayable ARAFRNREBEENEMER
within five years B 3,698 10,008
Interest on loan from a shareholder wholly — BEREERNBEEE —ZIRER
repayable within five years BRF B - 3,906
Interest on convertible note classified as FTE@%*?@$13F5E5%¥E%
liabilities at fair value through profit or BEZREZER B
loss 6,228 6,239
25,520 39,121
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9.

Directors’ remuneration

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
directors were as follows:

o.

EEME

ENRANTEEZHOMESNT :

2008 2007
“BRN\E “TRLE

Performance

MPF bhonus

Salariesand  contribution (note iv)
Fees other benefits V-6 RAFAL Total Total
e EERHEMER it (i i) ] f%
Name of director Esttg HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
FEr Fér FEr Fér FE7 AT
Chen Xiaozhou RZA 500 - - - 500 500
Hui Xiao Bing BIE 500 - - - 500 500
Gao Jian Min BER 500 2,519 12 900 3,991 3,978

(note iii)
(i i)
Liu Tianni AR 400 - - - 400 400
Gu Jianguo BRE 400 - - - 400 400
Chen Yongeun (note ) Wi (Bt i) - - - - - 400
Yuen Wing Shing il 300 - - - 300 300
Chow Kwok Wai BElE 400 1,091 12 900 2,403 2,442
Kang Dian A 400 - - - 400 400
Zhang Lu R 400 - - - 400 400
Hung Muk Ming HAH 300 - - - 300 300
Tang Baog (note i ERE (W i) 400 - - - 400 =
Total &z 4,500 3,670 24 1,800 9,994 10,020
Notes: Hie -

(i) Mr. Chen Yongcun resigned as director of the
Company on 27 February 2008.

(i) Mr. Tang Baogi was appointed as director of the
Company on 14 March 2008.

(i) ~ The amount includes the estimated value of quarter
provided amounting to approximately HK$891,000
(2007: HK$779,000).

(iv) The performance related incentive payments are
determined having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.

(i) BRXKTFAER-_ZEZNF_A -1+
BBEIARRES -

(i) BEREEERZZEZNF=A+HEA
BERERARAES -

(i) EELEREHEBESNMGHEERD
891,000/8 TL(ZF T £ F : 779,000

BT °

(iv) BRBEBZEATIRZE[MARE
KmiGBELEE
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10. Employees’ remuneration 10. EEM =S
The five highest paid individuals of the Group AEEBRAEAERFALTEER(ZES
included two (2007: two) directors, details of whose tE:MBES  BEMHESFIHE
emoluments are set out in note 9 above. The REXKFEI ES=(ZFTZFT L5 :
emoluments of the remaining three (2007: three) Z)BRATHMESHT ¢

individuals are as follows:

2008 2007
—EEN\F meias
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e REMET 2,544 4,004
Performance related incentive payments BRIFEWR 2 RE 1,507 2,340
Retirement benefits costs RONR AR A 36 33

4,087 6,377
Their emoluments are within the following bands: BEHMESN T TR :

Number of employees

BEAH
2008 2007
TESN\F meled
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 721,000,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T %1,500,000% 7T 1 =
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 72 2,000,000/48 7T 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/& 7T %E3,500,000/8 7T — 1
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11. Taxation

11. F1\E

2008 2007

— UG TTF
HK$°000 QL&Y
FET T

Taxation charge (credit) comprises:

BIEH () B :

Hong Kong Profits Tax BBENEH
— overprovision in prior year — LARTEE Z IR 2 - (20)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PR EATISH 12,177 134,028

12,177 134,008

Deferred taxation (note 43) BEFEFIE (H17£43)
— current year — RFE (7,073)  (187,439)

— attributable to change in tax rate

— EREEBIIH

86 (31,628)

(6,987)  (169,067)

Taxation charge (credit) attributable to the — ZAAF RMB AT FTERIES L

Company and its subsidiaries (A

5,190 (35,059)

On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008, which reduced
corporate profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%
effective from the year of assessment 2008/2009.
Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the assessable profits for the
year. The deferred tax balance has been adjusted
to reflect the tax rate that is expected to apply to
the respective periods when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled. No tax was payable for the
year, as tax losses were incurred for the subsidiaries
with operations in Hong Kong. For the year ended
31 December 2007, the charge for the year to Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been relieved by approximately
HK$103,000 as a result of tax losses brought forward
from previous years.

RZEZENFASAAZF+AH &F
MOAEMIB008 MTEHEE  #H
2008/2009 st F [ 16 2 A al K5
MEHR17.5% NFHE16.5% ° At * &K
FE 2 HBNEH T AF AR R
#16.5%HR(ZZ T LF 1 17.5%) °
BEFHIBERECAEURMEEES S
HEBEEFERNE R ZER 2T
Ko EFRWEIEBTMAFES L  RE
ERBBEECHNBRARGEHEE
B-#HEZ-_ZTT+F+=-_A=1+—8
IEEFE  FAEBMNEHOBIES S
ERAEFEEETNREEEEERR
103,000/87T °
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11.

Taxation (Continued)

The taxation charge of the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax for the year has been made based on the
Group’s estimated assessable profits calculated
in accordance with the relevant income tax laws
applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the People’s Republic of China
promulgated the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”)
by Order No. 63 of the President of the People’s
Republic of China. On 6 December 2007, the
State Council of the PRC issued Implementation
Regulations of the New Law. The New Law and
Implementation Regulations will change the tax rate
from 33% to 25% for certain subsidiaries from 1
January 2008. The deferred tax balance has been
adjusted to reflect the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the respective periods when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled.

11.

BLE(E)

FRZPBREEMEHIAEERF
2 B B 2 B DA R B FERR B0 M) 258 R
BRTEBABIGH ERMS 2 MAS H -

R-ZZLF=A+XB  PEBFH#
THREARKMBEEERMAERBOE(H
BEDE3H - R_FELF+ A
NB B R R B BOAR T
B e BOARBITERME TET
MEBAREANKE  A38%[IE
25% —ETN\F-A—HRBRER - E
FEFR IR 45 SR A UL 1F SR B DA IR R TR R
HEMEZEREEXNAGEEROHK

):i;( o
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BE_FZ

11.

ENFLA=1—HILFE

Taxation (Continued)

The tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before taxation per the consolidated

income statement as follows:

BIR (&)

FRABIE (WA TR E
B 0 il g A SRR T

B BRI

Wk

2008 2007
—EEN\FE g
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Profit before taxation FRAE R A 86,942 288,772
Taxation at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax 127 Bl 2 PS5 5 R 25%
rate of 25% (2007: the Hong Kong Profits ZERLF  FAMNEM
Tax rate of 17.5%) (note i) MEA7.5%)5TE 2 HIE
(H1ati) 21,736 50,535
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for FR BT B AT
tax purpose e 11,033 14,324
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax FLEL TS i R AR R A RO 75
purpose FE (21,509) (62,295)
Tax effect of share of results of associates (& AR EENF ISR L (5,618) (8,537)
Tax effect of share of result of a jointly B (L — R G AR ZEER
controlled entity MG & 607 3,338
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIEEENHRIETE 8,853 6,032
Tax effect of different tax rates of REMBEERSERMBA
subsidiaries operating in other DRI E AT TE5 E
jurisdictions - 13,978
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss HIBR AR RIER MR TS ER
previously not recognised M2 - (18)
Decrease in opening deferred tax liability AR 5| B ARTE T
resulting from decrease in applicable tax HMIBEEEmD
rate 86 (31,628)
Income tax exemption (note ii) FriStizate (M1aF i) (9,998) (20,768)
Overprovision in prior year LATEF S R RR e 43 - (20)
Taxation charge (credit) for the year FABEZE A) 5,190 (85,059)

Notes:

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate is used in tax i
reconciliation for the year because the Group's profit
has been primarily derived from the operations in the
PRC after the acquisition of subsidiaries as disclosed

in note 49.

ii. Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the i

Hit

ey A 7 S L A M R BB 28 4 (S0 3
49) R FIEBE R AT ENLE - A
B 4 2 BT BR DA R B S
Bist# o

RIBHEBBERIOER - BBKIL

PRC, income from investment in distressed assets
through establishment of a special purpose vehicle is
not subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax.

FRBHHBRETREE G ML
TRERPBECERSHEEZA
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12. Profit for the year

12. FAEF

2008 2007
—EZ)N\F pmsiges
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEr
Profit for the year has been arrived at FRZERLSHK (5TA) :
after charging (crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration = EENEN S 2,190 2,119
Amortisation of land use rights =43 (55 PR RE B G 46 —
Depreciation e 11,614 7,809
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses TF&KANTAE M 47,351 138,245
Amortization of other asset (note 28) Hih & E#E (Mi728) 1,371 1,371
Operating lease rentals in respect of land T REF2EERNES
and buildings 4,811 8,651
Staff costs including directors’ BTERBESHIARW Tz
remuneration set out in note 9 and the EEME RRRER
retirement benefit costs of HK$5,267,000 5,267,000/ (ZZEZT+4F
(2007: HK$3,727,000) 3,727,000/87T) 87,019 72,230
Net loss (gain) on disposal of property, LEYIE BB R R EEE 2 EE
plant and equipment (=) 58 163 (70)
Rental income under operating leases, LB ZES WA BRAS
less outgoings of HK$2,195,000 (2007: 2,195,000 T (ZTTLF:
HK$2,789,000) 2,789,000/87T) (52,236) (64,598)

117
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13. Earnings per share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per

share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of
the Company is based on the following data:

13. BERER
RRAFEBREAEE ABEHESRE
AEEERHNTBRE T SETE A

48 .
=

2008 2007
—ET)\F ekl
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Earnings: &R :
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings AT EFREREF Z &7
per share (profit for the year attributable (ERBIRAFEE ABEEA
to equity holders of the Company) Y A1) 87,057 322,869
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares in AR AR Z B L #E T
respect of convertible notes: Rz E
— gain on convertible note classified as — RERREATEEER
liabilities at fair value through profit or HhRABEZATBRRERY
loss U 2= - (19,376)
— finance costs — W% ER - 6,239
Earnings for the purpose of diluted earnings AT EGRESET 2 27
per share 87,057 309,732

Number of shares

R4 EE
2008 2007
—pens I
In thousand In thousand
Fie FHR
Number of shares: REOEA :
Weighted average number of shares for the FAFTEGREREFZ
purpose of basic earnings per share IEFEH AR DEE 1,820,710 1,820,710
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares BEEELAR  FE:
from
— convertible note — AIMRER - 138,814
Weighted average number of shares for the FAFTEGREERTNZ
purpose of diluted earnings per share IEFEH AR DEE 1,820,710 1,959,524

Note: The computation of diluted earnings per share for the
year ended 31 December 2008 does not assume the
conversion of the Company’s convertible note since
its exercise would result in an increase in profit per
share.

B et - F7T & & 5| B AR A E S A
WRAEHE—FENF+—H
=t HAZEBREFTEFIRER
REBA N A2 THRESR -
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14. Dividend 14. RE
2008 2007
—ET)\F s
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRAT FET
Dividend recognised as distribution during  FARAERD IR S
the year:
Final dividend of 2007, paid “EERFZEMNRBARETR
— HK$0.08 (2006: HK$0.07) 0.0887 (ZEZRF:0.07%8
per share JC) 145,657 127,450

The final dividend of HK$0.09 (2007: HK$0.08)
per share and amounting to approximately
HK$163,864,000 (2007: HK$145,657,000) has been
proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by
the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ExertZR RN RARKREER0.09
BL(ZEZELF:00881L) KA
4 EE 49 163,864,000 TL(Z T T £
1 145,657,000 ) * HAFAR
Al AR RERRBF RS L -

15. Investment properties 15. BEYE
The Group The Company
AEH N
2008 2007 2008 2007
I —TT - Il T T
HK$’°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Fair Value ATE
At the beginning A
of the year 2,126,216 2,284,089 16,745 86,236
Exchange adjustment PE W% 82,035 139,889 - -
Additions N 1,202 3,928 — —
Disposals HE (1,061)  (257,436) - (69,196)
(Decrease) increase in fair BERGEAKERIERZ
value recognised in the A ORtd) 18N
consolidated income
statement (20,130) (44,254) 53 (295)
At the end of the year RER 2,188,262 2,126,216 16,798 16,745
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15. Investment properties (Continued)

At 31 December 2008, the legal titles of the Group’s
and the Company’s investment properties at carrying
value of approximately HK$16,798,000 (2007:
HK$16,745,000) situated in the PRC have not been
passed to the Group.

At the balance sheet date, the carrying value of the
investment properties comprises:

15. REYXEE)

RZZEENE+_A=+—H ' &
SEEARARNRTEEREN A
78 JC16,798,0007%8 (= T = + F :
16,745,000 7T ) FYI& & W) 2 2 2R
ABEEAEM -

REER REMEZREERSRE

The Group The Company
AEH AT

2008 2007 2008 2007

20 T T RN TTF

HK$’°000

HK$’000

HK$°000
FRET T FRET T/8TT

HK$°000

Held under long term VAR BAFE 49,/ £ Hb {5 R
leases/land use rights: EHRFE:
— situated in the PRC — A 70,353 73,108 - —
Held under medium term  BARRERFA L), Hh (s A
leases/land use rights: EHAEE:
— situated in the PRC — A E 2,117,909 2,053,108 16,798 16,745
2,188,262 2,126,216 16,798 16,745

All the investment properties are held for rental
income under operating leases.

FEREMFRHNEERORE EIE
R e
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15.

Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value of the investment properties of the
Group and the Company at 31 December 2007
and 31 December 2008 have been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited (“Vigers”),
an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. Vigers are members
of the Institute of Valuers and have appropriate
qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The valuation of the Group’s and the Company’s
investment properties was arrived at using direct
comparison method by reference to sales evidence
as available on the market where appropriate.

All the Group’s and the Company’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation purposes are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted
for as investment properties.

15. REYXEE)

REBRARRMKEMER=_ST L
FER_EENF+-_A=F+—H2ZAYF
BEIERBREINEETEERBRA A
([ B A& 8T 1) & — B 2R & B 3 4 B i
BB BEMERMSZBNEE
EITRHEATT o BARHT 2 A ERT 2 & K
8 - WHEAEE B RN B AR
o HUMEETHENLR - A&E
RARE ZIZEYFREE 2T HTE
REHELIBAE2RBNE#E A T % A B
BHEERBMERE °

BT A S B AR A R BB R T RS
A R A A R O R A 1
PAFEEREE - THERIE SR
A -
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\FFr-A=1+—HIFE

16. Property, plant and equipment

16. Y%  WERRE

Leasehold
land and
buildings Leasehold  Furniture and Office Motor Plant and  Construction
HELH#H  improvements fixtures equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
REF HENEEE FRRRME HAERR RE BERER ERIR &3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT AT AT
The Group 150
COST OR VALUATION  BAESfE
At 1 January 2007 RZZTLE
i 119,484 4,769 5,385 9,730 14,507 - - 153,875
Exchange adjustments ~ [EX 3% 198 - 224 609 795 - - 1,826
Additions AE = - 2,046 1,760 967 - - 4773
Acquisition on deemed  WEEEHRNE
acquisition of HEAF
subsidiaries (note 50) (Wit 50) - = 2 85 1,512 = = 1619
Reclassified as asset  EBJIAJfERAE
held-for-sale HEVEE
(note 37) (it 37) (5,000) - - - - - - (5,000)
Disposals ihe = = (1) (122) (800) - - (1,539)
Disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBAR
(note 51) (it 61) = - - (214) (1,228) - - (1,442)
Revaluation E 26,118 - - - - - - 26,118
At 31 December 2007  W-ZELE
+-A=t-H 140,800 4,769 7,666 11,248 15,753 - - 180,236
Exchange adustments ~ EREE 256 - 213 372 442 - - 1,283
Additions AE 51,744 - 5178 884 2,264 12 1,897 61,979
Acquisition of WEHBAR
subsidiaries (note 49) (it 49) 15,120 - - 347 1,615 200,470 50,414 267,966
Disposals HE - = (67) (391) (1,511) - - (1,968)
Transfers £l - - - - - (725) 725 -
Revaluation E1 (17.707) = = = = = = (17.707)
At 31 December 2008 R=ZENE
+-A=t-A 190,213 4,769 12,996 12,460 18,563 199,757 53,036 491,794
Comprising: B
At cost BRAE - 4769 12,996 12,460 18,563 199,757 53,036 301,581
At professional B-TEN\FL
valuation — 2008 B2 190,213 - - - - - - 190,213
190,213 4,769 12,996 12,460 18,563 199,757 53,036 491,794
DEPRECIATION i
At 1 January 2007 RZETLE
-A-H - 3,920 4,242 6,797 6,304 - - 21,263
Exchange adjustments ¥ & - - 147 47 344 - - 908
Provided for the year FEER 4,010 532 339 1,069 1,859 - - 7,809
Eliminated on disposals ~ HERH - - 1) (636) (707) - = (1,350)
Eliminated on disposal ~ HEHBATE
of subsidiaries (note 51)  His (it 51) - - - (190) (540) - = (730)
Eliminated on EftRHH
revaluation (4,010) - - - - - - (4,010)
At 31 December 2007 W-FELE
+-A=t-H - 4,452 4721 7,457 7,260 - - 23,890
Exchange adustments ~ EREE = - 9 246 211 - - 552
Provided for the year ~ FEEf 5,730 317 510 851 2401 1,779 - 11,614
Eliminated on disposals iR - - (42) (373) (718) - - (1,133)
Eliminated on EfRHH
revaluation (5573) - - - - - - (5,573)
At 31 December 2008 H=FE/\E
+-A=t-H 157 4,769 5,284 8,181 9,180 1,779 - 29,350
CARRYING VALUES @&
At 31 December 2008  W-EE\&
+-A=t-H 190,056 - 7,712 4219 9,383 197,978 53,036 462,444
At 31 December 2007  HZZELE
+-A=t-A 140,800 317 2,945 3,791 8,493 - - 156,346
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16. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16. W%¥ - BERRZEE)

Leasehold
land and
buildings Leasehold  Furniture and Office
HEL#H  improvements fixtures equipment  Motor vehicles Total
kEF  HENERE LUNET WAERME RE fit
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT FE7 AT FET AT
The Company KAF
COST OR VALUATION HAHEGE
At 1 January 2007 W-ZT+5-A-H 54,944 3,988 2121 751 2,502 64,306
Additions HE - - - 160 521 681
Revaluation Eff 12,339 - - - = 12,339
At 31 December 2007 REETLETZA
=+-A 67,283 3,988 2121 911 3023 77,326
Additions AE - - - 12 - 12
Revaluation gt (3,225) -~ = = = (3,225)
At 31 December 2008 RZEENE+ZR
=1-A 64,058 3,988 2121 923 3023 7413
Comprising: Bk
At cost A - 3,988 2121 923 3023 10,055
At professional valuation B-EEN\Er8%
- 2008 e 64,058 - - - - 64,058
64,058 3,988 2121 923 3,023 74,13
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2007 RZFRLE-A-A - 3,231 2,121 600 1,164 7116
Provided for the year EERE 1890 454 = 64 209 2617
Eliminated on revaluation EfthrAE (1,890) = = = = (1,890)
At 31 December 2007 RZESLETZA
=1-A - 3,685 2121 664 1373 7843
Provided for the year FEEE 2,310 308 - 81 212 2,906
Eliminated on revaluation Sty (2,310) = = = = (2,310)
At 31 December 2008 e ]2
=t-H - 3,088 2121 745 1,585 8,439
CARRYING VALUES BEE
At 31 December 2008 R=ET\ETZA
=+-A 64,058 - - 178 1438 65,674
At 31 December 2007 RZETLETZR
=1-A 67,283 303 - 247 1,650 69,483
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16. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16. Y% - WMERREE)
At 31 December 2008, the legal titles of the R—_EZNF+_A=+—H ' K
Group’s and the Company’s properties with carrying EEEAABRMNARFEEEESS 7
value of approximately HK$38,284,000 (2007: %] /538,284,000 T(Z T T £ F :
HK$23,683,000) and approximately HK$23,758,000 23,683,00078 7t ) & 4 /&23,758,000
(2007: HK$23,683,000) situated in the PRC have B(ZEZF £ F : 23,683,000 7T )
not been passed to the Group and the Company B2 EEDRBEEREE RAR
respectively. A e
The carrying value of the leasehold properties HEMHEZREHERSE
comprises:

The Group The Company
rEE PN

2008 2007 2008 2007
UL TT T I — T
LLCH HK$'000 EGLENUIM HK$ 000
FET T FET T/ET

Long term leasehold FEEMNRBAE

properties situated in e

Hong Kong 141,250 106,400 40,300 43,600
Properties under medium  #EAR B AR EA £ 30 (55 R

term land use rights BRI

situated in the PRC 48,806 34,400 23,758 23,683

190,056 140,800 64,058 67,283
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16.

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings at 31 December 2008 and 2007 has been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on
that date by Vigers and A-Plus Surveyors Limited
(“A-Plus”).
direct comparison method by reference to sales

The valuations were arrived at using

evidence as available on the market. The net deficit
on revaluation of the leasehold land and buildings
amounted to approximately HK$12,134,000 (2007:
revaluation surplus of approximately HK$30,128,000)
of which an amount of approximately HK$19,141,000
has been charged to the consolidated income
statement as revaluation deficit (2007: HK$8,121,000
had been credited to the consolidated income
statement as reversal of revaluation deficit previously
recognised) and an amount of approximately
HK$7,007,000 (2007: HK$22,007,000) has been
credited to the asset revaluation reserve. Both Vigers
and A-Plus are independent qualified professional
valuers not connected with the Group, are members
of the Institute of Valuers, and have appropriate
qualifications and experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations.

Certain leasehold interest in land cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
leasehold interest in land continue to be accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

16.

M BERREE)

AEEMNHELTHREFR_ZTEN
FR_ZELF+_A=+—HZA
FEDERBETREEFENEMITE
RAR(MEEDHZBAEL 2 EE
FEEATE - REEEEREE B
K2REEMNTS A NSHEE IR
mMEE HELREFEHERF
#H #912,184,000%8 (= T T £ F -
= {f A F #730,128,00078 7T ) £ 49
19,141,000 7T B 5T AR & W2 & 1E
REMBEB(ZZEZ L F 8,121,000
BILEFTARA B EREABBLAE
Rz EMEE) & & 547,007,000
B (ZEZE £ F : 22,007,000 7T )
Bt ABESHEE o BSHT RERER
EHREAREBEWEEENE LS ER
SEGEMT B AGEMBEKE @ I
HHEBEERRE A B mE
HITHENER -

ETHEI M #EEEREIER
REFED B
BIIRASME - BB REE -
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16. Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 16. W%¥ - BERRZEE)
If leasehold properties had not been revalued, they WAAEYHERTEMN  ZSEMESIA
would have been included on a historical cost basis B LR AN ELERIBR AT ¢

at the following amounts:

The The
Group Company
rEE PN

HK$'000  HK$’000
FET FET

COST 2N 176,761 38,848
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2zt E MIREEE
losses (55,591) (9,246)
CARRYING VALUE BRMEE
At 31 December 2008 R=ZEENF+=—H=1+—H 121,170 29,602
At 31 December 2007 REZEELF+=A=+—H 59,785 30,767
17. Land Use Rights 17. tHiEARE
The Group
rEE
HK$’000
FET
COST 5

At 1 January 2007 and 31 December 2007 RZZEZE+F—HF—HK
—EE+FF+-A=+—H =

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 49) U BEB B A A (H75£49) 26,091
Additions NE 797
Amortised for the year FEEH (46)
CARRYING VALUE BREE

At 31 December 2008 RZEENF+_A=+—H 26,842
The land use rights of the Group are held under ANEE B 2 b R R AL FA R B DA R R
medium-term lease in the PRC and amortised over HEFEMARERL0 FHH -

the term of the lease of 50 years.
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18. Goodwill 18. BE
The Group
KEME
HK$°000
FET
COST AR AR
At 1 January 2007 and AZETHF—H—AR
31 December 2007 2T+ FF+-HA=+—H 33,525
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 49) W BERt B AR (B7:E 49) 4,391
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF+_A=1+—H 37,916
IMPAIRMENT RE
At 1 January 2007 R_EE+F—H—H —
Impairment loss recognised in the year 2007 —ZZ+FERNERREEE 26,524
At 31 December 2007 and 2008 R_EELFR T/ \F+-_A=+—H 26,524
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2008 RZEENF+_A=1+—H 11,392
At 31 December 2007 R-EZELFTHA=1—H 7,001

The directors of the Company considered that the
subsidiaries acquired represents a separate cash
generating unit (“CGU”) for the purpose of goodwill
impairment testing. The carrying values of goodwill
as at 31 December 2007 and 2008 allocated to the

below CGUs:

PEAERERABENMES  ARAE
ERRZBBRENMB R AR —
EEYNRcELEN(ReELE
f2]) R-BTLFR-_TENF+Z
A=t —HoREZRECELEM 2K
EER

The Group
rER
2008 2007
—ET)\F g
HK$’000 HK$°000

Property management (“Unit A”)

Production and trading of petrochemcial

products (“Unit B”)

WEEE ([BLA])

AmtTEREENRHE

(IEfBl)

FET T8
7,001 7,001
4,391 —

11,392 7,001

127
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18. Goodwill (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the
above Unit A and Unit B and the major underlying
assumptions are summarised below:

Unit A

The recoverable amount of Unit A has been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period based on estimated
growth rate of 3% (2007: 3%) with a discount rate
of 5% (2007: 5.75%). Cash flows for further five
years are extrapolated at zero growth rate. Another
key assumption for the value in use calculations is
the budgeted revenue and gross margin, which is
determined based on the unit’s past performance
and management’s expectations for the market
development. During the year ended 31 December
2007, the management expected that the property
management market would be less prosperous in the
following periods, and the profitability of Unit A would
be significantly reduced. In view of the deteriorating
profitability, impairment loss of approximately
HK$26,524,000 was made in accordance with the
result of the discounted cash flow analysis during the
year ended 31 December 2007.

Unit B

The recoverable amount of Unit B has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period based on estimated growth rate
of 3% with a discount rate of 156%. Cash flows for
further five years are extrapolated at zero growth
rate. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculations is the budgeted revenue and gross
margin, which is determined based on the unit’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.

18.

& (&)

BUARBUBWAKMOeENETE
AR REB A LT -

BEfA

B ARNA] BB HENEREBER
BET FERACHRKEREEMS,Z -
ERS%(ZZTZTLF :3%) FHEX
B R ERTBEMSAE SRR R
5% (ZZTFHF :5.75%)RE - K
BAFEZHeREEATERE - FH
BENS—BEXEREABERARE
AFE Rz EMBEZRBARERE
BEMSERCEHETE -R=-ZTT L
FH+_A=+—HZFRN EEERE
HMEEEMSREAABBETEXR
B8 - BALAZ BRI K e B E i
K -RZZEZLF+-_A=+—HZ&F
N ERAFEENEZE  BIREERESR
MO 2 ER - FERBBEEELD
26,524,00078 7T °

BB

BB A B S BRSENEREES
BET sEIEEREEREMZ
ERNSNFREXINAFHERBEMN
15% MR K E GRS RIAR - B
BRAFZREREESTERR - £
BENS-BRIZREABEUARE
BNE - DRZEBEBEZRBELEE
BEHMERRIAHETE -
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BE_FZ

19.

ENFLA=1—HILFE

Interest in subsidiaries/amounts due from
subsidiaries

Interest in Subsidiaries

B BHRME

19. MIED =R ek B 2D B

K18 2 Bl a5

The Company

A F]

2008 2007

—ge/ 5 LI

HK$’000 HK$’000

FRT FETL

Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT IR AE 169,713 56,011
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) U BB AT (M) 796,217 =
965,930 56,011

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 RATHMBARINRZ=ZZEENF+=A

December 2008 are set out in note 60(a).

=t+t—HZFHE %WJWHE

60(a) °

Note: The principal amount of the amounts due from Mt BRHBRARZNASSEFRL
subsidiaries is approximately HK$825,095,000 825,095,000/ jL(= T T + F -
(2007: nil), which are unsecured, non-interest ) REEE . BRI EETEER
bearing and have no fixed repayment terms. In the H-EZERARAZCENREE
opinion of directors, the amount will not be repaid in EHT_ERETEHERIZRER
the next 12 months from the balance sheet date and FHE3.5% BhIE -
is discounted using an effective interest rate of 3.5%
per annum.

Amounts Due from Subsidiaries FEW BB 2 Bl 3k

The Company
RATF]

2007

—ETF

HK$’000

FET

Non-interest bearing amount HETE &% 339,043 2,786,246
Amount bearing interest at prevailing Hong &2 &E BT & E ==

Kong prime lending rate minus 1.5% J1.5%5T B 25 64,874 128,374
Amount bearing interest at prevailing BREBEAIREENE

Hong Kong prime lending rate RS 25,633 43,927

Amount bearing fixed interest at 3.8% per  REFEFEFEI.8%:1 555
annum 1,870,986 —
2,300,536 2,958,547

The amounts are unsecured and expected to realise
in the next 12 months from the balance sheet date.

SHEABEMMEMNEERR+ @

HERiE °
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20.

Interest in associates 20. BEQNTER
The Group The Company
AEME b/ N

2008 2007 2008 2007
=t UGN T F EE Yl TTF
HK$’°000 HK$'000 L€ HK$°000

FET TETT FET TETT

Cost of investments in i EANETE g2
associates R AME
— unlisted — 3ELETH 632,246 606,654 20,000 20,000

Share of post acquisition R ERR AR - B
profits, reserves and net RAkE WA S

of dividend received 151,745 504,126 - —
783,991 1,110,780 20,000 20,000

Particulars of the significant associates of the Group RAARIMERBERARR_ZEZENF
and the Company as at 31 December 2008 are set TZA=ZT—BZ2FBEES R

out in note 60(b). 60(b) °
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EiE

20.

—EENFF=A=A—

HIEFE

Interest in associates (Continued) 20. BENTER(Z
The summarised financial information in respect of AEBTEZMENRZMBRHESRTIM
the Group’s significant associates is set out below: S
ENREEHREE
Cll Limited EBERAF
PERRRERRAT EEEREEMEARLE  IREAEERHEMRERAT (note) (#2)
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE “55E CEENE “E5tE CEENE S s “EENE e a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT AT FAT FET FAT AT AT AT
Consolidated balance sheet ~ HAEEEER
Non-current assets FRDEE 502,980 794,681 115,755 - 700 1,073 - 104,278
Current assets FHEE 849,398 1,342,420 333,810 - 1,114,884 928,433 - 53,980
Curent liablties L (35765)  (105441)  (226,007) S (923M)  (194298) - (51,396)
Non-current liabilities FrEaE - (17,000) - - - - - -
Shareholders' funds hEEs 1,316,613 2,014,660 223,558 - 123,213 135,108 - 106,863
Minority interests HYRRER - (97) - - - - - -
Equity attributable to equity BENARREAA
holders of the associate EbRA 1,316,613 2,014,563 223,558 - 123,213 135,108 - 106,863
Group's share of net assets of ~ SEEEBLATE
associates ERE 658,307 1,007,281 67,067 - 27,87 30,561 - 42,745
Consolidated income Falnk
statement
Revenue WA 2,134 134,019 - - - 1,951 - -
Profit (loss) for the year BENTRARE
attributable to equity holders ANEEERET
of the associate (B#8) 46,936 109,540 1,335 - (17,149) (18,541) - -
Profit (loss) for the year AEEEEERER
attributable to the Group (E) 23,468 54,770 401 = (3,879) (4,194) - =
Note: Interests in EMRABEZHRIKREEEEFRAF was i EMNBEEERAREEEERA

deregistered during the year ended 31 December

2008.

AR ER_ZETNF+_A

=T —RIEZFEARZEH
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21. Interest in jointly controlled entities 21. HEEH QAR
The Group The Company
AEE KATF

2008 2007 2008 2007
=t UGN T F Rl JlGol TT
HK$’°000 HK$'000 L€ HK$°000
FET TETT FET TETT

Cost of investments in RERIESIARIRE

jointly controlled entities BN

— unlisted — 3EEH 81,874 23,729 26,318 26,318
Share of post-acquisition BHH U EBR B R &

loss and reserves G (15,157) (10,142) -
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE - — (13,345) (12,731)

66,717 13,587 12,973 18,587

Particulars of the jointly controlled entities as at 31 HEZHSHAGRZ=ZZZENFE+ZA

December 2008 are set out in note 60(c). =+ —RHZFEHIIRKEE60(C)
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21.

Interest in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

21.

The summarised financial information in respect of
the jointly controlled entities which is accounted for

using the equity method in the Group’s consolidated

financial statements is set out below:

HEZES QR AERE)

BRARNALKHE

mEMBRRUAERES

Nk VNG A bt el

N

Platinum One Limited REHNKEXERALT
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EE\E il T )\F Eetgcs
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FEIT FETT FET
Balance sheet EEEER
Non-current assets EREEE — = 2,625 =
Current assets mENEE 77,252 143,161 51,219 —
Current liabilities mEatE (64,279)  (129,346) (100) —
Non-current liabilities IERBARE - (228) — —
Group’s share of net assets 7N B4 (5 - [E]3%
of jointly controlled RNEFEE
entities 12,973 13,587 53,744 —
Income statement It
Revenue A 3,080 18,669 111 =
Expenses EH (3,693) (39,747) (1,924) —
Taxation credit AT N - 2,005 - =
Loss for the year AEBEEFAEE
attributable to the Group (613) (19,073) (1,813) —
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22,

23.

Amounts due from associates 22, FEWEEE DT
The Group The Company
AEHE ARAF

2008
—EENF

HK$’°000
FET

2007 2008 2007
“TTLF ROl —TTF
HK$'000 WLLERIIAN HK$000
TBTT FET T/8TT

Current (note i) BUER (ffat i) 742,537 694,802 - =
Current (note ii) BNER (Ktaz i) 240,089 87,000 - 87,000

982,626 781,802 - 87,000
Notes: Mt -

(i) The amount is unsecured, bears fixed interest at
12.5% (2007: ranging from 7.2% to 15.58%) per
annum and is expected to realise in the next 12
months from the balance sheet date.

(i)  The amount is unsecured, interest-free and is
expected to realise in the next 12 months from the
balance sheet date.

Amount due from a jointly controlled entity 23.

The Group and the Company

The amount is unsecured, bears interest at 4% (2007:
4%) per annum and is expected to realise in the next
12 months from the balance sheet date.

() %EeBAEERA . U125%(=ZF=F
tE: N F7.2%=E15.58%) B FE F
FRFERBHNEERE T+ @A

A fidh o
ZEE -

(i) ZEeBAEER 2ERBHRGEHE
FR+-—BEASEE -

P — B H B 2 FRK
FEBMRARQT
ZEHEREER  UL4% (ZTTLF -

4%)FMERFERAPREREBR =
BEASEE -
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24. Structured finance securities

The Group and the Company

The structured finance securities represent a security
with interest payments based on United States
Treasury bond and distribution from preference
shares in a private company which invests in a
portfolio of asset-backed securities. The structured
finance securities contain an embedded early
redemption option and the distribution from the
private company is dependent on the annual default
rate of its underlying asset-backed securities. The
Group designated the entire structured finance
securities as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss at initial recognition.

At the balance sheet date, the fair value of the
structured finance securities is determined by the
directors with reference to the valuation provided by
the counterparty financial institution. This valuation
provided by the counterparty is determined by
reference to the value of a comparable new issue
of the similar structured finance securities under
the market situation as at 31 December 2008. The
major assumptions adopted for the valuation of the
structured finance securities are as follows:

(1)  The estimation of risk free rate by reference to
the yield of United States Treasury Bond with
same remaining duration as the structured
finance securities adjusted by the issuer’s credit
rating; and

(2) The estimation of the default rate of the
underlying asset-backed securities by reference
to the historical default rate of asset-backed
securities with similar characteristics.

24.

FRETEES
FEERARQT

EEMSRBAEES - HASKED
RIEEDEEESRKE—RILART
BEBRH 2 DR E - ZRARARE
R BAERRES - AL
BEHHARTWEEL AR ERAALR
A2 HIRBUAR KM EERRES 2
FROE  ARBHEREEIESRE
HHE T ARRARAREA 2 AT E5
BHEREE -

REER  GREEREFNAFETD
HEE2RIZU TS RBBNFEMm
BE - ZXZHUTFRENTETEBIR
BRZZEZENF+_A=1+—HHOMS
R T A BB USRS BES
ZBEMFEL - ERESRESFOMG
BERAATEZERMET

(1) BAHERBRENXIIZREAET
AZEEFRERABREBLEDR
EFHERRGERZERERE
HFZWHREELGEE Rk

@ FREEREREFIFEOXT
2REERUSUE 2 EERRE
SFZBEFEORFELMAESR -
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25. Available-for-sale investments 25. AHHERE

Available-for-sale investments as at the balance sheet AEEERENEERAZEE A
date comprise:

The Group The Company
AEM AR

2008 2007 2008 2007
=t UGN T F Rl JlGol TT
HK$’°000 HK$'000 L€ HK$°000

FET TETT FET TETT

Listed equity securities, ETRAES -

at fair value (note i) BRATE (BT 1) 48,812 160,267 - —
PRC government bonds, at FEBFFES -

fair value BAE 5,556 5,348 - —

Total investments, at fair #iRE B ATE

value 54,368 165,615 — —
Unlisted investments IEETRE (Kt i)
(note ii):
Unlisted equity securities, JEETIRAE S
at cost DN 380,858 2,070 65,570 2,070
Club debentures, at cost SES BKA 2,140 2,140 2,140 2,140
382,998 4,210 67,710 4,210
Less: Impairment loss JB - BRERREE 1R
recognised (2,070) (2,070) (2,070) (2,070)

Total investments, at WRE R
cost 380,928 2,140 65,640 2,140

Total &5t 435,296 167,755 65,640 2,140

Analysed for reporting MERENINE:
purposes as:
Current (note iii) mED (HEE i) 121,277 = 63,500 =
Non-current B 314,019 167,755 2,140 2,140

435,296 167,755 65,640 2,140




Annual Report 2008 4F i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FEENF+-A=+—HIFFE

25. Available-for-sale investments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

Listed equity securities are not listed in Hong Kong.

Unlisted investments represent investments in unlisted
equity securities and debentures issued by private
entities. The investee companies were registered in
the PRC which have potential for separate listing.
The business of these companies include, but not
limited to, power, banking, financial services and
information technology. They are measured at cost
less impairment at each balance sheet date because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
significant that the directors are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

It comprises of the unlisted equity securities that the
directors intended to dispose of within 12 months
after the balance sheet date are classified as current
assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group disposed of certain unlisted investments

with an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$13,333,000 to an independent third party
(2007: HK$151,570,000), which had been carried at
cost less impairment before the disposal. No gain
on disposal (2007: a gain of HK$12,125,000) was
recognised in the consolidated income statement for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

25. AIHHERE(E)

Hret

) ZEMERAEZAFEREFELD
& o

(i) FLMEREDERENBLALLR
BT 2 EMBRABHFRES ° K&
ERRTBEEMLEAEYL EHE
N RECEZEBEFBENRNE
N RT ERRE RE AR KT
- AR IEMAERATFEEE
AR ARBEZEER/EAFE
AT S E - AZFRETIN
BHEE A AR ERTE

(i) EBREFTERGEERRT_EAR
HE MR RREEENIE EHARA

R °©

RZZEZENF+ZA=+—HzZF
N AEBEBEETERERENA
13,333,000 T 2 F E IR E L &
F—BBULFE =TT L FE:
151,570,000/ 7t ) B & F 3 £ W &%
& R E R B IR AR EE B3
R -RZZEENFF+ZA=+—HIEF
ERZERRRITLERRETMEES
Wam(ZZEEEF - 512,125,000
JT) °
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26.

27.

Deposit paid for establishment of an associate

On 17 December 2007, the Group entered into
an agreement with three indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries of China Cinda Asset Management
Corporation (all together namely “Cinda Companies”).
Pursuant to this agreement, the Group and Cinda
Companies will establish a company in the PRC for
the purpose of engaging in the business of property
development and operation, property management
and consultation in the PRC. The formation of
this associate was approved by the company’s
independent shareholders’ on 25 January 2008.

As at 31 December 2007, the amount contributed by
the Group was treated as investment deposit and this
deposit was transferred to interest in an associate
upon the establishment of this associate during the
year ended 31 December 2008.

Loan receivables

26.

27.

ENKI-EBRELRAZRE

RZZETLE+_A++tR AEEH
TREEEETEARZ=-_MAREEE
ME QR (2EMRBEMEEAR AL —
Bk - RiEZWE - AEEREER
AR EAZE-FEAR c HENAR
TEREMEERIEE WEREER
RAER - KLZBERFCR T
NF—AZTHRRBELRRLE -

W_ETLE+-A=+—H  A%E
FEANSBE FARERS - N=F
ENFTZAST-ALZEER - &
RORLBE A AR HHELE
AR -

EWER
The Group
rEER
2008 2007
—ET)N\F g
HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET T

FEU B 5K

Loan receivables

79,790 =

The loan receivables are unsecured, carry fixed
interest at 20% per annum, repayable within one
year.

The Group did not provide impairment loss for
loan receivables. In the opinion of the directors, no
impairment loss is considered necessary in respect
of these balances.

FEW E AR EAER - LA20% [ T F 7
KA BRR—FARE -

N5 B I 4 R AR B R VR B BORUE
B -BEREARREBARZEEMRIED
EfREREIE °
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28.

29.

Other asset

The Group

The other asset is a lump sum payment for repair
and maintenance fund made for the future repair
and maintenance of the general areas of one of
the Group’s investment properties in the PRC. The
amount is amortised over its estimated useful life of
10 years.

Interest in distressed assets

Distressed assets represented non-performing loans
(the “NPL”) purchased by Silver Grant International
Assets Management Limited (“SGIAM”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, from China Cinda
Asset Management Corporation (“China Cinda”), a
holding company of a shareholder of the Company,
pursuant to an agreement dated 17 September
2004 entered into by both parties at consideration
of approximately RMB853,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$803,600,000). SGIAM entered
into another agreement (the “NPL Management
Agreement”) with China Cinda to appoint China
Cinda to manage the NPL.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
did not renew the NPL Management Agreement
with China Cinda. Upon the expiring of the NPL
Management Agreement, the remaining unrecovered
NPL was transferred back to China Cinda at a
consideration of approximately RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$42,800,000). The
difference of approximately HK$80,248,000 between
the carrying value of the interest in the distressed
assets at the date of transfer and the consideration
to be paid by China Cinda was charged to the
consolidated income statement as impairment loss
during the year ended 31 December 2007.

28.

29.

HWEERHERREESZ —REE
Mk RAEERFEEG—RRZEY
RIERRM T 2 KRS RIRE R ©
BRRBARBEAAIBFERY TF#
B

TREE#ES

TREEEAARNZENB AR @ R
ERREEEEARAR([REEETE
BDRANB—BREHZBRAR - F
BEEEETEAR([HBREE]DIRE
EFTR_TTENFNAT+EAFTN—
TE e 2 IR KA 89 A R # 853,500,000
JC(FHE 7 #7803,600,00078 7T ) R EEE
AR TBABER(TEAER] - R
BEEEBREPREER S Bz
([TROERERE R EEFREE
EETEHNER -

R_ZEZEtE+_A=+—HLEEE
AN AEBWEERBREESITTRE
HNEFREEHBE RTRAVERE
ER@ERLER  TERAEREERZ
BHRREBKZTIREENARKLD
40,000,000 7T (18 & 7 %Y 42,800,000
TL)EREFREFE - RZTTEFE+=
A=Z1T—RIEFEA  REEHZTR
BEEm REABEPEEERETR
& = I B 8RB 2 &= #E 49 4 80,248,000
BT AR ERIBF ARSI ©
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30. Investment in distressed assets through 30. BBRYBHENERERETRE

establishment of a special purpose vehicle

-3

The Group
¥ 3

2008 2007
—EEN\E i
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET

Expected discounted cash flow from NPL AR EER 7 BRI SR

portfolio 3,948 79,864
Cash collected from distressed assets but R & EWEIE & B REAK
not yet transferred to the Group £ 144,299 27,327
148,247 107,191
The Group REH

On 25 October 2006, Silver Grant International
Assets Investment Limited (“SGIAIL”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a cooperation
memorandum (the “NPL Memorandum”) with China
Orient Asset Management Corporation (“China
Orient”) to establish a company in the PRC, Dongxin
Union Asset Management Corporation Limited
(“Dongxin Union”) for the purpose of managing a NPL
portfolio (the “Orient Portfolio”). Pursuant to the NPL
Memorandum, SGIAIL purchased 46.17% interest of
Orient Portfolio from China Orient at a consideration
of RMB319,682,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$321,701,000). SGIAIL injected its 46.17% interest
in the Orient Portfolio and China Orient injected the
remaining 53.83% interests in the Orient Portfolio,
representing a capital injection of RMB372,708,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$376,435,000) into
Dongxin Union as investment in Dongxin Union.
This transaction was approved by the Ministry of
Commerce of the PRC on 22 January 2007. The
operation license of Dongxin Union will expire three
years after the date of incorporation.

Pursuant to the Memorandum and Article of Dongxin
Union, China QOrient is responsible to manage
the Orient Portfolio. China Orient is entitled to a
management fee equal to 10% of the gross amount
recovered from the Orient Portfolio. The proportion
of sharing of the recovered amounts are based on a
pre-determined scale stated in the Memorandum and
Article of Dongxin Union.

R-ZZBEZXRETA-_+HHE ARFIZ
2EMBARIRERNREEREGRA
AI([REEERE ) EPERAEEE
BAR(THFBEES DI —BEIERE
BRI TREEBTE])  RPBRARE—
MAaE — REHAEEEERBRAF
([HEBAEDAEBE—BEAIAREEMHE
([REEER]) - BEZTREEHT
B REEERERFTERSTBEARS
BEBMA617%EZR  REAARK
319,682,000 t(#8 & 321,701,000
WBIL) o IRBEEEREEAH46.17%
RAEEPERNMPERERET EAR
TH5383%RTEER#ED ' BlE
A A R #372,708,000 (8 & B 4
376,435,000 7 ) E AN TR 58 & 1
AREBANEERE - WBERFERZ
EEFE— A -+ BEEHE R
ZHEfE o RASHES K& R AS K AL
AHEfRBRT = F &L -

REREMaNARER PERSTE
AERRTEESR - PERT AREKER
BRI EBEROWER10% (A THE)
AENERE - MR Z DB AIRIAR
EBMENARERAZAELXRFIE
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31.

30. Investment in distressed assets through 30. BBRYBHENERERETRE
establishment of a special purpose vehicle EE)
(Continued)
The Group (Continued) REE(E)
The investment in distressed assets through the BRKNIEFRENSERETREE
establishment of a special purpose vehicle is = AEHEK A BREEETZE ' &
measured at amortised cost less impairment, WA BIGTF ARG WK o BB
with income credited to consolidated income HEMEBIEETREENFERAA
statement. The investment in distressed assets R TABEZKRENSEARZ
through the establishment of a special purpose e EE  TEAEHRBEBRFANEO A
vehicle is denominated in RMB which is also the 70.02% - TREEBRZAHBE SR
functional currency of the group entity which holds RBERNEE o
the investment. The original effective interest rate
is approximately 70.02% per annum. No significant
change was noted in the expected cash flow from
NPL portfolio.
As at 31 December 2008, included in the carrying R-ZBEENE+-_A=+—H " BEXE
amount of the investment in distressed assets BRI EREOHERETREELR
through establishment of a special purpose vehicle, FRAR  5144,299,0008 T(ZEZT +
HK$144,299,000 (2007: HK$27,327,000) represented & : 27,827,000 ) R TR EED
cash collected from distressed assets but not yet WEMRESEMAIAEETAREFEWBTE
transferred to the Group and deposited in bank BRREBHEIFENIRITIRE - BEN
accounts held by Dongxin Union. The effective BEETFHREMNEL0.7% °
interest rate is approximately 0.7% per annum.
Particulars of Dongxin Union are set out in note 61. ERAREHE 2 HEHF KK EGT -
Inventories 31. ®E
The Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENE s
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
COST DN
Consumables SHIEm 196 183
Raw materials FEM A 16,699 —
Finished goods A& 49,702 =

66,597 183
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32. Held-for-trading investments 32. BHIEEERE
The Group The Company
AL AR
2008 2007 2008 2007
LY — T T eI — T T
HK$°000 HK$'000 WLEXIl0) HK$’000
FET T FET T
Equity securities listed in RAEB EMHRAE
Hong Kong, at fair value 5 RNFEE 70,027 63,130 15,368 61,918
33. Trade receivables 33. EUWERR
The Group allows an average credit period of 30 AREBKLTESRPEHA=THER
days to its trade customers. The following is an aged Hi o Nt EFENEBEZNEE H 2 BBk D
analysis of trade receivables at the balance sheet #
date:
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENE g
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
0 to 30 days TE=1H 2,322 1,440
31 to 90 days =+—BZEAh+H 3,172 1,937
91 to 180 days h+—HBZ—8N+H 3,069 1,520
181 to 360 days —A/\T—HEZE=B~1TH 3,231 —
11,794 4,897

The Group’s trade receivables that are neither past
due nor impaired are those debtors with satisfactory
credit quality under the management’s assessment

and with good past repayment records.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$9,472,000
(2007: HK$3,457,000) which are past due at the
balance sheet date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances. The average
age of these receivable is 156 days (2007: 93 days).

AR E 2 YRR E IR I R BORE
MM ENEEERRIEN A RIFH
EEERLENRCE

NEE 2z AR ARE E 215 9,472,000
B (= 2 & £ F : 3,457,000 7T )
REEBHE R SHEAEEIL IR E ER
EEE - AEBTREHZHES
BT ZERERZFHERA
—BAETAB(ZZEELE: A+=
BH) e
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33.

34.

Trade receivables (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but

33. EBUWRM(E)

JE U BR R E B BB I AR ORE 2 BRI 9

not yet impaired: o
The Group
rEE
2008 2007
-3 JIC N — T T
FLEHN  HK$ 000
FET FET
31 to 90 days =t+—HZht+H 3,172 1,937
91 to 180 days Nt+—RZE—F/N\+H 3,069 1,520
181 to 360 days —B/\t+—BZ==//,1H 3,231 —

9,472 3,457

The Group did not provide impairment loss for the
trade receivables. In the opinion of the directors,
there is no impairment loss for the trade receivables
past due (over 30 days) at the balance sheet date.

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

R ER [ 30 8t WK AR R ER BB (BB 1R -
EZRRARACAPARRE(EE=T
B ) & YRR SR A8 E B I EAE DR (B
B -

34. % ANRKEMERRR

The Group The Company
TEH N

2008 2007 2008 2007

sz s EEIIZ —se s EELA
HK$’°000 HK$'000 WLEN0) HK$’000

FET TE7T FRET TETT

Amount due from the e LENEB AR
buyer of the disposed BRI (ML 1)
subsidiaries (note i)

Consideration receivable HERE YRR

165,620 165,620 165,620 165,620

from disposal of RE
investment properties - 89,519 - =
Others Hit 62,818 47123 1,343 1,446
228,438 302,262 166,963 167,066
Less: Impairment loss JB - BRERREE 1B
recognised (note ii) (Bi&t ii) (21,115) — - -

207,323 302,262 166,963 167,066
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ElE

34.

35.

—EENFL A= —HIEFE

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables (Continued)

Notes:

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
disposed of subsidiaries to an independent third
party for a consideration of HK$83,020,000. Pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement, an amount due
to the Group of HK$82,600,000 was undertaken by
the buyer of the disposed subsidiaries. The original
settlement date was June 2008. Subsequent to the
balance sheet date, HK$111,111,000 was settled and
the remaining HK$54,509,000 is expected to be
settled before December 2009.

(i)  Impairment loss was recognised on certain non-
refundable deposits paid to independent third
parties for a property development project in
the PRC. The property development project was
temporarily suspended and the directors considered
that the deposits paid would not be refunded by
the counterparties, hence impairment loss was
recognised in full with respect to these deposits.

Except for the impairment loss as discussed in the
note (ii) above, the Group did not provide impairment
loss for deposits, prepayments and other receivables.
In the opinion of the directors, no impairment loss is
considered necessary in respect of these balances.

Restricted bank balance

The Group

The amount represents the bank balance kept in a
bank account under the name of China Cinda as
custodian of the Group in the PRC for the purpose of
dealing with the funds recovered from the distressed
assets. The bank account was jointly controlled by
SGIAM and China Cinda and a mutual consent had
to be obtained from both parties for the withdrawal
of fund from the bank account. As at 31 December
2007, the restricted bank balance carried interest at
effective interest rate at 0.72% per annum and with
original maturity of three months or less. The amount
was fully withdrawn by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2008.

34.

35.

BE  ANRRHEMERRGE)

HiaE

(i) R_ETZ+F+_A=+—BLEE
A ANEE AR E 83,020,000 7T
HENBRARFBELE=H - BEE
& 1 3 © 82,600,000 7T 2 FE fiF A
EEFEHEEZWBRRBEREALS
ffo RARZEMBHA-ZTZTNEN
A REEBESE111,111,00078
JCEURE - i #k%E 54,509,000 7% T T8
HER =T NF+= A MUpTKE o

(i) XHBOENTBEILE=S{ETED
EERBENTERLEZZSEFER
BEER - ZNEZRBABELRE
I EEZRREMNZRESTEHRE
TTRE Rt ZREE 2BIER
BEER -

B BB =R (i) 2 BB RSN - AERE
ERE - BN RE MR RO
EER EFEARARBARKEES
{ERERDRE RS

EEF O
AEE

SRRRE—TNRBEEEZRRIEAR
SBZREA - RAEAMRRARTT
REMIRITER  BNEEFARET
REERKFASES - ZRITEFPH
EoRRNBEFTHERAEELTESE
EFRAE RZZETLtFF+—A=+—
B EEFO&KRUERFIE.72%5
B MERIBAA=Z@ASUAT - FiF
SHEREENFT+_A=1T—HBZ
FRHEAREEIRE ©
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36. Bank balances and cash

36. RITEHRRAS

37.

The Group and the Company

The Group’s and the Company’s bank balances
and cash comprise cash and short-term bank
deposits carrying effective interest rate at an
average of 1.4% per annum (2007: 2%) with an
original maturity of three months or less. Included
in the Group’s and the company’s bank balances
and cash at 31 December 2008 were an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$754,128,000 (2007:
approximately HK$1,150,519,000) and HK$13,535,000
(2007: HK$346,477,000) respectively which were
denominated in RMB and is not freely convertible into
other currencies.

Assets classified as held-for-sale

—gTNF

HK$’°000

AEERAAT

AEBRTEHIESEEREKFAE
A A=@AKUA - LBITHSH
KE1.4% (ZFEZEF  2%) F A=
ZRHRITER - RZZTEZENF+=
A=+ —BASERARAIZRITHE
R NI e BB IE B FE 4 754,128,000
BL(ZZEZT L F : 491,150,519,000
B 7T) } 13,535,000 T ( — BT L4
346,477,000 7T ) B A AR SEHE
B - WATREBABRLBAHME -

37. JERELEZEE

The Group The Company
FEE AN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—TTt5 LU —TTLE
HK$'000 L€ o]0} HK$°000
FET TFET TFET T

FIERHEREZEE

Leasehold land and

buildings held-for-sale T RIEF (H75E)
(note) - 5,000 - =
- 5,000 - —
Note: Mt -

As at 31 December 2007, the Group has entered into
a provisional sales and purchase agreement to sell
the leasehold land and buildings at a consideration of
HK$5,000,000. The transaction was completed in February
2008.

AEBR_ZZE+F+=-A=+—HFI Lk
BB &S 445,000,000/ TREHE—1E
HELHRIETF - ZBERXRHER_ZTNF
— AR -
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38. Pledge of assets

The Group

38.

At 31 December 2008, the Group had pledged
certain investment properties and leasehold land
and buildings which have an aggregate carrying
value of approximately HK$2,101,111,000 (2007:
HK$2,036,364,000) and HK$134,300,000 (2007:
HK$98,600,000) respectively to secure general

banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Company

At 31 December 2008, the Company had pledged
certain leasehold land and buildings which have

an aggregate carrying value of approximately
HK$40,300,000 (2007: HK$43,600,000) to secure

general banking facilities granted to the company.

39. Share capital

39.

Number of shares

BEERH

AEE

RZZZNFEF+=ZA=+—8B"' &
SEERHERFTERARBESANA
2,101,111,000% 7T(= & T + 4 :
2,036,364,0007% 7t ) K& 134,300,000
7 t(— T Z + £ : 98,600,000 7T )
ZETHREMEREE T i RIEFHEA
EAASEER T —RMHRITREMNK
o

PN
RZZEZENEFE+_A=+—8H  &~XAQA
B % E R 51 BR M 48 %8 49 A& 40,300,000
7 t(— T Z + £ : 43,600,000 7T )
ZETHEL W REFEARARER
F— AR IERITRVE MO IERAF o

@IS

Nominal value

RIAPEE FEE
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE S 2 —EENE ZTTLF
In thousand [RGRIglEIL] HK$’000 HK$'000
FR Fi FAT FET
Ordinary share of HK$0.20 each  E&EE0.20/8 T2 EmA%
Authorised: EEERA:
At the beginning and the end of ~ REFRANER
the year 4,000,000 4,000,000 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRESZERT -
At the beginning and the end of ~ REFIRAER
the year 1,820,710 1,820,710 364,142 364,142
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40. Reserves of the Company 40. KD TMRHE
The distributable reserves of the Company as at RKRAalR=ZEENF+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2008 amounted to approximately ZaokiEE ERZBMNRB A
HK$350,429,000 (2007: HK$417,368,000), being its | 485 4 5 350,429,000 T (= B
retained profits at that date. T4 1 417,368,000/ 7T) °
Asset
revaluation Capital
Share reserve redemption Retained
premium EEEM reserve profits Total
RDEE wE BrEERE REBEF &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FETL FETL FET
The Company Y YN
At 1 January 2007 jiNee s
—HA—H 2,177,287 22,903 13,992 367,418 2,581,600
Galn on revaluation of BEEELHRET
leasehold land and B4 e
buildings — 14,229 — — 14,229
Deferred tax liability EHAELHREF
arising on revaluation B4 7R IE
of leasehold land and BfE
buildings — (3,356) — — (3,356)
Net income recognised EENRAHERA
directly in equity WA FE = 10,873 = = 10,873
Profit for the year FREF = = = 177,400 177,400
Total recognised income  FERERHUA K
and expense for the it
year - 10,873 — 177,400 188,273
Dividend RE = = - (127,450) (127,450)
At 31 December 2007 i oy |
==& 2,177,287 33,776 13,992 417,368 2,642,423
Loss on revaluation of BEEELHRET
leasehold land and EXZBE
building - (915) - = (915)
Deferred tax assets BHEETHRET
arising on revaluation EA ZRERIE
of leasehold land and BE
buildings - 786 = = 786
Net income recognised EERRAHERA
directly in equity WA FE - (129) = = (129)
Profit for the year FREF = = = 78,718 78,718
Total recognised income  FRBERHUA K
and expense for the it
year . (129) - 78,718 78,589
Dividend RS = = = (145,657) (145,657)
At 31 December 2008 RZZZN\F+_A
=ft-H 2,177,287 33,647 13,992 350,429 2,575,355

147
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41. Borrowings

41. 8

The Group
AEM
2008 2007
—EEN\FE e
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET

The Company
AT
2008 2007
- YA — T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT

Bank overdrafts — secured R{7#ES — A — 18,224 - =
Bank loans — secured RITER — BHEMA 385,099 219,654 4,600 5,750
385,099 237,878 4,600 5,750
Carrying amount repayable: FEEE 7 BRESH :
Within one year —F 2R 336,839 233,278 1,150 1,150
More than one year, —FEPA HB
but not exceeding B M F
two years 25,780 1,150 1,150 1,150
More than two years, ME A (B
but not exceeding NP F
five years 9,865 3,450 2,300 3,450
More than five years FENE 12,615 — — —
385,099 237,878 4,600 5,750
Less: Amounts due within & - R—F2RA
one year shown under EIEAN0 51 &R ED
current liabilities AECE®
— Bank loans — RITERX (336,839)  (215,054) (1,150) (1,150)
— Bank overdrafts — RTEX - (18,224) - =
48,260 4,600 3,450 4,600

Borrowings are secured by certain investment

properties and leasehold properties.

o

EEMETREMEREAEYWEAELR
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41.

42.

Borrowings (Continued)

Bank overdrafts of the Group were denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, foreign currency of the
relevant group entity and carried floating interest
at prevailing market rate. Bank loans of the Group
and the Company of approximately HK$29,543,000
(2007: HK$5,750,000) and HK$4,600,000 (2007:
HK$5,750,000) are denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, functional currency of the relevant group
entities and the Company and carry a floating rate
of prime rate minus 2.375% (2007: prime rate minus
2.375%) per annum or effective interest rate of
2.625% (2007: 4.625%) per annum respectively. The
remaining bank loans of the Group are denominated
in RMB, functional currency of the relevant group
entities and carry floating interest rate at 92% of The
People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) interest rate or
fixed interest rate ranging from 6.2% to 7.47% (2007:
The People’s Bank of China interest rate minus 2%)
per annum, or effective interest rate of 4.89% (2007:
5.47%) per annum.

Convertible note

The Group and the Company

41.

42.

BEE)

AREBZBITEINEE(HBEEEA
Bl 2N ) BB BIRE AIM T 5
FEHAEGFRE c AEERARQA S 5
#) /29,543,000 T(Z T T £ F :
5,750,000 7% 7T ) % 4,600,000 (=
T T LF 5,750,000 7)) 2 RITE
FUARBAEE AR RAARIZIGEEHY
BT AEMNI B D RIERERF X
2375% (ZZEZT L F : :EEFER
2.375%) H))F B) F K K51 B s B IR F A
H2.625% (=T F + F : 4.625%) 7t
B o REEMHEKBTERUABENSE
ERAMIEEES AR BB AIZ
PEARRIT(TARRITEER KT
F8% K ETEMEREBC.2%ET.47% (=
TELF  BARBRITHER2%) 2%
B FFEAERERFNEL489% (=
TZLF 1 547%) °

AR ERE

AEERARQT

2008 2007
—EENE g
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Convertible note classified as liabilities RIERREATEREREAR
at fair value through profit or loss B EN IR EER 389,025 382,736
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42,

Convertible note (Continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

On 24 November 2004, the Company issued a
convertible note to Citigroup Global Markets Limited
(“CGML") (subsequently transferred to Citigroup
Global Markets Financial Products LLC (“CGMFP”)
which is a fellow subsidiary of CGML.) in the principal
amount of US$52,500,000 in accordance with a
subscription agreement dated 5 November 2004
entered into between the Company and CGML. The
interest rate is 1.5% per annum and payable semi-
annually in arrears. The Company shall repay the
principal amount outstanding under the convertible
note to the noteholder together with all interest
accrued on the fifth anniversary of the date of the
issue of the convertible note (i.e. 24 November 2009).
The conversion price is HK$2.95 per share which
is subject to adjustment for, among other matters,
subdivision or consolidation of shares, bonus issues,
capital reduction, rights issues and other events
which have diluting effects on the issued share
capital of the Company. The number of shares to be
issued on conversion of this convertible note will be
determined by dividing the principal amount by the
conversion price translated at a fixed rate HK$7.8 =
US$1. The noteholder will have the right to convert
the whole or part of the principal amount of the
convertible note into shares at any time and from
time to time, from the date of issue of the convertible
note up to the fifth anniversary of the date of issue
of the convertible note in an amount of not less
than US$100,000 on each conversion, save that if
at any time, the principal outstanding amount of the
convertible note is less than US$100,000, the whole
(but not part only) of the principal amount of the
convertible note may be converted. The shares to be
issued upon conversion shall rank pari passu in all
respects with all other existing shares outstanding at
the date of the conversion.

42.

RERREE)
FEBRARE(E)

RZZTZEWF+—HA=+WmAE * XAF]
IRIE AR 7 Citigroup Global Markets
Limited ([fEIEERE |) - R@EEE —
MTEESE R ARME AR - Citigroup
Global Markets Financial Products
LLC (“CGMFP") > ZE #& F & A F 7
F15%TEVWEBFFUNTHEAX
i o RARIZERATHRKRBER L B HE
SAHELEEFB(AIZZEZNF+—
AZTHEB)AREFHE ABETHRRR
FRBTREERA AN SEMAE R E
FAME - IRERER2.95E T I
AXIN(HERBE)ROIFMASE S O -
BATALAR « MERARAS  HARFNE A ¥ A
NEIEETRAEBEESNENEM
W EELRAE RERETE TET
Z IR BB S g AR SR AR 7.88
7T = 1 &R EEE KM E AR5 e AR
BiE - RRFEABERAITRERRER
i B ERZEATRRRERRE B EEN
T EEF B 1E 8RR 89 o B K BE
R MRERE s AT LB
BERGD  BERXERNESETA D
F 100,000 7T * LM - fisi%E ARPAE A
RETSRREENRAKELDREE IR
100,000 7T, + Bl AT AR 245 1) & 2B AR
SRR(MIIEE D) Al FEBAAD - FHE
BARAD B TR RD 2 77 T 1 B4R
EHEMAERAERNDZEFERER -
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42. Convertible note (Continued)

The Group and the Company (Continued)

The Group designated the entire convertible note
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss is carried at fair value at the balance sheet
date. During the year, a loss on increase in its fair
value of approximately HK$6,289,000 (2007: a
gain on decrease in its fair value of approximately
HK$19,376,000) is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

The fair value of the liability component of the
convertible note at fair value through profit or loss at
31 December 2008 and 2007 was determined based
on the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the prevailing market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible loan at the balance sheet
date. The discount rate is 11.81% (2007: 6.38%).

The fair value of the conversion option embedded
was calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs
into the model were as follows:

42.

R REE)
FEBRART(E)

AEEETCEMARBRZEABNIBRS
REATERENGRABE  IRE
EANAFEIER - FR EAFE
#8002 A E5 18 496,289,000/ L (=
THE ERAFERBRIEELECWIELD
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FEMRE RARZEAZHEBAT ¢

31 December

31 December

2008 2007

—EENF ZETLF

+=A=+—H +=-—A=+—8

Stock price per share FRARE HK$0.71 HK$1.70

Exercise price per share HRITEE HK$2.95 HK$2.95

Expected volatility TEHR R R 59% 33%

Expected life TEHASEHA 0.9 year 1.9 years

Risk-free rate A e i A1) 2R 0.25% 2.58%
Expected dividend yield charged to T8 HA AR B U 2 AR A

income statement for the year HRIE 2.00% 2.00%

The stock price was the closing price at the
respective balance sheet dates while the expected
volatility was determined by calculating the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the
previous year.

No redemption was carried out for both years. The
convertible note was fully redeemed subsequent to
the balance sheet date. Details of which are set out
in note 59.

REANZEER ZEHE - MEHK
IEIE R EARRRERNBEE—F 2
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43. Deferred taxation

The followings are the major deferred tax assets and

liabilities recognised and movements thereon during

43. EEFHIE

UTARAFERMEFENETECH
RIEER AL EE A AR ERAIE R

the current and prior years: AFEFEHEE :
The Group
5H
Accelerated
tax Revaluation Distressed

depreciation  of properties Tax losses assets Total

MERBRE MEES HBEsR TREE an

HK8'000 HK$'000 HK8'000 HK§'000 HK8'000

AT AT AT AT AT

At 1 January 2007 R-2TtE-A-R (55) (146,199) 1508 (112,899) (257639)

Credit to income for the year REFEEWEA - 24,540 - 112,899 187439

Charge to equity for the year RAEEERNR - (3,356) - - (3,356)
Effect of change in tax rate charged to~ ERFEEH 7 /2

income statement for the year RHBRAR - 31,628 - - 31,628

At 31 December 2007 RZEZE+-A=+-H (55) 93,381) 1,508 - (91,928)

Credit to income for the year RAERE WG A - 7073 = = 7073

Charge to equity for the year RAEEERNR - (1,754) - - (1,754)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 49)  WEEMBAR( M 49) (1,712) = = = (1,712)
Effect of change in tax rate credited ~ £RH=EEH 22

to equity for the year AR - 453 - - 453
Fifect of change in tax rate charged ~ ERFZEH 7 Z2

to income statement for the year RAERTR - - (86) - (86)

At 31 December 2008 RZEZN\ETZA=+-H (1,767) (87,609) 1422 = (87954)
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43. Deferred taxation (Continued) 43. EEFHIE(E)
The Company
KAH
Accelerated
tax Revaluation

depreciation of properties Total
MERBTE MEE nm
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2007 RZETt5—HA—H (55) (10,553) (10,608)
Credit to income for the year RAREE WA - 9,227 9,227
Charge to equity for the year RARFEERINGR - (3,356) (3,356)
At 31 December 2007 RZZE+E+-A=1—H (55) (4,682) (4,737)
Effect of change in tax rate S Tk - 271 271
Credit to equity for the year RARFEERSEA - 515 515
At 31 December 2008 RZBENG+ZA=1T—H (55) (3,896) (3,951)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$88,302,000 (2007:
HK$52,890,000) available for offset against future
profits. A deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of approximately HK$8,617,000 (2007:
HK$8,617,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining
balance of approximately HK$79,685,000 (2007:
HK$44,273,000) due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. Other tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unused
tax losses of approximately HK$32,075,000 (2007:
HK$32,075,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit stream.

Under the New Law of PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated
profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
HK$44,702,000 as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

REEH - ANEEE A HURR K F 5
KB TR A5 48 49 88,302,00078 7T (=
T T+ F:52890,0008 7L )° & EF
E5E A 498,617,000 T(ZE & £
% : 8,617,000/ T ) B #E R I & 5 1H
BE - ERARRUES AR TERNE - I
7L H B A5 £4 40 79,685,000 T (==
T4 1 44,273,000 78 7T ) fE R T AR
R TEE EE o HAh B 75 /85 18 1) A& R HAtth
AR o

REEH - ANAR)AE A HURR 2K F 59
RE) A IEEE#32,075,0008L(=
T4 132,075,000 70) - EER K
R R R AN B FEBI M - I S R AT (AR
EFHREEE -

REBEFERET BT N\F—A—
AR BB E QB SRR D
K2 IREFEHUWTET - BRAEE
RS HI B B E R E 2R R A R
M REREZNFRB IS REDE -
it A R B BT B A B 89 44,702,000 78
TCE5Hm 2 B = B E £ R RER
AN AR ET AR B MIEHEA ©
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44. Trade payables 44. FEFERR
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at Tl ZREMERRREE B 2 RE DT

the balance sheet date:

The Group

A M

2008 2007

- YA — T T
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FETT

0 to 30 days TE=1H 33,401 37,603
31 to 90 days =+—HBZEh+AH 18,333 16,219
91 to 180 days At+—BE—BANA+H 14,563 11,336
181 to 360 days —BNt+t—HBZ=B/,~1H 19,184 —
Over 360 days BE=a,~1TH 28,352 11,567

113,833 76,725

45. Accrued charges, rental deposits and other 45. EtER HXRERHMENRK

payables

The Group NEEH

The balance includes an amount of approximately EHRERE N R U L R
HK$41,889,000 (2007: HK$40,321,000) payable to MENTELE=THNRE " £538
an independent third party in relation to purchase of %) 541,889,000 T(Z T T £ F
land use rights in the PRC. The amount is secured 40,321,000 70) - ZE2BEHEE TIRE
by certain investment properties, bears interest at WIEVER AR - ME S E iR E T %= 5.88%
5.88% per annum for both years and is repayable on FTEREERBERT TEHE -

demand.

The balance includes an amount of approximately BREE B4 —IH £ ¥H 40 /2 20,889,000 %8
HK$20,889,000 (2007: nil) payable to a minority T(ZZTLF: E)ZENWERF
shareholder of a subsidiary in relation to a DERFRGETHBRARNBRERER -
shareholder’s loan granted to the subsidiary. The SHERERT  REMNEKT747%ETE
amount is unsecured, bears interest at 7.47% per (ZZTLF : B)REZRERT T5H

==}

annum (2007: nil) and is repayable on demand. =
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46.

47.

48.

49.

Amounts due to associates

The Group and the Company

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand.

Amount due to holding company of a
shareholder

The Group

The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand. The amount was fully repaid
during the year ended 31 December 2008.

Amounts due to subsidiaries
The Company

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand.

Acquisition of subsidiaries

On 5 December 2008, the Group acquired
100% equity interest of Sun Steed International
Investments Limited (“Sun Steed”) and its non-
wholly owned subsidiaries, which are involved
in production and trading of petrochemical
products, and a shareholder’s loan due to the
vendor of HK$100,000,000, for a consideration of
HK$84,823,000 and HK$100,000,000 respectively
from an associate of the Group. This acquisition has
been accounted for using the purchase method.
The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition, determined using provisional fair values
for certain assets, was HK$4,391,000.

46.

47.

48.

49.

A E DR

AEERAAT

TRAEER  REREELERTT

BRIE ©

BN —BRROZER A TR

A EE
SHEAERT REREERFERS
BE o ZeHEECRN—_ZEZENFE+_A
=t BULEFERAZEEE -
FEAT B A R FK

AT

i

SHEREER REREERERS

i
i

i

=

MEBAR

al

RZZEZENFEFF+TZAAEH &
B o Bl KA X 584,823,000/ 7T &
100,000,000 7 7T #E 2N 5= B A) — [l Bt &
ARIKNBHERERKRERRARIA
BOREEAREIEREERS
EMIERENB AR Z 100% B 17D S
N JERE 7 2 IR E 5% 100,000,000 7
TLo 2B R ABEEN ST HEA
R XM EENEERATFEBEZK
FEFTE A 2 98 /5 4,391,0008 T °
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49. Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued) 49. WEEMIB AR (&)

The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the

R ZEARFEEREENEEHS

goodwill arising, are as follows: N

Carrying
amount and
provisional
fair value
(note i)
REEKR
FEAFE
(Kiati)
HK$’000
FET
Net assets acquired: WEREE
Land use rights b {E AR 26,091
Property, plant and equipment L/ E N Y S E L] 267,966
Inventories T8 74,018
Trade receivables FEUER X 8,161
Deposit, prepayments and other receivables Ze » TR E MR 61,882
Bank balances and cash RITHBRRIRS 235,503
Trade payables FEATRR X (21,326)
Accrued charges, rental deposits and other EErER - ke kEAMm
payables NS (17,762)
Amount due to associates of the Group AR e E (115,500)
Shareholder’s loan due to the vendor (note ii) BNE R 2R ER(H T i) (100,000)
Borrowings B8 (137,931)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE (1,712)
279,390
Minority interests O (198,958)
Goodwill Bl 4,391
Total consideration satisfied by cash FE R A 84,823
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WiE S| Hy FH 2N
Cash consideration paid for acquisition of WENBAR BN ZIRE
subsidiaries RE (84,823)
Cash consideration paid for purchase of a BARREREMZ2RE
shareholder’s loan RE (100,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired RITHEB MRS TG 235,503

50,680
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49. Acquisition of subsidiaries (Continued)

Note:

(i)

The fair values of the land use right and property,
plant and equipment have been determined
provisionally, awaiting the receipt of professional
valuations.

According to the sale and purchase agreement, the
Group was required to purchase a shareholder’s loan
amounting to HK$100,000,000 due to the vendor, ClI
Limited (“ClI”) for a consideration of HK$100,000,000.

After the acquisition of Sun Steed and its subsidiaries
from an associate of the Group, the Group obtained
control over the operation of Sun Steed. Goodwill
arising on the acquisition is attributable to the
anticipated profitability brought about by the potential
increase in demand for petrochemical products in the
PRC and the faster decision making process from the
control.

The subsidiaries acquired contributed approximately
HK$45,662,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss of
approximately HK$1,528,000 from operating activities
for the period between the date of acquisition and the
balance sheet date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2008, total group revenue for the year would have
been HK$1,100,192,000, and profit for the year
would have been HK$103,932,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of revenue and results
of operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved if the acquisition been completed on 1
January 2008, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

49. WEEMIE AR (#&)

Hret

(i)

(i)

T EFERERME  BERSZEBEZA
FENSFAREIBEREE M
R 2 2 7T 1A ©

BEEEHZ AEBEFTEZRE
B REBRRKREARAR(HE])
LA {8 100,000,00078 T A —E £
%/5100,000,000 B 2 RREFK -

FEREAR &R B By —Fa Bk 28 8 A B B BR
REWBRRR  NEBEMSHEERE
ERESIE - WEMSHNEETRE
R B A 3 26 O 4k T s SR AE AN A
VB 0 B A ) T R R R BB AR 7 2R
MWIBHIRMBE N FTEE ©

WERSzHBAREREEESEE
B HifE A4S B B BR 40 45,662,000 7
T A K 491,528,000 T 2 5 & %
1518 -

WEWRER-_ZEZTN\F—A—HE
TR REAFEFEZBKRABA
1,100,192,00078 7t ° 1A F & Z &
F# £ 103,932,000 7T © It F BR&
MHEREIERE2ZRR  WT2A
ERBRRAEASBMHMEER
NFE—A— BT EREE R EES
RRA R EBEESERE B REEZ
B2 -
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50. Deemed acquisition of subsidiaries 50. REWEHEATR
During the year ended 31 December 2007, an RBE_ZEZ+F+_A=1+—HBIF
associate of the Group, SYJ Holding Limited (“SYJ B A&E—fHE 27 SYJ Holding
Holding”) repurchased all its shares held by its Limited (“SYJ Holding”) M kAL E
shareholders other than the Group. The effective SNRRERE B EERD - NEBIFE
equity interest owned by the Group changed from ZEBRMDIER A 42.75% R E L NE
42.75% to 100%. Thereafter, SYJ Holding became 100% ° E1f * SYJ Holding X &A% B
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. This 2EMBAR - ZBEEAWE LN
acquisition has been accounted for using purchase STHEAER o
method.
The net assets acquired in the transaction, and the HZR5BANFEENEENEEY
goodwill arising, are as follows: AT
Carrying
amount and
fair value
at the date
of share
repurchase
REBRHEHR
ZEREER
AFE
HK$’000
FEIT
Net assets acquired: WIBFEE :
Property, plant and equipment M BEREE 1,619
Deposit, prepayments and other receivables %Be  ENRERE MR 20,324
Amount due from a subsidiary of the Group JE U A 52 B — FEI B B8 2 B3R 285,745
Bank balances and cash RITHEARRE S 5,989
Accrued charges, rental deposits and EEER  HKiEe Xk
other payables o Ath FE A 5K (926)
Amount due to the Company AN N/NEIEA (140,908)
Amount due to associates of the Group FE AR E BB L N B (145,846)
25,997
Minority interests DR R (10,328)
The Group’s share of net assets of SYJ Holding AEEEEREERD
as at date of share repurchase & H SYJ Holding 2 /#& & 15,669
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WHEEEX ZFHREBRA
Bank balances and cash acquired IRITHEBMIRSFG 5,989

SYJ Holding and its subsidiaries had no significant

EYRBEBRELEER ZHME SY

contribution to the Group’s revenue and profit
between the date of acquisition and the balance
sheet date. If the acquisition had been completed on
1 January 2007, the Group’s revenue and profit for
the year would have no significant difference as well.

Holdings R E KB A R ¥ AL B 2 WA
Kom R mEEETR o WEBRIER=ZZ
TLF-—A—HREK ' AEEFRZHK
AR T EBEED R
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51.

Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
disposed of East Gate Development (HK) Company
Limited and its subsidiary to an independent third

party at a consideration of HK$83,020,000.

The net assets of the disposed subsidiaries at the

51. HEME QA

REE-FFT

+tF¥+=-_A=+—HI1t
FERN AEELERREX(ED)
BRARREWNBAR T —RBILE=

¥ - K18 /583,020,000 7T °

ZEHMBARNHERSAZFEE

date of disposal were as follows: (N
2007
—ETF
HK$’000
FEIT
Property, plant and equipment M BEREE 712
Interests in associates kNS 72
Stock of properties MEEFE 149,345
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e ~ FENFR R EAth e WK 11,675
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary i G S I NGIEN 6,814
Bank balances and cash RITHEARRE S 2,321
Accrued charges, rental deposits and EETER  BABiEe RkE
other payables L ANES (14,738)
Taxation payable FEfSHLIR (14,332)
141,869
Minority interests VAR R = (156,045)
Release of translation reserve b 53 (i fs Hs Bl (9,703)
117,121
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries L ERTE AR MK EE 48,499
165,620
Satisfied by: ATFIHF AN
Consideration receivable FEU R AB 83,020
Amount due from the buyer of the disposed e L EHB AR
subsidiaries BHRN 82,600
165,620
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HES|IRRAFR SR ¢
Cash consideration ReERE =
Bank balances and cash disposed of B2 RITEHR LB (2,321)

(2,321)
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52. Operating lease arrangements 52. EEHOTH
The Group AEHE
The Group as lessee AEBUAREAE S
At the balance sheet date, the Group had REER - BRETAREERZERLIE
commitments for future minimum lease payments T REBRLHWREFFAREZERR
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of SERESRREAHRFENT
land and buildings which fall due as follows:
The Group
2008 2007
—EENE et
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Within one year —FRNE® 3,322 2,289
In the second to fifth year E_FEFERF
inclusive (BEEEMEEA) 2,911 4,834
6,233 7,123

The operating lease payments represent rental
payable for certain of its office premises and staff
quarters. Leases are generally negotiated for a lease
term ranged form 1 year to 5 years and rentals are
fixed.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned by the Group during
the year was approximately HK$54,431,000 (2007:
HK$67,387,000) respectively. The properties held
have committed tenants for lease terms ranged from
1 year to 18 years.

LSEMOERRIAETHRRAMBELE
TEEENZEE - BAO—RBEI/—
FEAFHBREEESE -

EEBULEA G T

AEERFEFANRDHMAESKALD
754,431,000 (= & T £ F:
67,387,00087C) - HFBMYMEEEEH
AMHEE HHSEESH1FZE18FT

=t
=5 °
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52.

53.

Operating lease arrangements (Continued)

The Group as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted

52, EEHENRHE)

EEBUAHA G D

REFER  ARBEBET LA R

with tenants for the following future minimum lease TR REERS -
payments:
The Group
REE
2007
—ETF
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Within one year —F RN Em 24,615 35,559
In the second to fifth year E_FEFERF
inclusive (BIEEEREEA) 16,838 22,369
After five years FELATR 2,234 2,192
43,687 60,120

The Company

The Company has no operating lease arrangements

at both balance sheet dates.

Capital commitments

E N

B o

53. BEAREE

ARARWEGE B A SEROE

Capital contribution in an investment in
an associate contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statement (note)

Capital contribution in an investment in
an associate authorised but not
contracted for (note)

Capital contribution in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated
financial statements

BRERN—RBEARNETEERE
BRFRREAEEREBRA
BRI (HZ)

BRER—HEERRNCERE
BRTEZENERRA(N L)

BEDE  BEARBETEE
BRFRREAEERER
HYBARRA

The Group

AEE
2008 2007
—EENE e aes
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
386,111 —
- 585,561
3,124 —
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53.

54.

55.

Capital commitments (Continued)

Note:

The Group’s total expected investment amount of the
associate is RMB607,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$675,000,000). This associate was established after
obtaining the approval from independent shareholders of
the Company on 25 January 2008. As at 31 December
2008, the Group contributed RMB260,000,000 equivalent
to approximately HK$288,889,000 (2007: RMB60,000,000
equivalent to approximately HK$64,171,000) and the
remaining RMB347,500,000 equivalent to approximately
HK$386,111,000 (2007: RMB547,500,000 equivalent to
approximately HK$585,561,000) was included as capital
commitment.

The Company

The Company has no capital commitment at both balance
sheet dates.

Contingent liabilities

The Company has provided a guarantee in respect
of the disposal of Beijing East Gate Wangjing Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (“Wangjing”) in the year 2004,
a former subsidiary of the Group, under a share
transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Company
is required to provide guarantee to the buyers of
Wangjing (the “Buyers”) in respect of any contingent
liabilities arising from any guarantees and securities
provided by Wangjing and any contracts entered
into by Wangjing not disclosed to the Buyers as at
the date of transfer of shares of Wangjing to Buyers.
Such guarantee provided by the Company was
ceased at 9 November 2007.

Retirement benefits plans

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “Scheme”) for all qualifying employees
in Hong Kong. The assets of the Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group and are held,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes the lower of HK$1,000 per month or 5%
of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme.

53.

54.

55.

BAREEE)
Mz

AEBMRZBHE ARz BEPREEAAR
# 607,500,000 7T (#8 & R 49675,000,000
B WHBHERARNR_ZEZENF—A
T+ RHESBURERIAERKYL - R_F
ENE+_A=F+—H KEHERAAR
# 260,000,000 7t (48 & 7 %9288,889,000
BIL)(ZEEEF : AR%60,000,0007T
HER#A64,171,0008 T8 ) RBRARE
347,500,000 7T (48 & » #7386,111,000 %
L) (ZZZ+F : AR¥ 547,500,000 7TH8
& A #9585,561,0008 7T ) BE A HIE ©

RRF
RNAFAREREE B IR H E AR o

HREE

R-_ZZEMEARARARRE - EREE
EpAZRTAETENHELERRRE
REHEBRARTER D) (RAEE
—HAMEAR) MR ZREEER &
HARRABEAZRNER(TES M
BETEENERERARBREN LT
FE M i B R 2 (TR S SR R B ey
EHRRI 2 A5 EHERKAE
BERETREER R_TTLF+—
ANBREARBREZERD A -

RAKEREE

REBAEREBREANEGERKRET
Hr—mEmbE AR E (T80 -
BB T EERASEEER S
S WERAREFEAZHNES
A o NEBEMZTEIE A EH 1,000
V8 7T Bk 3 FA 5 R B0 5% M & R VR A9 4

=+
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55.

56.

Retirement benefits plans (Continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of retirement benefits schemes operated by
the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries
are required to make contributions to the state
retirement scheme in the PRC based on 20% of the
monthly salaries of their current employees to fund
the benefits. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic
salaries on retirement and their length of service in
accordance with the relevant government regulations.
The PRC government is responsible for the pension
liability to the retired staff.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of HK$5,267,000 (2007: HK$3,727,000)
represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period. As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, no
contributions due in respect of the reporting period
had not been paid over to the scheme.

Share options

On 27 May 2002, the shareholders of the Company
approved the termination (to the effect that no further
share options shall be offered) of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company on 26 June 1995
(the “Old Share Option Scheme”) and the adoption of
a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) with effect from 27 May 2002. The Old
Share Option Scheme and the New Share Option
Scheme were adopted for the primary purpose
of giving incentives to the directors and eligible
employees of the Group.

55.

56.

RIKENETEI (&)

RABENHBARZEES EE P EIK
& (R R INBFIET & o B B &Y Bl Y
BRARAFRERBEREEMNEKGER
HEBESRE AT EK20%FH#
R NEPZEREN BEAREX
BREE  BEDREBEBBOBER
ER2ROMERERMNERTER
WG FEFENST - PEBNFTAELX
MRINEE ZRERMNEE -

FAGREAERERZKNABLE A
5,267,000 T(= & T + £ :
3,727,000 L) - REAEBERZE
FTEIETEIMNHHERK - RZZEZENF
=TT +FE+-A=+—8  #niak
SRR WEZEEE TR H
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56.

Share options (Continued)

According to the Old Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company were authorised,
at any time within ten years after the adoption
date, to grant share options to any directors or
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
not less than 80% of the average of closing prices
of the Company’s shares on the five trading days
immediately preceding the offer date of the share
options or the nominal value of the Company’s
shares, whichever is higher. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted under the Old Share Option Scheme cannot
exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to
time.

According to the New Share Option Scheme, the
board of directors of the Company are authorised,
at any time within ten years after the adoption
date, to grant share options to any directors or
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
not less than the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, or the average closing
prices of the Company’s shares on the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date of the
share options or the nominal value of the Company’s
shares, whichever is higher. The maximum number
of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme cannot
exceed 30 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount
of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time.

No option was granted and exercised for both years
and no share option was outstanding as at 31
December 2007 and 2008.

56.

BIREE)

RBEBRENE  ARREEFSER
R M B MR T FANEMER - &
FTARRBREEMAMBARESTHIES
BREARBARRIED  BRABD
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BEMNEE - IATBEEARAAERE
BITIRABEELZ 10% /R -

.

RRFTBRESS AR EFSRER
R B B+ FRREMERE - &%
FTARBREEMAMBEARESZLIES
BREABBARBMRND - ERTE
PRELEBERAERRBARG 2 WHE -
ERERERL BN AEAXZBEAR
Al PR T EXARFBRD ZHE
(A= ERE)  BEAREHBERE
AERHZBRETRE 2 REROEK
B - I REBAR R RS ETRA
fEHEZ 30% BR

M EF RS SR RITEEANER
B RER_TZLFER_FTTNF
T-A=+—"BABERKRTITENE
Pt



Annual Report 2008 4F i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t
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57. Related party transactions

The Group

During the year, the Group entered into the following

transactions with related parties:

57. BEARS

FR - ASEEBRTET AR

2008 2007
S LIC ==
HK$’000

HK$°000
FRET T

Interest income from a jointly
controlled entity
Interest income from associates

Interest income from minority shareholders

of subsidiaries
Interest expense to an associate

Interest expense on loan from a shareholder

(note)

Property management fee income
from an associate

Rental income from an associate

Rental income from a jointly
controlled entity

Management fee and incentive

bonus accrued to a holding company

of a shareholder
Interest on convertible notes issued
to shareholders

W ER — R £k A2 I A 7]

B FI) B A

U ER Bt 48 1 B B0 F1 B
WERH B A a2
DB R K

XA —EE A A R F B
I —2BREZRZMELZE
(H17E)

W ER — R B & R B B %
EEBUA

IWER — B & R al S WA
W ER — R £ A2 I A 7]
EA S WA

e — 2R A
ZRARINEERE &
FRUL D PX

TS EEAT T ARER 2 TR AR
ZEFE

2,717 7,489
90,708 76,732

1,559 =
— 6,973

- 3,906

76 73
208 200

585 =

- 116,613

6,228 6,239

Note: The shareholder was China Cinda, a substantial
shareholder which held over 20% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2007 and
2008.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group
transferred the unrecoverable NPL to China Cinda
a consideration of approximately RMB40,000,000
(equivalent to HK$42,800,000). Details of which are
set out in note 29.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
Group entered into an agreement with Cinda
Companies to establish a company in the PRC for
the purpose of engaging in the business of property
development and operation, property management
and consultation in the PRC. The formation of
this associate was approved by the company’s
independent shareholders on 25 January 2008.

Bt RBEATEEE R-FBLR
—FE\F+-A=T-AREA
ARBBTRABIB20%MEER
B o

R_BEE+F+_A=+—HILzHF
A ANEBRETGERKH TR EE
THEGE REeBORARE
40,000,000 7T (#8 & M 42,800,000 %
7)o BEFEEFIRNHEE 29 -

R-2RtE+-A=+-A2%
P ARBREERTDTLIHE - XA
Rep PRI —RIAT - BHAER
EN R ENEREREE  NEE
BREWSEY o R EAIN-FE
NE—A=+HEBARHBIRR
BT -
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57. Related party transactions (Continued) 57. BBARS (&)

The Group (continued)

Details of balances with related companies and other
transactions with related parties are set out in the
balance sheet and in notes 22, 23, 29, 35, 45, 46, 47
and 50.

The Group and the Company

During the year, the Group and the Company
purchased the entire equity interest of Sun Steed
and a shareholder’s loan from CIl, an associate
of the Group, at a consideration of approximately
HK$84,823,000 and HK$100,000,000 respectively.
Details of this transaction are set out in note 49.

During the year, the Group and the Company
purchased available-for-sale investments from CII
Limited, an associate of the Group, at a consideration
of HK$63,500,000. As at 31 December 2008, these
available-for-sale investments were held on trust by a
subsidiary of a shareholder of the Company.

The company

Details of balances with subsidiaries are set out in
the balance sheet and in notes 19 and 48.

Except for the directors’ remuneration as disclosed in
note 9 during the year, there is no other remuneration
of key management.

The remuneration of directors is determined by
the remuneration committee having regard to the
performance of individuals and market trends.

B ()

BB N Rl A o S BB T 2 A X
SHBHINEERBERRME22
232935454647 %50 -

AEBRALT

FR AEERARARAEERN
—XBEQR PESBURELD
84,823,0007% 7T & 100,000,000 7% 7t 4%
BHERENEIRNDERRBRRER - It
R 5 2 1B AHIFE 49 -

FR - AEERARFRAEEH—FK
&~ A - R EPAK(E 63,500,000 %
TEATHEERE KT NF
TZA=1+—H ZAHLEERERAR
RNAEl—ABREANEBRRAEFEA R
RFEE ©

AT

BB AR AR BHEHY R 19 &
48 o

B Bl 5E 9 PR BB F SN T =5 0 5 B

S WEHEMETEERABNEMH -

EEZFMIIAFMEESREEEA
KRR THBEMERE °
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58. Major non-cash transactions

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the
Group’s deposit paid for establishment of an
associate of HK$64,171,000 was transferred to
interest in an associate upon the formation of
this associate.

During the year ended 31 December 2007, the
consideration for the disposal of subsidiaries
and investment properties of HK$165,620,000
and HK$89,519,000 respectively were not
settled and were included in deposits,
prepayments and other receivables in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December

2007.

59. Post balance sheet events

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group

has the following significant subsequent events:

(i)

On 20 February 2009, the Company and
CGMFP, the owner of the convertible note,
entered into an agreement whereby the
Company would redeem from CGMFP the
convertible note at US$49,875,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$389,025,000), being
95% of its principal amount of US$52,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$409,500,000).
The Group settled the redemption amount
by two instalments, as to US$29,925,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$233,415,000)
on 24 February 2009 and as to US$19,950,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$155,610,000)
on 20 March 2009 respectively. All unpaid
accrued interest had been waived. Other income
of approximately HK$648,000 will be recognised
as a result of the waiver of accrued interest
expenses for the year ending 31 December
2009.

B BHRME

58. FEFBERS

(@)

REBEE_ZTENF+ZA=+—
BLEFER  AEEZERKIL
B8 N R4 64,171,000/ T2
PR RZESE 2 N R R S 18 B8 B
DA o

RBE_ZTLF+-_A=+—
BEFEAR  HEMBERARER
EWMERARUMRED AR
165,620,000 7T, 589,519,000
AL YAR-_TETLF+_-A
=T BENHEEEERBERIIK
RETE - TANFRIA N H b & WK
I8 o

59. KERKER

HEERE AEBAUTZEEHE
E/\:— S NF_A=_+H" =K

AEBEATBREZEREES A

CGMFPET 3 % % * AR Al i A
K 849,875,000 T(H & ©
#9389,025,0007% 7T ) + Bl K &
¥652,500,000% T(HE & »® &
409,905,000 % 7T ) 2 95% HE B 5%

AR o ZIKEIE D H X
NEBEE DRIAR_FFAN

= A=+ M H X% 1729,925,000
% J(#E & M #9233,415,0007%
TORRZZEZENF=R=1+H
S 119,950,000 Jt (48 & 1 &
155,610,000 7T) ° FiE R1F.2
A EEHKEHRE - RZTEZN
F+-ZA=T—HIEFEHE
MB R LAES e mMER 2 HA
WA 495 648,000 57T ©
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59. Post balance sheet events

(ii)

During the year, the Group together with certain
investors had agreed to make investment
in a second portfolio of distressed assets
owned by China Orient Asset Management
Corporation. After netting off the cash
recovered and included in the second portfolio
of distressed assets, the acquisition cost of the
second portfolio of distressed assets will be
approximately RMB227,300,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$252,600,000). The Group’s
participating interest in the second portfolio
of distressed assets is approximately 46%, or
equivalent to approximately HK$115,900,000.
The transaction is conditional upon approval
being obtained from the relevant PRC
authorities.

60. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities

(@)

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries
at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

59.

HEBRSE

(if)

FR AEEBRAE T
EERERE—BERFBBEREA
EETERARABENE BT
REE - 1BRE QW BHEE
F_BETREENRE%E F
—BRREENKBRENA
A R #227,300,0007C(H & B
252,600,000 7T ) o A & B ®
FECRTREEMNDREERLA
46% + =k #H & M 43 115,900,000
BT R EZIER HASFISE
AR B 19 48 BE 2B P 4 AR 1 B ST IR IE
%o

60. BT BEQATARAREHQ
AIRE

(a)

ARAMEEMBAAR-E
ZENFE+-_A=+T—HBHHNFEBW
T

Proportion of

nominal value of
issued ordinary

Country/ Nominal value of share capital/
place of issued ordinary registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
establishment  registered capital NG
Name of company it A BRTERR ERTEERRA/ Principal activities
INGES BF/FEt A/ AMEAEE EMEREELS TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE 83
Beiling East Gate Development PRC US$100,413,500 - 100%  Property development
Co., Ltd. (‘Beijing East Gate’) # 100,413,500 and investment
IRREEXBRAA(ERRR])  (Note ) NERRREE
(Hizt i)
Beijing Yinda Property Management ~ PRC RMB10,000,000 - 90%  Property management
Limited (*Yinda’) EP AR#10,000,0007C NEER
FRBENEEREREMLA (Note i)
(T5RE]) (i)
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60. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities (Continued)
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Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2008
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60. MEAR  BEQXTARARESQ
RIRE(#E)

Country/ Nominal value of share capital/
place of issued ordinary registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
establishment  registered capital NG
Name of company KL ERTERR BRTLERRL/ Principal activities
NAER 8%/ it BA/EMEAEE dMEAEELA TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EHf 4
Beijing Ju Fu Real Estate PRC RMB105,000,000 - 90% Property development
Development Company Limited # AR 105,000,0007T and investment
(‘Beiing Ju Fu’) (Note ii) NEREREE
FRERRHEREERAR (Hitii)
([EtRER])
Silver Grant International Assets Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% = Distressed assets
Management Limited BB 10,0007 business
PRAREEERARLA TREBERK
Silver Grant International Assets Hong Kong HK$100 100% = Distressed assets
Investment Limited BB 10087 business
PRAREAEREARLA TREBERK
Greenhill Property Limited British Virgin USS1 100% = Investment holding
Islands (e REER
EBRERES
Ju Fu San Yan Jing Investment Hong Kong HK$2 = 100%  Investment holding
Company Limited Bk 28T REER

ER=BAREARLA
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60. MEAR  BEQATARARESQ
RAIREE)

60. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(@) (continued) (@ (#&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

Country/ Nominal value of share capital/
place of issued ordinary registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
establishment  registered capital NG e
Name of company ML BRTEER BRTEERERA/ Principal activities
NAER A%/ Fifi A/ EMErEE EMEREELA TEXHE
Directly Indirectly
HE GE3
Likesway Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% = Property holding and
MERERAR B 2T investment
BENERRE
Real China Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% = Property holding and
REERBRAT 0 2T investment
BENERRE
Silver Grant Department British Virgin US$1 100% — Investment holding
Store (BVI) Limited Islands T RAER
EBRRES
Silver Grant Hainan Investment British Virgin USS$1 100% = Inactive
(BVI) Limited Islands 0 TS
EBRRES
Silver Grant Infra-structure British Virgin US$1 100% = Investment holding
Investment (BV) Limited Islands (e REER
EBRRES
Samtung Investment Limited British Virgin US$1 100% = Investment holding
Islands e REER

EBRAEE
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60. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and

jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(a) (continued)

@ (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

60. MEAR  BEQATARARESQ
RAIREE)

Country/ Nominal value of share capital/
place of issued ordinary registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
establishment  registered capital KAREE
Name of company ML BRTEER BRTEERERA/ Principal activities
NAER Bx/FEth A/ EMErEE S EAEELA TEXH
Directly Indirectly
EE GE3
Platinum Two Limited Mauritius US$1 100% - Inactive
2R E RS
Silver Grant International Department ~ Hong Kong HK$10 = 100%  Property investment
Store Limited & 1087 NERE
SRERBEERAR
Silver Grant International Infra- Hong Kong HK$2 = 100% Investment holding
structure Investment Limited ik 28T RERR
RRERERREARAT
Silver Grant International Securities Hong Kong HK$2 — 100%  Securities trading
Investment Limited ik 28T BHEE
RREREFREARAT
Silver Grant Securities Investment British Virgin US$1 100% — Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands 1%5 RERR
AERRES
SYJ Holding Limited British Virgin HK$2,170 100% = Investment holding
Islands 2170%7 RERR

RREXES

171



172

Silver Grant International Industries Limited $R 2B &2 5 R A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %4 B &R M5t

For the year ended 31 December 2008
HE—FFENF+-—A=+—HILFE

60. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and 60. MiBAR - BEATRHERFESLQ
jointly controlled entities (Continued) AREE)
(@) (continued) (@ (#&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

Country/ Nominal value of share capital/
place of issued ordinary registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
establishment  registered capital KAREE
Name of company ML BRTEER BRTEERERA/ Principal activities
NAER A%/ Fifit A/ EMErEE EMEREELA TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE GE3
Straight View Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% = Investment holding
ZRREARAT A 10087 RAER
Twin Sparkle Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% = Property holding and
EmEERAR Bt 28T investment
RENERRE
Winner Property Limited British Virgin US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Islands I RERR
RERRES
*Zhong Qing Luen Chuang Technology  PRC RMB5,000,000 = 60% Investment holding
(Beiing) Company (‘Zhong Qing’)* ARH5,000,0007C RERR
hEBEMR(LR)BRAT(HE])  (Noteiv)
(Hiztiv)
Sun Steed" British Virgin US$100 100% = Investment holding
=k Islands 100%7T RERR
EERENES
Cll Petrochemical Co. Limited” Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Investment holding

mERLEBRAR &% 100787 RELER
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60. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and 60. MiBAR - BEATRHERFESLQ
jointly controlled entities (Continued) AREE)
(@) (continued) (@ (#&)

Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary

Country/ Nominal value of share capital/
place of issued ordinary registered capital
incorporation/ share capital/ held by the Company
establishment  registered capital KAREE
Name of company ML BRTEER BRTEERERA/ Principal activities
NAER A%/ Fifit A/ EMErEE EMEREELA TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE GE3
“Tai Zhou United East Petrochemical ~ PRC RMB165,600,000 = 50%  Production and trading
Company Limited # AR%165,600,0007 of petrochemical
(“United East Petrochemical’)™ (Note i) products
FMEBCIRRARA(RECT])  (HZi) EEHERM L IER
“Tai Zhou Dong Tai Petrochemical PRC RMB230,000,000 = 69.78%  Production and trading
Company Limited (Dong Tai H AR#230,000,0007T of petrochemical
Petrochemical’)’ (Note i) products
INRFRICERDA(REAL]) (W) EEHERMIER
* For identification purpose only. * REBERR -
# Newly incorporated or acquired during the year # RZTEZEN\F+ZA=+—H
ended 31 December 2008. IEFEAKLLIEA ©
& Five out of nine directors of the Company are . ARBEZEZARAEEFN

fTEFRAM - AEERBKERK

appointed by the Group, the Group control i
E1EH 55.6% IR EHE

55.6% of the voting power in general meeting.
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60. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The subsidiary is registered as a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise.

It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC. Under the joint
venture agreement, the Group is responsible
to contribute RMB9,000,000 to the registered
capital of Yinda and share 90% of the profits
and losses of Yinda.

These subsidiaries are registered as domestic
enterprises.

It is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company
established in the PRC.

Other than the investment holding companies
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which
have no principal place of operation, and Beijing
East Gate, Yinda, Beijing Ju Fu, United East
Petrochemical, Dong Tai Petrochemical and
Zhong Qing which operate principally in the
PRC, all other subsidiaries principally operate in
Hong Kong.

Other than the convertible notes issued by
the Company as explained in note 42, no loan
capital has been issued by the Company and
any of its subsidiaries.

60. MEAR  BEQXTARARESQ
RIRE(#E)

() UHEBARRNK—K2IIEE
Bz B

(i) BR-FKNFBKZZFIIE
Bh%- - REAIEER  AK
H&EHEARK9,000,0007T
ERREZEMEAR  LAE
D FHRZEI0% Ha °

EMBRARARANELERT

o

(ii)

R

(iv) —RRHPERIZZHHE

BREBRELHSEMKLZ
REZEBRARLEE ZE XM
BARIEFRER - RE - bR
EfR FMRE EMRFER
RFEITERRHPEEEN
EMBARBYIEERER

o

BRARR BT AR RR GG
SIRMEE42)50 - AAB RE(ME
MEARMERTENER
1875 °
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60. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and

jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(b)

Particulars of the Group’s significant associates
at 31 December 2008 are as follows:

60. MEAR  BEQXTARARESQ

RIREE)

ARBYEEHEAARE
TA\F+=A=+—AmEED

T
Country/ Proportion of nominal value
place of of issued ordinary share
incorporation/ capital/Registered capital
Form of establishment  Principal held by the Company
business B lTA place of Class of O g2
Name of company structure A5y, business shares held BROLERRA/ Principal activities
ARER b7 3it] FrEst IEEXNY  FIERAEN AfEREEHLf IBEH
The Group  The Company
A58 O
Oll Limited" Incorporated Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary 50% Property
PERRREERLAS  AF &h & Lk development and
investment in
dlistressed assets
business
MEERR
PREESK
IRERBERLE Sho-foreign ~ PRC PRC Registered capital 22.62% Property
REERAA equity joint R EE HE Aftas development and
venture investment
HHRE WRERREE
Gyl 4
FERRRNE Registered PRC PRC Registered capital 30% Property
ERAR FEa B HE HRER development and
investment
VESEYGE
“Zhong Hai You Qi (Tal~ Registered PRC PRC Registered capital 23.03% Production and
Zhou) Petrochemical i EF HE AR trading of
Company LimitecH petrochemical
wmE RN AL products
AR A EEREERMR
Rt IER
* For identification purpose only. * REBERS -

December 2008.

Newly acquired during the year ended 31

Four out of nine directors of the Company is
appointed by the Group, the Group controls

44.4% of the voting power in general meeting.

' ORCFEAET-A=t+-A
LEEERRAL -
¢ ARHEEERANEETA

iz E PO 67 -

AEBRIREAR

S| 44.4% HOILZRE o
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60. Particulars of subsidiaries, associates and 60. fiEAR - BHEARARLERZEHQ
jointly controlled entities (Continued) AREE)
(c) Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled () AEBEHERZEHAITDR-_ZZEN
entities at 31 December 2008 are as follows: F+_A=+—HHFBLOT :
Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital
Form of Country/place  Principal place held by the Group/
business of incorporation  of business Class of Company
Name of entity structure FEffe 2 IZER shares held KEE/DFAMREE  Principal activities
ARER it B3/ 4% & FrEhRHER HEMEREERS FTEH
Platinum One Limited Incorporated Mauritius PRC Ordinary 50% Distressed assets
Al IEXRE lE LRk busingss
PREERK
NEOREEARAA™  Regstered PRC PRO Registered Capital ~ 50% Design and trading
i HE i AR of washroom
facilities
it RHE
EFHAR
# Newly acquired during the year ended 31 ? RZTZENF+=_A=+—H
December 2008. IEFEEABAR o
% The Group control 50% voting power in general ° $§%E@H§%?§@LT¥%USO%
meeting. All the decision made in the Board HERE ﬁﬁﬁ:i%f@ii}&i%
of Directors meeting require at least 2/3 votes ZHED2BEERR o
from all directors.
61. Particulars of the special purpose vehicle 61. HPREMHEERE
Particulars of the Group’s special purpose vehicle %Tﬁ_$%&i§$§i§§5’ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ E’J%@
which hold the Group’s investment in distressed BR-ZFT/N\F+_A=1T—HNOFRE
assets at 31 December 2008 are as follows: LB

Proportion of nominal value
of issued ordinary share capital/registered

Form of Principal capital held

business Country of place of Class of by the Company
Name of entity structure incorporation  business shares held KAAfEEE RS Principal activities
ARER b7 3it] AMEYER  TETEENE  FRERGER LERRE/AMEATELS ITER

the Group the Company
158 N
Dongxin Union Sino-foreign PRC PRC Registered 46.17% = Distressed assets
REHE equity joint ~ #E hE capital business
venture HtER PREAERE
mMEE

2805
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY Bf &&= &

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BEZ—FENF+ZA=1—HIEFE

Year ended 31 December

BEt-R=t+-HLFE

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ETEE “TTHEF “EERE S 3 “BEN\EF
HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million RLEYI M HK$ Million
BEET AEAT BEET AEAT HEET
(note)
(i)
Results ¥
Revenue WA 685.2 551.8 688.1 439.7 288.3
Profit for the year attributable to equity ~ AAFRAEFA
holders of the Company [EME MR 403.7 7241 494.8 322.9 874
At 31 December
i e o el
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ITTNE “ITHE —ITRE “ITHE k3 J.:3
HK$ Million  HK$ Million ~ HK$ Million  HKS Million  BLEN Al
BT & BEET BEAT HEET
(note)
(Hi:#)
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Investment properties and property, RENERNZE -
plant and equipment BERk&E 2,045.2 22278 2,328.5 2,282.6 2,650.7
Land use rights tiFRE - - - - 26.9
Goodwill S 33.5 33.5 335 7.0 11.4
Negative goodwil BEE (59.4) - - - -
Structured finance securities EElepEs - - 24.4 12.0 12.2
Other asset HwEE 5.5 44 2.8 14 -
Interest in jointly controlled entities HEEHAG HT& - - 321 13.6 66.7
Interests in associates and YNl
amounts due from associates TELISZHWA -y 1,256.6 1,510.8 1,540.1 1,110.8 784.0
Investments in securities FHRE 15 - - - -
Available-for-sale investments mEHERE - 2.2 99.1 1677 314.0
Interest in distressed assets TREERD 456.0 204.7 - - -
Investment in distressed assets BB TR E )
through establishment of HERETREE
a special purpose vehicle - - - 9.7 -
Deposit paid for acquisition of investments 2 1R E%ES - 445 - 64.2 -
Deposit paid for acquisition BERYNETREERS
of distressed assets - 263.7 - - -
Deferred tax assets BRERBAE 18,5 1.3 - - -
Net current assets ARBARE 789.4 238.3 12119 18289 1,342.4
4,546.8 4,530.9 5,272.4 5,497.9 5,208.3
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For the year ended 31 December 2008
' E —EE\FF A=+ —HILFE

At 31 December

W+=A=t-A

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
—ETEE Z3TRE ZRTRE S 3 k-3 J.:3
HK$ Milion  HK$ Million — HK$ Million  HKS Million L€M)
AEET &8 AEET EE8T BEET

(note)

(Hi#)
Share capital B 3517 337.7 364.1 364.1 364.1
Reserves e 3,132.0 3,505.3 42265 46419 4,505.5

Equity attributable to equity holders KRARAREBA

of the Company [ERIRA 3,483.7 3,843.0 4,590.6 5,006.0 4,869.6
Minority interests DEREEE 136.2 55.7 16.3 12.7 202.5
Non-current liabilities FnHEE 926.9 632.2 665.5 479.2 136.2
45468 45309 5,272.4 5,497.9 5,208.3
Note: The financial information for the year ended 31 December Kiit : BE_ZTTENF+_A=+—HIEFEZ

2004 has been restated to reflect the effect of changes in
accounting policies which results from the adoption of the
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards with effect from
the accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January

2005.

BHAREEEI  URREMERN
TERE— A ARLERRO R R
M2 BB AR AR B A RS

BoE-
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12 & ¥ % E

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=+—HIFFE

The following is a list of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 December 2008:

Investment properties in the PRC

TIRAEER_ZZNF+_A=+—H

MR EME

3= oo

BE -

URFEZRENE

Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
i B THAHAPR Az HEEER
Sq. ft.
FAR
1. Basement 1, Basement 2, Level O and Level 1 to 3 of Medium Commercial 700,427
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, term lease P
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC. H A
FELIE R TR R R A AT 195 RIR S B —fE -
WEZE RER—EEZE=[E-
2. Level 4 to 31, South Apartment Tower, Long lease Residential 339,739
East Gate Plaza, 39 Dongzhong Street, = *=
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC.
R B b TR T SRR SRR AT 395k IR E IS M A B R
FENE=FT—fE-
3. Level 4 to 31, North Apartment Tower, Long lease Residential 339,993
East Gate Plaza, 19 Dongzhong Street, =H *=
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC.
REIE R T R R R AT 195 IR E S LR A E &
FENE=FT—fE-
4.  Portion of Level 2-5, 6 and 8 of Hua Bo Lau, Medium term Commercial 10,540
No. 28 Dong Zhong Jie Jia, lease (note) [SES
Dongcheng District, Beijing, The PRC. RER (A aE)
B R TR R RP A28 R ERIEE —_Fh
NERNEES
5. Certain properties at Yin Tong International Centre, Long lease Commercial 153,882
C5 World Trade Avenue, Haikou City, Hainan Province, KH EES
The PRC.
HEEEE /AT E KECSIRBBIFRF L E TYE-
6. Certain properties on various level of Block 4 at Long lease Residential 9,052
Yinhe Garden, Diahua Road, Haidian Island East, KH (=2

Development District the 3rd Southern Zone, Haikou,
Hainan Province, The PRC.

Bl R R /E AT e A SR AR R R = EaERENIEE
NRARZBE TR

[
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 12 & ¥ % E

For the year ended 31 December 2008
BE—FENF+-A=+—HIFFE

Investment properties in the PRC (Continued)

URPBZREME(E)

Location Lease term Purpose Gross area
3 B HA PR JizE=S BEEE
Sq. ft.
FATR

7. A unit located on Block 6, Yihe Garden, Long lease Residential 6,637
Dianhua Road, Haidian Island East, Development K Hf F=
District the 3rd Southern Zone, Haikou,

Hainan Province, The PRC.
HEEEE BT RS R BHREER=EEEHEEN
TER/N@R6R—ETT

8. Carparking space No. 6 & 8 on Level 1of Block 3, Long lease Car parking 464
Yihe Garden, Dianhua Road, Haidian Island East, AR E=X(]

Development District the 3rd Southern Zone,
Haikou, Hainan Province, The PRC.
HEEEE BN SRS R MR ER=EEEEEN
TEE/NRITRE—EO N8R EE -

9. Unit 502 on Level 5 of Block 16, No. 2 Longkun Road Long lease Residential 1,162
North, Haikou, Hainan Province, The PRC. gt F=
HENGREEEAT RIS 16/R E AE5025

10. Unit 401 & 501 on Levels 4 & 5 of Block 10, Long lease Residential 2,015
No. 2 Longkun Road North, Haikou, jg-t F=E
Hainan Province, The PRC.

HEErRA/EATERILR2FI0REN R A [E
401550255

11.  An office unit located on the Eastern Portion of Long lease Commercial 6,079
Level 15, CMEC Building, Guomao Main Road, KA [EES
Haikou, Hainan Province, The PRC.

R EEREEEAMEE NECMECKE+RE
REFAEEITES

12.  Villa No. 8 of Block D, Shannei Garden, Long lease Residential 3,118
No. 258 Wenming Road East, Haikou, §g-t F=E
Hainan Province, The PRC.

F B R E 8 A T AR B 2585k LA fEE DAL B 22855
Note: The legal title of the properties have not been passed to Kiat: WEMEZEER_ZTZENF+_A

the Group at 31 December, 2008.

=t—HEKEP TALKHE -
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